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UNITED STATES  

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION  
Washington, D.C. 20549  

   

FORM 10-Q  
   

(Mark One)  
   

   
For the quarterly period ended September 30, 2013  

   
Or  

   

   
For the Transition Period from        to          

   
Commission File Number: 0-29174  

   

LOGITECH INTERNATIONAL S.A.  
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)  

   

   
Logitech International S.A.  

Apples, Switzerland  
c/o Logitech Inc.  

7600 Gateway Boulevard  
Newark, California 94560  

(Address of principal executive offices and zip code)  
   

(510) 795-8500  
(Registrant’s telephone number, including area code)  

   
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange 

Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been 
subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes  No �  

   
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site, if any, every Interactive 

Data File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period 
that the registrant was required to submit and post such files). Yes  No �  

   
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer or a smaller reporting 

company. See the definitions of “large accelerated filer,” “accelerated filer” and “smaller reporting company” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange 
Act.  
   

   
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Act). Yes � No   
   
As of October 28, 2013, there were 160,592,874 shares of the Registrant’s share capital outstanding.  

   
   

   
    QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE 

ACT OF 1934  

   
� � � �  TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE 

ACT OF 1934  

Canton of Vaud, Switzerland  
   None  

(State or other jurisdiction  
of incorporation or organization)  

   
(I.R.S. Employer  

Identification No.)  

Large accelerated filer   
   Accelerated filer �  

         
Non-accelerated filer �  

(Do not check if a smaller reporting company)  
   

Smaller reporting company �  
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In this document, unless otherwise indicated, references to the “Company” or “Logitech” are to Logitech International S.A., its 

consolidated subsidiaries and predecessor entities. Unless otherwise specified, all references to U.S. dollar, dollar or $ are to the United States 
dollar, the legal currency of the United States of America. All references to CHF are to the Swiss franc, the legal currency of Switzerland.  

   
Logitech, the Logitech logo, and the Logitech products referred to herein are either the trademarks or the registered trademarks of 

Logitech. All other trademarks are the property of their respective owners.  
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PART I — FINANCIAL INFORMATION  
   

ITEM 1.   CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDI TED)  
   

   
3  

   
 

   Financial Statement Description  
   Page  

           
•  Consolidated Statements of Operations for the three and six months ended September 30, 2013 and 2012 (revised)  
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•  Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income for the three and six months ended September 30, 2013 and 2012 

(revised)  

   

5 
           
•  Consolidated Balance Sheets as of September 30, 2013 and March 31, 2013 (revised)  
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•  Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the six months ended September 30, 2013 and 2012 (revised)  

   
7 

           
•  Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity for the six months ended September 30, 2013 and 2012 (revised) 

   
8 

           
•  Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (revised)  
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LOGITECH INTERNATIONAL S.A.  
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS  

(In thousands, except per share amounts)  
(Unaudited)  

   

   
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.  
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      Three Months ended September 30,  
   Six Months ended September 30,  

   
      2013  

   2012  
   2013  

   2012  
   

            As Revised  
         As Revised  

   
                          
Net sales  

   $ 531,972 
   $ 547,693 

   $ 1,009,896 
   $ 1,016,297 

   
Cost of goods sold  

   348,559 
   351,919 

   658,128 
   675,177 

   
Gross profit  

   183,413 
   195,774 

   351,768 
   341,120 

   
Operating expenses:  

                       
Marketing and selling  

   93,710 
   110,522 

   194,345 
   211,419 

   
Research and development  

   37,633 
   38,114 

   73,824 
   77,137 

   
General and administrative  

   29,395 
   25,980 

   58,543 
   58,460 

   
Restructuring charges (credits)  

   5,465 
   (2,671 )  7,799 

   28,556 
   

Total operating expenses  
   166,203 

   171,945 
   334,511 

   375,572 
   

Operating income (loss)  
   17,210 

   23,829 
   17,257 

   (34,452 ) 
Interest income, net  

   183 
   153 

   160 
   537 

   
Other income (expense)  

   62 
   (509 )  279 

   (668 ) 
Income (loss) before income taxes  

   17,455 
   23,473 

   17,696 
   (34,583 ) 

Provision for (benefit from) income taxes  
   3,057 

   (31,076 )  2,255 
   (37,986 ) 

Net income  
   $ 14,398 

   $ 54,549 
   $ 15,441 

   $ 3,403 
   

                          
Net income per share:  

                       
Basic  

   $ 0.09 
   $ 0.35 

   $ 0.10 
   $ 0.02 

   
Diluted  

   $ 0.09 
   $ 0.35 

   $ 0.10 
   $ 0.02 

   
                          
Shares used to compute net income per share:  

                       
Basic  

   159,969 
   156,736 

   159,637 
   158,723 

   
Diluted  

   161,183 
   157,932 

   160,875 
   159,853 

   
                          
Cash dividends per share  

   $ 0.22 
   $ 0.85 

   $ 0.22 
   $ 0.85 

   



Table of Contents  
   

LOGITECH INTERNATIONAL S.A.  
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME  

(In thousands)  
(Unaudited)  

   

   
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.  
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      Three Months ended September 30,  
   Six Months ended September 30,  

   
      2013  

   2012  
   2013  

   2012  
   

            As Revised  
         As Revised  

   
                          
Net income  

   $ 14,398 
   $ 54,549 

   $ 15,441 
   $ 3,403 

   
                          
Other comprehensive income:  

                       
Foreign currency translation gain (loss)  

   2,728 
   2,441 

   2,829 
   (4,420 ) 

                          
Change in net loss (gain), and prior service cost related to 

defined benefit pension plans:  
                       

Net loss (gain) and prior service cost  
   (804 )  6,457 

   (1,000 )  7,920 
   

Less amortization included in operating expenses  
   309 

   301 
   615 

   756 
   

                          
Net change in hedging gain (loss):  

                       
Unrealized hedging loss  

   (1,373 )  (5,466 )  (2,286 )  (4,261 ) 
Less reclassification adjustment for gain (loss) included in 

cost of goods sold  
   (94 )  1,683 

   184 
   1,577 

   
                          

Net change in unrealized investment loss:  
                       

Reclassification adjustment for gain included in other 
income (expense)  

   —
   —

   —
   (343 ) 

Other comprehensive income  
   766 

   5,416 
   342 

   1,229 
   

Total comprehensive income  
   $ 15,164 

   $ 59,965 
   $ 15,783 

   $ 4,632 
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LOGITECH INTERNATIONAL S.A.  
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS  
(In thousands, except per share amounts)  

(Unaudited)  
   

   
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.  
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      September 30, 2013  
   March 31, 2013  

   
            As Revised  

   
ASSETS  

             
Current assets:  

             
Cash and cash equivalents  

   $ 294,796 
   $ 333,824 

   
Accounts receivable  

   258,858 
   179,565 

   
Inventories  

   292,777 
   261,083 

   
Other current assets  

   65,808 
   58,103 

   
Assets held for sale  

   —
   10,960 

   
Total current assets  

   912,239 
   843,535 

   
Non-current assets:  

             
Property, plant and equipment, net  

   87,133 
   87,649 

   
Goodwill  

   344,759 
   341,357 

   
Other intangible assets  

   17,747 
   26,024 

   
Other assets  

   71,817 
   75,098 

   
Total assets  

   $ 1,433,695 
   $ 1,373,663 

   
                

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS ’  EQUITY  
             

                
Current liabilities:  

             
Accounts payable  

   $ 303,089 
   $ 265,995 

   
Accrued and other current liabilities  

   219,646 
   192,774 

   
Liabilities held for sale  

   —
   3,202 

   
Total current liabilities  

   522,735 
   461,971 

   
Non-current liabilities  

   202,556 
   195,882 

   
Total liabilities  

   725,291 
   657,853 

   
                
Commitments and contingencies (Note 11)  

             
                
Shareholders’  equity:  

             
Shares, par value CHF 0.25 - 173,106 issued and authorized and 50,000 conditionally 

authorized at September 30, 2013 and and March 31, 2013  
   30,148 

   30,148 
   

Additional paid-in capital  
   —

   —
   

Less: shares in treasury, at cost, 12,556 at September 30, 2013 and 13,855 at March 31, 2013 
   (155,807 )  (177,847 )  

Retained earnings  
   926,714 

   956,502 
   

Accumulated other comprehensive loss  
   (92,651 )  (92,993 )  

Total shareholders’  equity  
   708,404 

   715,810 
   

Total liabilities and shareholders’  equity  
   $ 1,433,695 

   $ 1,373,663 
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LOGITECH INTERNATIONAL S.A.  
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS  

(In thousands)  
(Unaudited)  

   

   
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.  
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      Six Months ended September 30,  
   

      2013  
   2012  

   
            As Revised  

   
Cash flows from operating activities:  

             
Net income  

   $ 15,441 
   $ 3,403 

   
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:  

             
Depreciation  

   19,283 
   22,307 

   
Amortization of other intangible assets  

   10,518 
   12,589 

   
Investment impairment and loss  

   530 
   —

   
Share-based compensation expense  

   8,499 
   13,437 

   
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment  

   2,456 
   —

   
Gain on sales of available-for-sale securities  

   —
   (831 )  

Excess tax benefits from share-based compensation  
   —

   (22 )  
Deferred income taxes and other  

   (3,902 )  (3,806 )  
Changes in assets and liabilities, net of acquisitions:  

             
Accounts receivable  

   (77,042 )  (58,533 )  
Inventories  

   (21,350 )  (31,825 )  
Other assets  

   (5,893 )  (7,570 )  
Accounts payable  

   39,555 
   71,095 

   
Accrued and other liabilities  

   26,091 
   (10,997 )  

Net cash provided by operating activities  
   14,186 

   9,247 
   

                
Cash flows from investing activities:  

             
Purchases of property, plant and equipment  

   (23,063 )  (32,817 )  
Investment in a privately-held company  

   —
   (3,970 )  

Acquisitions, net of cash acquired  
   (650 )  —

   
Proceeds from sales of available-for-sale securities  

   —
   917 

   
Purchases of trading investments for deferred compensation plan  

   (6,146 )  (1,648 )  
Proceeds from sales of trading investments for deferred compensation plan  

   6,602 
   1,638 

   
Net cash used in investing activities  

   (23,257 )  (35,880 )  
                

Cash flows from financing activities:  
             

Payment of cash dividends  
   (36,123 )  (133,462 )  

Purchases of treasury shares  
   —

   (87,812 )  
Proceeds from sales of shares upon exercise of options and purchase rights  

   6,135 
   9,008 

   
Tax withholdings related to net share settlements of restricted stock units  

   (453 )  (635 )  
Excess tax benefits from share-based compensation  

   —
   22 

   
Net cash used in financing activities  

   (30,441 )  (212,879 )  
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents  

   484 
   (1,825 )  

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents  
   (39,028 )  (241,337 )  

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period  
   333,824 

   478,370 
   

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period  
   $ 294,796 

   $ 237,033 
   

                
Non-cash investing activities:  

             
Property, plant and equipment purchased during the period and included in period end accounts payable  

   $ 1,935 
   $ 1,702 
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LOGITECH INTERNATIONAL S.A.  
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’  EQUITY  

(In thousands)  
(Unaudited)  

   

   
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.  
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                                          Accumulated  
         

                  Additional 
                     Other  

         
      Registered Shares  

   Paid-in  
   Treasury Shares  

   Retained  
   Comprehensive 

         
      Shares  

   Amounts 
   Capital  

   Shares  
   Amounts  

   Earnings  
   Loss  

   Total  
   

                  As Revised 
         As Revised 

   As Revised  
   As Revised  

   As Revised  
   

                                             
March 31, 2012  

   191,606 
   $ 33,370 

   $ —
   27,173 

   $ (343,829 )  $ 1,528,620 
   $  (95,929 )  $ 1,122,232 

   
Total comprehensive income  

   —
   —

   —
   —

        3,403 
   1,229 

   4,632 
   

Purchase of treasury shares  
   —

   —
   —

   8,600 
   (87,812 )  —

   —
   (87,812 ) 

Tax benefit from exercise of stock 
options  

   —
   —

   (3,011 )  —
   —

   —
   —

   (3,011 ) 
Sale of shares upon exercise of options 

and purchase rights  
   —

   —
   (1,756 )  (1,347 )  41,058 

   (30,285 )  —
   9,017 

   
Issuance of shares upon vesting of 

restricted stock units  
   —

   —
   (8,526 )  (288 )  7,946 

   —
   —

   (580 ) 
Share-based compensation expense  

   —
   —

   13,293 
   —

   —
   —

   —
   13,293 

   
Cash dividends  

   —
   —

   —
   —

   —
   (133,462 )  —

   (133,462 ) 
September 30, 2012  

   191,606 
   $ 33,370 

   $ —
   34,138 

   $ (382,637 )  $ 1,368,276 
   $  (94,700 )  $ 924,309 

   
                                             
March 31, 2013  

   173,106 
   $ 30,148 

   $ —
   13,855 

   $ (177,847 )  $ 956,502 
   $  (92,993 )  $ 715,810 

   
Total comprehensive income  

   —
   —

   —
   —

   —
   15,441 

   342 
   15,783 

   
Deferred tax asset adjustment related to 

share-based compensation expense  
   —

   —
   (1,304 )  —

   —
   —

   —
   (1,304 ) 

Sale of shares upon exercise of options 
and purchase rights  

   —
   —

   (3,021 )  (1,074 )  18,206 
   (9,106 )  —

   6,079 
   

Issuance of shares upon vesting of 
restricted stock units  

   —
   —

   (4,231 )  (225 )  3,834 
   —

   —
   (397 ) 

Share-based compensation expense  
   —

   —
   8,556 

        —
   —

   —
   8,556 

   
Cash dividends  

   —
   —

   —
   —

   —
   (36,123 )  —

   (36,123 ) 

September 30, 2013  
   173,106 

   $ 30,148 
   $ —

   12,556 
   $ (155,807 )  $ 926,714 

   $  (92,651 )  $ 708,404 
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LOGITECH INTERNATIONAL S.A.  
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

(Unaudited)  
   

Note 1 — The Company  
   

Logitech International S.A, together with its consolidated subsidiaries, (“Logitech” or the “Company”) develops and markets innovative 
hardware and software products that enable or enhance digital navigation, music and video entertainment, gaming, social networking, and audio 
and video communication over the Internet.  

   
Logitech has two operating segments, peripherals and video conferencing. Logitech’s peripherals segment encompasses the design, 

manufacturing and marketing of peripherals for PCs (personal computers), tablets and other digital platforms. Logitech’s video conferencing 
segment offers scalable HD (high-definition) video communications endpoints, HD video conferencing systems with integrated monitors, video 
bridges and other infrastructure software and hardware to support large-scale video deployments, and services to support these products.  

   
Logitech sells its peripheral products to a network of distributors, retailers and OEMs (original equipment manufacturers).  Logitech sells 

its video conferencing products and services to distributors, value-added resellers, OEMs, and, occasionally, direct enterprise customers. The 
large majority of its sales have historically been derived from peripheral products for use by consumers.  

   
Logitech was founded in Switzerland in 1981, and Logitech International S.A. has been the parent holding company of Logitech since 

1988. Logitech International S.A. is a Swiss holding company with its registered office in Apples, Switzerland, which conducts its business 
through subsidiaries in the Americas, EMEA (Europe, Middle East, Africa) and Asia Pacific. Shares of Logitech International S.A. are listed on 
both the Nasdaq Global Select Market, under the trading symbol LOGI, and the SIX Swiss Exchange, under the trading symbol LOGN.  

   
Note 2 — Revision of Previously-Issued Financial Statements  
   

In the first quarter of fiscal year 2014, the Company identified errors related to the accounting for its product warranty liability and 
amortization expense of certain intangible assets. The errors impacted prior reporting periods, starting prior to fiscal year 2009. While these 
errors were not material to any previously issued annual or quarterly consolidated financial statements, management concluded that correcting 
the cumulative errors and related tax effects, which amounted to $19.1 million, in the first quarter of fiscal year 2014 would be material to the 
consolidated financial statements for the three months ended June 30, 2013 and to the expected results of operations for the fiscal year ending 
March 31, 2014.  

   
The Company evaluated the cumulative impact of the errors on prior periods under the guidance in ASC 250-10 relating to SEC Staff 

Accounting Bulletin (“SAB”) No. 99, Materiality. The Company also evaluated the impact of correcting the errors through an adjustment to its 
financial statements and concluded, based on the guidance within ASC 250-10 relating to SAB No. 108, Considering the Effects of Prior Year 
Misstatements when Quantifying Misstatements in Current Year Financial Statements, to revise its previously issued financial statements to 
reflect the impact of the correction of these errors when it files subsequent reports on Form 10-Q and Form 10-K. Accordingly, the Company has 
revised its consolidated financial statements for the quarter ended June 30, 2012, to correct these errors. In addition, as a result of the decision to 
revise its previously issued consolidated financial statements to correct for the errors described above, the Company also corrected other 
immaterial errors that were previously uncorrected. On August 7, 2013, the Company filed a Form 10-K/A to revise its financial statements for 
the years ended March 31, 2011, 2012 and 2013 to correct for the same errors.  As a result, the Company has also revised its financial statements 
for the three and six months ended September 30, 2012 from what it previously reported.  
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The revised financial statements correct the following errors, which are included in the tables below, with associated footnotes:  
   

(1) - Warranty accrual — The Company determined that its prior warranty model did not accurately estimate warranty costs and liabilities 
at each reporting period. The inherent flaws in the prior model involved use of generic assumptions, incomplete warranty cost data and inter-
regional methodological differences. This error impacted prior reporting periods, starting prior to fiscal year 2009, and impacted deferred tax 
asset classification between current and non-current assets.  

   
(2) - Amortization of intangibles — The Company determined that $4.2 million in intangible assets originating from a November 2009 

acquisition were never amortized.  The impact of this adjustment was $2.0 million in amortization expense not properly recorded during the 
periods from the quarter ended December 31, 2009 through the end of fiscal year 2013.  

   
(3) - Other adjustments — The Company also corrected a number of other immaterial errors, including the cumulative translation 

adjustment related to the purchase of treasury shares, and an adjustment affecting the amount of property, plant and equipment purchased during 
the first quarter of fiscal year 2013.  

   
Consolidated Statements of Operations.  
   

The following table presents the impact of the accounting errors on the Company’s previously-reported consolidated statement of 
operations for the three and six months ended September 30, 2012 (in thousands):  
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      Three Months ended September 30, 2012  
   Six Months ended September 30, 2012  

   
      As Reported  

   Adjustments  
   As Revised  

   As Reported  
   Adjustments  

   As Revised 
   

            (Unaudited)  
               (Unaudited)  

         
                                    
Net sales  

   $ 547,693 
   150 (1)  $ 547,693 

   $ 1,016,297 
   (1,015 )(1)  $ 1,016,297 

   
Cost of goods sold  

   351,698 
   71 (2)  351,919 

   676,050 
   142 (2)  675,177 

   
Gross profit  

   195,995 
   (221 )  195,774 

   340,247 
   873 

   341,120 
   

Operating expenses:  
                                 

Marketing and selling  
   110,522 

   —
   110,522 

   211,419 
   —

   211,419 
   

Research and development  
   38,019 

   95 (2)  38,114 
   76,947 

   190 (2)  77,137 
   

General and administrative  
   25,980 

   —
   25,980 

   58,460 
   —

   58,460 
   

Restructuring charges (credits)  
   (2,671 )  —

   (2,671 )  28,556 
   —

   28,556 
   

Total operating expenses  
   171,850 

   95 
   171,945 

   375,382 
   190 

   375,572 
   

Operating income (loss)  
   24,145 

   (316 )  23,829 
   (35,135 )  683 

   (34,452 )  
Interest income, net  

   153 
   —

   153 
   537 

   —
   537 

   
Other expense, net  

   (509 )  —
   (509 )  (668 )  —

   (668 )  
Income (loss) before income taxes  

   23,789 
   (316 )  23,473 

   (35,266 )  683 
   (34,583 )  

Benefit from income taxes  
   (31,076 )  —

   (31,076 )  (37,986 )  —
   (37,986 )  

Net Income  
   $ 54,865 

   $ (316 )  $ 54,549 
   $ 2,720 

   $ 683 
   $ 3,403 

   
                                    
Net income per share:  

   $ 0.35 
        $ 0.35 

   $ 0.02 
        $ 0.02 

   
Basic  

   $ 0.35 
        $ 0.35 

   $ 0.02 
        $ 0.02 

   
Diluted  

                                 
Shares used to compute net income per share:  

                                 
Basic  

   156,736 
        156,736 

   158,723 
        158,723 

   
Diluted  

   157,932 
        157,932 

   159,853 
        159,853 
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Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income  
   

The Company’s following table presents the impact of the accounting errors on the Company’s previously-reported consolidated 
statements of comprehensive income for the three and six months ended September 30, 2012 (in thousands):  
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      Three Months ended September 30, 2012  
   Six Months ended September 30, 2012  

   
      As Reported  

   Adjustments  
   As Revised  

   As Reported  
   Adjustments  

   As Revised  
   

            (Unaudited)  
               (Unaudited)  

         
                                    
Net Income  

   $ 54,865 
   $ (150 )(1)  $ 54,549 

   $ 2,720 
   $ 1,015 (1)  $ 3,403 

   
           $ (166 )(2)  

          $ (332 )(2)  
     

                                    
Other comprehensive income:  

                                 
Foreign currency translation gain (loss)  

   4,970 
   (2,529 )(3)  2,441 

   (1,295 )  (3,125 )(3)  (4,420 )  
                                    

Change in net loss, and prior service cost 
related to defined benefit pension 
plans:  

                                 
Net loss and prior service cost  

   6,457 
   —

   6,457 
   7,920 

        7,920 
   

Less amortization included in 
operating expenses  

   301 
   —

   301 
   756 

   —
   756 

   
                                    

Net change in hedging gain (loss):  
                                 

Unrealized hedging loss  
   (5,466 )  —

   (5,466 )  (4,261 )  —
   (4,261 )  

Less reclassification adjustment for 
gain included in cost of goods sold  

   1,683 
   —

   1,683 
   1,577 

   —
   1,577 

   
                                    

Net change in unrealized investment loss: 
                                 

Reclassification adjustment for gain 
included in other income (expense)  

   —
   —

   —
   (343 )  —

   (343 )  
                                    
Other comprehensive income  

   7,945 
   (2,529 )  5,416 

   4,354 
   (3,125 )  1,229 

   
Total comprehensive income  

   $ 62,810 
   $ (2,845 )  $ 59,965 

   $ 7,074 
   $ (2,442 )  $ 4,632 
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows  
   

The following table presents the impact of the accounting errors on the Company’s previously-reported consolidated statement of cash 
flows for the six months ended September 30, 2012 (in thousands):  
   

   
Other Revisions  
   

During fiscal year 2013, the Company also determined that geographic net sales (Note 13), previously reported in its Form 10-Q for the 
three and six months ended September 30, 2012, were not property stated. These revisions had no impact on the previously reported consolidated 
statements of operations.  
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      Six Months ended  
   

      September 30, 2012  
   

      As Reported  
   Adjustments  

   As Revised  
   

            (Unaudited)  
         

Cash flows from operating activities:  
                  

Net income  
   $ 2,720 

   $ 1,015 (1)  $ 3,403 
   

           (332 )(2)  
     

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating 
activities:  

                  
Depreciation  

   22,307 
   —

   22,307 
   

Amortization of other intangible assets  
   12,257 

   332 (2)  12,589 
   

Share-based compensation expense  
   13,437 

   —
   13,437 

   
Gain on sale of available-for-sale securities  

   (831 )  —
   (831 ) 

Excess tax benefits from share-based compensation  
   (22 )  —

   (22 ) 
Deferred income taxes and other  

   (3,806 )  —
   (3,806 ) 

Changes in assets and liabilities, net of acquisition:  
             —

   
Accounts receivable  

   (58,272 )  (261 )(3)  (58,533 ) 
Inventories  

   (30,733 )  (1,092 )(3)  (31,825 ) 
Other assets  

   (7,339 )  (231 )(3)  (7,570 ) 
Accounts payable  

   68,875 
   2,220 (3)  71,095 

   
Accrued and other liabilities  

   (9,498 )  (1,015 )(1)  (10,997 ) 
   

        (484 )(3)  
     

Net cash provided by operating activities  
   9,095 

   152 
   9,247 

   
Cash flows from investing activities:  

             —
   

Purchases of property, plant and equipment  
   (30,522 )  (2,295 )(3)  (32,817 ) 

Investment in privately-held company  
   (3,970 )  —

   (3,970 ) 
Proceeds from sale of available-for-sale securities  

   917 
   —

   917 
   

Purchases of trading investments for deferred compensation plan  
   (1,648 )  —

   (1,648 ) 
Proceeds from sales of trading investments for deferred compensation plan  

   1,638 
   —

   1,638 
   

Net cash used in investing activities  
   (33,585 )  (2,295 )  (35,880 ) 

Cash flows from financing activities:  
             —

   
Payment of cash dividends  

   (133,462 )  —
   (133,462 ) 

Purchases of treasury shares  
   (89,955 )  2,143 (3)  (87,812 ) 

Proceeds from sale of shares upon exercise of options and purchase rights  
   9,008 

   —
   9,008 

   
Tax withholdings related to net share settlements of restricted stock units  

   (635 )  —
   (635 ) 

Excess tax benefits from share-based compensation  
   22 

   —
   22 

   
Net cash used in financing activities  

   (215,022 )  2,143 
   (212,879 ) 

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents  
   (1,825 )  —

   (1,825 ) 
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents  

   (241,337 )  —
   (241,337 ) 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period  
   478,370 

   —
   478,370 

   
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period  

   $ 237,033 
   $ —

   $ 237,033 
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Note 3 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies  
   
Basis of Presentation  
   

The consolidated interim financial statements include the accounts of Logitech and its subsidiaries. All intercompany balances and 
transactions have been eliminated. The consolidated financial statements are presented in accordance with U.S. GAAP (accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America) for interim financial information and therefore do not include all the information required by 
U.S. GAAP for complete financial statements. They should be read in conjunction with the Company’s audited consolidated financial statements 
for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2013, included in its Annual Report on Form 10-K/A. In the opinion of management, these consolidated 
financial statements include all adjustments, consisting of normal recurring adjustments, necessary for a fair statement of the results for the 
periods presented. Operating results for the three and six months ended September 30, 2013 are not necessarily indicative of the results that may 
be expected for the year ending March 31, 2014, or any future periods.  
   

Certain prior period financial statement amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current period presentation with no impact on 
previously reported net income.  

   
Fiscal Years  
   

The Company’s fiscal years end on March 31. Interim quarters are thirteen-week periods, each ending on a Friday.  For purposes of 
presentation, the Company has indicated its quarterly periods as ending on the month end.  

   
Changes in Significant Accounting Policies  
   

There have been no substantial changes in the Company’s significant accounting policies during the three and six months ended 
September 30, 2013, compared with the significant accounting policies described in its Annual Report on Form 10-K/A for the fiscal year ended 
March 31, 2013.  

   
Use of Estimates  
   

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions 
that affect reported amounts of assets, liabilities, net sales and expenses, and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. Examples of 
significant estimates and assumptions made by management involve the fair value of goodwill, accruals for customer programs, inventory 
valuation, valuation allowances for deferred tax assets and warranty accruals. Although these estimates are based on management’s best 
knowledge of current events and actions that may impact the Company in the future, actual results could differ from those estimates.  

   
Recent Accounting Pronouncements  
   

In July 2013, the FASB issued ASU No. 2013-11, “ Presentation of an Unrecognized Tax Benefit When a Net Operating Loss 
Carryforward, a Similar Tax Loss, or a Tax Credit Carryforward Exists ”. The ASU provides explicit guidance on the financial statement 
presentation of an unrecognized tax benefit when a net operating loss carryforward, a similar tax loss, or a tax credit carryforward exists. ASU 
No. 2013-11 is effective for interim and annual periods beginning after December 15, 2013.  The Company does not expect the adoption of this 
guidance to have a material impact on its consolidated financial statements.  
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Note 4 — Net Income per Share  
   

The computations of basic and diluted net income per share for the Company were as follows (in thousands, except per share amounts):  
   

   
Share equivalents attributable to outstanding stock options and RSUs (restricted stock units) of 15,408,542  and 14,929,137 for the three 

months ended September 30, 2013 and 2012, and 16,829,424 and 15,127,253  for the six months ended September 30, 2013 and 2012 were 
excluded from the calculation of diluted net income per share because the combined exercise price, average unamortized fair value and assumed 
tax benefits upon exercise of these options and RSUs were greater than the average market price of the Company’s shares, and therefore their 
inclusion would have been anti-dilutive.  

   
Note 5 — Employee Benefit Plans  
   
Employee Share Purchase Plans and Stock Incentive Plans  
   

As of September 30, 2013, the Company offers the 2006 ESPP (2006 Employee Share Purchase Plan (Non-U.S.)), the 1996 ESPP (1996 
Employee Share Purchase Plan (U.S.)), the 2006 Plan (2006 Stock Incentive Plan) and the 2012 Plan (2012 Stock Inducement Equity Plan). On 
September 4, 2013, at the fiscal year 2013 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders, Logitech shareholders approved amendments to and 
restatement of the1996 ESPP and the 2006 ESPP, which included the increase of 8.0 million additional shares to be issued under these plans. 
Shares issued to employees as a result of purchases or exercises under these plans are generally issued from shares held in treasury.  

   
The following table summarizes the share-based compensation expense and related tax benefit recognized for the three and six months 

ended September 30, 2013 and 2012 (in thousands):  
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      Three Months ended September 30,  
   Six Months ended September 30,  

   
      2013  

   2012  
   2013  

   2012  
   

            As Revised  
         As Revised  

   
                          
Net income  

   $ 14,398 
   $ 54,549 

   $ 15,441 
   $ 3,403 

   
                          
Weighted average shares - basic  

   159,969 
   156,736 

   159,637 
   158,723 

   
Effect of potentially dilutive share equivalents  

   1,214 
   1,196 

   1,238 
   1,130 

   
Weighted average shares - diluted  

   161,183 
   157,932 

   160,875 
   159,853 

   
                          
Net income per share - basic  

   $ 0.09 
   $ 0.35 

   $ 0.10 
   $ 0.02 

   
Net income per share - diluted  

   $ 0.09 
   $ 0.35 

   $ 0.10 
   $ 0.02 

   

      Three Months ended  
   Six Months ended  

   
      September 30,  

   September 30,  
   

      2013  
   2012  

   2013  
   2012  

   
                          
Cost of goods sold  

   $ 594 
   $ 608 

   $ 1,171 
   $ 1,397 

   
Share-based compensation expense included in gross profit  

   594 
   608 

   1,171 
   1,397 

   
                          
Operating expenses:  

                       
Marketing and selling  

   1,017 
   2,644 

   2,923 
   4,424 

   
Research and development  

   840 
   1,763 

   1,934 
   3,588 

   
General and administrative  

   1,658 
   2,251 

   2,471 
   4,028 

   
Share-based compensation expense included in operating 

expenses  
   3,515 

   6,658 
   7,328 

   12,040 
   

Total share-based compensation expense  
   4,109 

   7,266 
   8,499 

   13,437 
   

Income tax benefit  
   (1,300 )  (1,671 )  (2,175 )  (3,047 ) 

Share-based compensation expense, net of income tax  
   $ 2,809 

   $ 5,595 
   $ 6,324 

   $ 10,390 
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As of September 30 and March 31, 2013, $0.4 million and $0.4 million of share-based compensation cost was capitalized to inventory.  
   

Defined Contribution Plans  
   

Certain of the Company’s subsidiaries have defined contribution employee benefit plans covering all or a portion of their employees. 
Contributions to these plans are discretionary for certain plans and are based on specified or statutory requirements for others. The charges to 
expense for these plans for the three months ended September 30, 2013 and 2012 were $1.6 million and $1.8 million, and for the six months 
ended September 30, 2013 and 2012 were $3.3 million and $4.6 million.  

   
Defined Benefit Plans  
   

Certain of the Company’s subsidiaries sponsor defined benefit pension plans or non-retirement post-employment benefits covering 
substantially all of their employees. Benefits are provided based on employees’ years of service and earnings, or in accordance with applicable 
employee benefit regulations. The Company’s practice is to fund amounts sufficient to meet the requirements set forth in the applicable 
employee benefit and tax regulations.  

   
During the quarter ended September 30, 2012, the Company’s Swiss defined benefit pension plan was subject to re-measurement due to the 

number of plan participants affected by the April 2012 restructuring described in Note 14. The re-measurement resulted in the realization of $2.2 
million in previously unrecognized losses residing within accumulated other comprehensive loss that the Company recognized during the three 
months ended September 30, 2012.  

   
The net periodic benefit cost for defined benefit pension plans and non-retirement post-employment benefit obligations for the three and six 

months ended September 30, 2013 and 2012 were as follows (in thousands):  
   

   
Note 6 — Income Taxes  
   

The Company is incorporated in Switzerland but operates in various countries with differing tax laws and rates.  Further, a portion of the 
Company’s income before taxes and the provision for income taxes are generated outside of Switzerland.  

   
The income tax provision for the three months ended September 30, 2013 was $3.1 million based on an effective income tax rate of 17.5% 

of pre-tax income. The income tax benefit for the three months ended September 30, 2012 was $31.1 million based on an effective income tax 
rate of (132.4%) of pre-tax income.   For the six months ended September 30, 2013, the income tax provision was $2.3 million based on an 
effective income tax rate of 12.7% of pre-tax income.  For the six months ended September 30, 2012, the income tax benefit was $38.0 million 
based on an effective income rate of 109.8% of pre-tax loss.  The change in the effective income tax rate for the three and six months ended 
September 30, 2013, compared with the same periods in fiscal year 2013, is primarily due to the mix of income and losses in the various tax 
jurisdictions in which the Company operates, and the treatment of restructuring expenses as a discrete event in determining the annual effective 
tax rate in fiscal year 2013.  In addition, there was a discrete tax benefit of $32.1 million in the three months ended September 30, 2012 from the 
reversal of uncertain tax positions resulting from the closure of federal income tax examinations in the United States.  
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      Three Months ended September 30,  
   Six Months ended September 30,  

   
      2013  

   2012  
   2013  

   2012  
   

                          
Service cost  

   $ 1,972 
   $ 1,726 

   $ 3,929 
   $ 3,601 

   
Interest cost  

   430 
   418 

   857 
   912 

   
Expected return on plan assets  

   (490 )  (525 )  (990 )  (618 ) 
Amortization of net transition obligation  

   1 
   1 

   2 
   2 

   
Amortization of net prior service cost  

   52 
   38 

   104 
   76 

   
Recognized net actuarial loss  

   256 
   262 

   508 
   678 

   
Settlement cost  

   —
   2,254 

   —
   2,254 

   
Net periodic benefit cost  

   $ 2,221 
   $ 4,174 

   $ 4,410 
   $ 6,905 
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In fiscal year 2013, the Company incurred $43.7 million of restructuring charges and related expenses to simplify the organization and to 
align the organization to its strategic priorities, $28.6 million of such charges were incurred through the second quarter of fiscal year 2013 with 
the remaining balance primarily incurred in the fourth quarter of the fiscal year 2013. In the three and six months ended September 30, 2013, the 
Company incurred restructuring-related termination benefits and lease exit costs in the amount of $5.5 million and $7.8 million, respectively. In 
determining the estimated fiscal 2014 annual effective tax rate, the restructuring activities were not treated as a discrete event as the charges were 
not significantly unusual and infrequent in nature, unlike those that were incurred in fiscal year 2013.   The tax benefit associated with the 
restructuring in the six months ended September 30, 2013 was not material.  

   
As of September 30 and March 31, 2013, the total amount of unrecognized tax benefits and related accrued interest and penalties due to 

uncertain tax positions was $103.5 million and $102.0 million, of which $90.8 million and $90.3 million would affect the effective income tax 
rate if recognized.  The Company classified the unrecognized tax benefits as non-current income taxes payable.  

   
The Company continues to recognize interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax positions in income tax expense. As of September 30 

and March 31, 2013, the Company had approximately $6.9 million and $6.6 million of accrued interest and penalties related to uncertain tax 
positions.  

   
The Company files Swiss and foreign tax returns. For all these tax returns, the Company is generally not subject to tax examinations for 

years prior to fiscal year 2001. The Company is under examination and has received assessment notices in foreign tax jurisdictions. At this time, 
the Company is not able to estimate the potential impact that these examinations may have on income tax expense. If the examinations are 
resolved unfavorably, there is a possibility they may have a material negative impact on the Company’s results of operations.  

   
Although the Company has adequately provided for uncertain tax positions, the provisions on these positions may change as revised 

estimates are made or the underlying matters are settled or otherwise resolved. It is not possible at this time to reasonably estimate changes in the 
unrecognized tax benefits within the next twelve months.  
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Note 7 — Balance Sheet Components  
   

The following table presents the components of certain balance sheet asset amounts as of September 30 and March 31, 2013 (in thousands):  
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      September 30, 2013  
   March 31, 2013  

   
                
Accounts receivable:  

             
Accounts receivable  

   $ 413,696 
   $ 325,870 

   
Allowance for doubtful accounts  

   (1,071 )  (2,153 ) 
Allowance for returns  

   (19,230 )  (21,883 ) 
Allowances for cooperative marketing arrangements  

   (26,010 )  (24,160 ) 
Allowances for customer incentive programs  

   (44,788 )  (42,857 ) 
Allowances for pricing programs  

   (63,739 )  (55,252 ) 

      $ 258,858 
   $ 179,565 

   
Inventories:  

             
Raw materials  

   $ 34,020 
   $ 37,504 

   
Work-in-process  

   75 
   41 

   
Finished goods  

   258,682 
   223,538 

   
      $ 292,777 

   $ 261,083 
   

Other current assets:  
             

Income tax and value-added tax refund receivables  
   $ 25,113 

   $ 17,403 
   

Deferred taxes  
   29,109 

   25,400 
   

Prepaid expenses and other  
   11,586 

   15,300 
   

      $ 65,808 
   $ 58,103 

   
Property, plant and equipment:  

             
Plant, buildings and improvements  

   $ 68,642 
   $ 70,009 

   
Equipment  

   131,913 
   129,868 

   
Computer equipment  

   32,551 
   42,437 

   
Computer software  

   80,136 
   80,930 

   
      313,242 

   323,244 
   

Less: accumulated depreciation  
   (236,845 )  (247,469 ) 

      76,397 
   75,775 

   
Construction-in-progress  

   7,890 
   9,047 

   
Land  

   2,846 
   2,827 

   
      $ 87,133 

   $ 87,649 
   

Other assets:  
             

Deferred taxes  
   $ 51,121 

   $ 53,035 
   

Trading investments  
   15,435 

   15,599 
   

Other  
   5,261 

   6,464 
   

      $ 71,817 
   $ 75,098 
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The following table presents the components of certain balance sheet liability amounts as of September 30 and March 31, 2013 (in 
thousands):  

   

   
The following table presents the changes in the allowance for doubtful accounts during the three and six months ended September 30, 2013 

and 2012 (in thousands):  
   

   
Note 8 — Financial Instruments  
   
Fair Value Measurements  
   

The Company considers fair value as the exchange price that would be received for an asset or paid to transfer a liability (an exit price) in 
the principal or most advantageous market for the asset or liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement 
date. The Company utilizes the following three-level fair value hierarchy to establish the priorities of the inputs used to measure fair value:  

   
•                     Level 1 — Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.  
   
•                     Level 2 — Observable inputs other than quoted market prices included in Level 1, such as quoted prices for similar assets and 

liabilities in active markets; quoted prices for identical or similar assets and liabilities in markets that are not active; or other inputs that 
are observable or can be corroborated by observable market data.  

   
•                     Level 3 — Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and that are significant to the fair value of the assets 

or liabilities. This includes certain pricing models, discounted cash flow methodologies and similar techniques that use significant 
unobservable inputs.  
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      September 30, 2013  
   March 31, 2013  

   
                
Accrued and other current liabilities:  

             
Accrued personnel expenses  

   $ 56,906 
   $ 40,502 

   
Accrued marketing expenses  

   13,039 
   11,005 

   
Indirect customer incentive programs  

   32,539 
   29,464 

   
Accrued restructuring  

   5,566 
   13,458 

   
Deferred revenue  

   21,562 
   22,698 

   
Accrued freight and duty  

   8,596 
   5,882 

   
Value-added tax payable  

   8,477 
   8,544 

   
Accrued royalties  

   4,012 
   3,358 

   
Warranty accrual  

   12,634 
   11,878 

   
Employee benefit plan obligations  

   1,571 
   4,351 

   
Income taxes payable  

   5,392 
   2,463 

   
Other accrued liabilities  

   49,352 
   39,171 

   
      $ 219,646 

   $ 192,774 
   

Non-current liabilities:  
             

Income taxes payable  
   $ 100,310 

   $ 98,827 
   

Warranty accrual  
   9,451 

   8,660 
   

Obligation for deferred compensation  
   15,435 

   15,631 
   

Employee benefit plan obligations  
   40,728 

   35,963 
   

Deferred rent  
   23,690 

   24,136 
   

Deferred taxes  
   1,872 

   1,989 
   

Other liabilities  
   11,070 

   10,676 
   

      $ 202,556 
   $ 195,882 

   

      Three Months ended September 30,  
   Six Months ended September 30,  

   
      2013  

   2012  
   2013  

   2012  
   

                          
Beginning balance  

   $ (2,189 )  $ (2,321 )  $ (2,153 )  $ (2,472 ) 
Bad debt expense reversal, net  

   428 
   103 

   359 
   189 

   
Write-offs, net of recoveries  

   690 
   (21 )  723 

   44 
   

Ending balance  
   $ (1,071 )  $ (2,239 )  $ (1,071 )  $ (2,239 ) 
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The Company did not have level 3 assets and liabilities as of September 30 and March 31, 2013. The following table presents the 
Company’s financial assets and liabilities, that were accounted for at fair value, excluding assets related to the Company’s defined benefit 
pension plans, classified by the level within the fair value hierarchy (in thousands):  

   

   

(1) Excludes cash balances of $195.3 million as of September 30, 2013 and $214.7 million as of March 31, 2013.  
   

The following table presents the changes in the Company’s Level 3 available-for-sale securities during the six months ended September 30, 
2013 and 2012 (in thousands):  
   

   
Cash and Cash Equivalents  
   

Cash equivalents consist of bank demand deposits and time deposits. The time deposits have original maturities of three months or less. 
Cash equivalents are carried at cost, which approximates fair value.  
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      September 30, 2013  
   March 31, 2013  

   
      Level 1  

   Level 2  
   Level 1  

   Level 2  
   

                          
Cash equivalents (1)  

   $ 99,510 
   $ —

   $ 119,073 
   $ —

   
Trading investments for deferred compensation plan:  

                       
Money market funds  

   3,311 
   —

   4,220 
   —

   
Mutual funds  

   12,124 
   —

   11,379 
   —

   
Foreign exchange derivative assets  

   —
   126 

   —
   1,197 

   
Total assets at fair value  

   $ 114,945 
   $ 126 

   $ 134,672 
   $ 1,197 

   
                          
Foreign exchange derivative liabilities  

   $ —
   $ 1,546 

   $ —
   $ 707 

   
Total liabilities at fair value  

   $ —
   $ 1,546 

   $ —
   $ 707 

   

      September 30, 2013  
   

      2013  
   2012  

   
                
Beginning balance  

   $ —
   $ 429 

   
Proceeds from sales of securities  

   —
   (917 ) 

Reversal of unrealized gains previously recognized in accumulated other comprehensive 
loss  

   —
   831 

   
Reversal of unrealized losses previously recognized in accumulated other 

comprehensive loss  
   —

   (343 ) 

Ending balance  
   $ —

   $ —
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Investment Securities  
   

The Company’s investment securities portfolio consists of marketable securities (money market and mutual funds) related to a deferred 
compensation plan at September 30, 2013 and March 31, 2013.  

   
The marketable securities related to the deferred compensation plan are classified as non-current other assets. Since participants in the 

deferred compensation plan may select the mutual funds in which their compensation deferrals are invested within the confines of the Rabbi 
Trust which holds the marketable securities, the Company has designated these marketable securities as trading investments, although there is no 
intent to actively buy and sell securities within the objective of generating profits on short-term difference in market prices. Management has 
classified the investments as non-current assets because final sale of the investments or realization of proceeds by plan participants is not 
expected within the Company’s normal operating cycle of one year. The marketable securities are recorded at a fair value of $15.4 million and 
$15.6 million as of September 30 and March 31, 2013, based on quoted market prices. Quoted market prices are observable inputs that are 
classified as Level 1 within the fair value hierarchy. Earnings, and realized and unrealized gains and losses on trading investments are included 
in other income (expense). Unrealized trading gains of $0.4 million and unrealized trading losses of $0.2 million are included in other income 
(expense) for the three and six months ended September 30, 2013, respectively and relate to the trading securities held at September 30, 2013. 
Unrealized trading gains of $0.5 million and $0.2 million are included in other income (expense) for the three and six months ended 
September 30, 2012 and relate to trading securities held at September 30, 2012.  

   
Derivative Financial Instruments  
   

The following table presents the fair values of the Company’s derivative instruments and their locations on its Consolidated Balance Sheets 
as of September 30 and March 31, 2013 (in thousands):  
   

   
The following table presents the amounts of gains and losses on the Company’s derivative instruments for the three and six months ended 

September 30, 2013 and 2012 and their locations on its consolidated statements of operations (in thousands):  
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      Asset Derivatives  
   Liability Derivatives  

   
            Fair Value  

         Fair Value  
   

            September 30, 
   March 31,  

         September 30, 
   March 31,  

   
      Location  

   2013  
   2013  

   Location  
   2013  

   2013  
   

                                    
Derivatives designated as hedging 

instruments:  
                                 

Cash flow hedges  
   Other assets  

   $ 8 
   $ 1,165 

   Other liabilities  
   $ 754 

   $ —
   

            8 
   1,165 

         754 
   —

   
                                      
Derivatives not designated as 

hedging instruments:  
                                   

Foreign exchange forward 
contracts  

   Other assets  
   118 

   —
   Other liabilities  

   240 
   270 

   
Foreign exchange swap 

contracts  
   Other assets  

   —
   32 

   Other liabilities  
   552 

   437 
   

            118 
   32 

         792 
   707 

   
                                      
            $ 126 

   $ 1,197 
         $ 1,546 

   $ 707 
   

      

Net Amount of Gain/(Loss)  
Deferred as a Component  

of Accumulated Other  
Comprehensive Loss  

   

Location of  
Gain/(Loss)  

Reclassified from  
Accumulated  

Other  
Comprehensive  

   

Amount of Gain/(Loss)  
Reclassified from  

Accumulated Other  
Comprehensive Loss into  

Income  
   

Location of  
Gain/(Loss)  

Recognized in Income  
   

Amount of Gain/(Loss)  
Recognized in Income  

Immediately  
   

      2013  
   2012  

   Loss into Income  
   2013  

   2012  
   Immediately  

   2013  
   2012  

   
Derivatives designated as 

hedging instruments:  
                                            

Cash flow hedges  
   $  (1,467 )  $  (3,783 )  Cost of goods sold  

   $  (94 )  $  (1,683 )  Other income/expense  
   $  16 

   $  120 
   

      (1,467 )  (3,783 )  
      (94 )  (1,683 )  

      16 
   120 

   
                                               

Derivatives not designated 
as hedging 
instruments:  

                                             
Foreign exchange 

forward contracts  
   —

   —
              —

   Other income/expense  
   (482 )  (92 ) 

Foreign exchange 
swap contracts  

   —
   —

              —
   Other income/expense  

   5 
   (390 ) 

      —
   —

           
   —

         (477 )  (482 ) 

      $  (1,467 )  $  (3,783 )  
      $  (94 )  $  (1,683 )  

      $  (461 )  $  (362 ) 
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Cash Flow Hedges  
   

The Company enters into foreign exchange forward contracts to hedge against exposure to changes in foreign currency exchange rates 
related to its subsidiaries’ forecasted inventory purchases. The Company has one entity with a euro functional currency that purchases inventory 
in U.S. dollars. The primary risk managed by using derivative instruments is the foreign currency exchange rate risk. The Company has 
designated these derivatives as cash flow hedges. Logitech does not use derivative financial instruments for trading or speculative purposes. 
These hedging contracts mature within four months, and are denominated in the same currency as the underlying transactions. Gains and losses 
in the fair value of the effective portion of the hedges are deferred as a component of accumulated other comprehensive loss until the hedged 
inventory purchases are sold, at which time the gains or losses are reclassified to cost of goods sold. The Company assesses the effectiveness of 
the hedges by comparing changes in the spot rate of the currency underlying the forward contract with changes in the spot rate of the currency in 
which the forecasted transaction will be consummated. If the underlying transaction being hedged fails to occur or if a portion of the hedge does 
not generate offsetting changes in the foreign currency exposure of forecasted inventory purchases, the Company immediately recognizes the 
gain or loss on the associated financial instrument in other income (expense). Such gains and losses were immaterial during the three and six 
months ended September 30, 2013 and 2012. Cash flows from such hedges are classified as operating activities in the consolidated statements of 
cash flows. The notional amounts of foreign exchange forward contracts outstanding related to forecasted inventory purchases were $56.7 
million (€41.9 million) and $38.5 million (€30.1 million) at September 30, 2013 and March 31, 2013, respectively. The notional amount 
represents the future cash flows under contracts to purchase foreign currencies.  

   
Other Derivatives  
   

The Company also enters into foreign exchange forward contracts to reduce the short-term effects of foreign currency fluctuations on 
certain foreign currency receivables or payables. These forward contracts generally mature within three months. The Company may also enter 
into foreign exchange swap contracts to economically extend the terms of its foreign exchange forward contracts. The primary risk managed by 
using forward and swap contracts is the foreign currency exchange rate risk. The gains or losses on foreign exchange forward contracts are 
recognized in other income (expense) based on the changes in fair value.  

   
The notional amounts of foreign exchange forward contracts outstanding at September 30 and March 31, 2013 relating to foreign currency 

receivables or payables were $16.4 million and $14.2 million. Open forward contracts as of September 30, 2013 consisted of contracts in U.S. 
dollars to purchase Taiwanese dollars and contracts in euros to sell British pounds at future dates at pre-determined exchange rates. Open 
forward contracts as of March 31, 2013 consisted of contracts in U.S. dollars to purchase Taiwanese dollars and contracts in euros to sell British 
pounds at future dates at pre-determined exchange rates. The notional amounts of foreign exchange swap contracts outstanding at September 30 
and March 31, 2013 were $31.7 million and $19.6 million. Swap contracts outstanding at September 30, 2013 consisted of contracts in Mexican 
Pesos, Japanese Yen and Australian Dollars. Swap contracts outstanding at March 31, 2013 consisted of contracts in Mexican Pesos, Japanese 
Yen and Australian Dollars.  
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Net Amount of Gain/(Loss)  
Deferred as a Component  

of Accumulated Other  
Comprehensive Loss  

   

Location of  
Gain/(Loss)  

Reclassified from  
Accumulated  

Other  
Comprehensive  

   

Amount of Gain/(Loss)  
Reclassified from  

Accumulated Other  
Comprehensive Loss into  

Income  
   

Location of  
Gain/(Loss)  

Recognized in Income  
   

Amount of Gain/(Loss)  
Recognized in Income  

Immediately  
   

      2013  
   2012  

   Loss into Income  
   2013  

   2012  
   Immediately  

   2013  
   2012  

   
Derivatives designated as 

hedging instruments:  
                                            

Cash flow hedges  
   $  (2,102 )  $  (2,684 )  Cost of goods sold  

   $  184 
   $  (1,577 )  Other income/expense  

   $  46 
   $  172 

   
      (2,102 )  (2,684 )  

      184 
   (1,577 )  

      46 
   172 

   
                                                

Derivatives not designated 
as hedging 
instruments:  

                                             
Foreign exchange 

forward contracts  
   —

   —
              —

   Other income/expense  
   165 

   (837 )  
Foreign exchange swap 

contracts  
   —

   —
              —

   Other income/expense  
   743 

   435 
   

      —
   —

              —
         908 

   (402 )  
      $  (2,102 )  $  (2,684 )  

      $  184 
   $  (1,577 )  

      $  954 
   $  (230 )  
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The fair value of all foreign exchange forward contracts and foreign exchange swap contracts is determined based on observable market 
transactions of spot currency rates and forward rates. Cash flows from these contracts are classified as operating activities in the consolidated 
statements of cash flows.  

   
Note 9 — Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets  
   
Interim Goodwill Impairment Testing  
   

During the second quarter of fiscal year 2014, the Company implemented a restructuring plan (“this plan”) associated with its video 
conferencing reporting unit to simplify its organization, to better align costs with its current business, and to free up resources to pursue growth 
opportunities. This plan resulted in restructuring charges of $5.4 million in termination benefits to affected employees and $0.6 million in lease 
exit costs.  This plan also involved a $5.2 million write-off of video conferencing discontinued products. In addition, actual performance was 
significantly less than projected results for the periods since the most recent goodwill impairment assessment performed during the third quarter 
of fiscal 2013, due to a combination of a changing industry landscape caused by a shift to less expensive, cloud-based video conferencing 
solutions, an evolving LifeSize product line and challenges in execution. These factors resulted in the Company concluding that it is more likely 
than not that the fair value of its video conferencing reporting unit was less than its carrying amount.   The Company, therefore, performed an 
interim Step 1 assessment of its video conferencing reporting unit during the second quarter of fiscal year 2014.  

   
The Step 1 assessment involved measuring the recoverability of goodwill by comparing the video conferencing reporting unit’s carrying 

amount, including goodwill, to the fair value of the reporting unit. The fair value was estimated using both an income approach employing a 
discounted cash flow (“DCF”) model and a market approach. The DCF model was based on projected cash flows from the Company’s most 
recent forecast, which was based on a number of key assumptions, including, but not limited to, discount rate, compounded annual growth rate 
(“CAGR”) during the forecast period, and terminal value. The terminal value was based on an exit price at the end of the assessment forecast 
using an earnings multiple applied to the final year of the assessment forecast. The discount rate was applied to the projected cash flows to 
reflect the risks inherent in the timing and amount of the projected cash flows, including the terminal value, and was derived from the weighted 
average cost of capital of market participants in similar businesses. The market approach model was based on applying certain revenue multiples 
of comparable companies to the respective revenue and earnings metrics of the reporting unit. The DCF and market approach models require the 
exercise of significant judgment, including assumptions about appropriate discount rates, long-term growth rates for purposes of determining a 
terminal value at the end of the discrete forecast period, economic expectations, timing of expected future cash flows, and expectations of returns 
on equity that will be achieved. Such assumptions are subject to change as a result of changing economic and competitive conditions.  

   
Key assumptions used in the Step 1 income approach analysis included the appropriate discount rates, CAGR during the forecast period, 

and long-term growth rates for purposes of determining a terminal value at the end of the discrete forecast period. Sensitivity assessment of key 
assumptions for the video conferencing reporting unit Step 1 test is presented below.  

   
•                   CAGR assumption was 7.0% through fiscal year 2021, with a forecast decline in the remainder of fiscal year 2014, higher growth 

rates from fiscal years 2015 through 2019, reducing to a growth rate of 4% in fiscal year 2021. The forecasted growth contrasts 
with the recent performance of the video conferencing reporting unit, when the Company experienced a decline in revenue (see 
Note 13 for further details). A hypothetical decrease to 2.1% in the CAGR rate, holding all other assumptions constant, would 
decrease the fair value of the video conferencing reporting unit below its carrying value and hence would result in the reporting 
unit failing Step 1 of the goodwill impairment test.  

   
•                   Discount rate assumptions was 15%.  A hypothetical increase to 18.7% in the discount rate, holding all other assumptions 

constant, would result in the reporting unit failing Step 1 of the goodwill impairment test.  
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•                   Terminal growth rate assumption was 4%.  A hypothetical decrease to 0% in the terminal growth rate assumption, holding all 
other assumptions constant, would result in the reporting unit passing Step 1 of the goodwill impairment test.  

   
The assumptions used also included a reduction in future operating expenses as a percentage of revenue, driven by increases in forecast 

revenue as described above, combined with reduced operating expenses related to the fourth Q4’13 and Q2’14 restructuring activities.  
   
The Step 1 assessment resulted in the Company determining that the video conferencing reporting unit passed the Step 1 test because the 

estimated fair value exceeded its carrying value by approximately 23%, thus not requiring a Step 2 assessment of this reporting unit. This result 
presents a future video conferencing reporting unit goodwill impairment risk to the Company since the margin it cleared the current Step 1 
assessment was not significant.  

   
The Company continues to evaluate and monitor all key factors impacting the carrying value of its recorded goodwill, as well as other 

long-lived assets. There are a number of uncertainties associated with the key assumptions described above based primarily on the difficulty of 
predicting the Company’s revenues and profitability. The Company’s revenues and profitability are difficult to predict due to the nature of the 
markets in which it competes, fluctuating end-user demand, the uncertainty of current and future global economic conditions, and for many other 
reasons, including, but not limited to:  

   
•                   The video conferencing industry is characterized by continual performance enhancements and large, well-financed competitors. 

There is increased participation in the video conferencing market by companies such as Cisco Systems, Inc. and Polycom, Inc., and 
as a result, the Company expects competition in the industry to further intensify.  

   
•                   The Company’s revenues are impacted by end-user consumer demand and future global conditions, which could fluctuate abruptly 

and significantly during periods of uncertain economic conditions or geographic distress, as well as from shifts in consumer buying 
patterns.  

   
•                   The Company must incur a large portion of its costs in advance of sales orders, because it must plan research and production, 

order components, buy tooling equipment, and enter into development, sales and marketing, and other operating commitments 
prior to obtaining firm commitments from its customers. This makes it difficult for it to rapidly adjust its costs in response to a 
revenue shortfall.  

   
•                   Fluctuations in currency exchange rates can impact the Company’s revenues, expenses and profitability because it reports its 

financial statements in U.S. dollars, whereas a significant portion of its revenues and expenses are in other currencies.  
   

Determining the fair value of a reporting unit is judgmental in nature and requires the use of significant estimates and assumptions, 
including revenue growth rates and operating margins, discount rates and future market conditions, among others.  It is reasonably possible that 
changes in the judgments, assumptions and estimates that the Company used in assessing the fair value of the video conferencing reporting unit 
result in the goodwill to become impaired.  A goodwill impairment charge would have the effect of decreasing the Company’s earnings or 
increasing its losses in such period. If the Company is required to take a substantial impairment charge, its operating results would be materially 
and adversely affected in such period.  
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Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets  
   

During the first quarter of fiscal year 2014, the Company decided not to sell its Remotes product category, previously classified as 
assets held for sale as of March 31, 2013. This decision required the Company to assess whether the fair value of the goodwill and other 
intangibles related to its Remotes category were less than the carrying value of these assets. For other intangibles, carrying value was adjusted by 
amortization expense not taken during the period in which this category was classified as assets held for sale.  The Company concluded that the 
carrying value of these assets was less than their fair value.  Accordingly, the Company reclassified these assets from assets held for sale back to 
goodwill and other intangible assets at their respective carrying values, which amounted to $2.5 million for goodwill and $1.6 million for 
intangibles as of June 30, 2013.  

   
The following table summarizes the activity in the Company’s goodwill during the six months ended September 30, 2013 (in 

thousands):  
   

   
The Company’s acquired other intangible assets subject to amortization were as follows (in thousands):  

   

   

(1) During the six months ended September 30, 2013, the Company changed its classification of its Retail - Remote product category and digital 
video security product line from assets held for sale to assets held and used.  The increase in gross carrying amount and accumulated 
amortization between March 31, 2013 and September 30, 2013 was due to this change in classification.  

   
Amortization expense for other intangible assets was $5.3 million and $6.2 million for the three months ended September 30, 2013 and 

2012, and $10.5 million and $12.6 million for the six months ended September 30, 2013 and 2012. The Company expects that amortization 
expense for the remaining six months of fiscal year 2014 will be $7.3 million, and annual amortization expense for fiscal years 2015, 2016 and 
2017 will be $8.4 million, $1.8 million and $0.1 million, respectively.  

   
Note 10 — Financing Arrangements  
   

In December 2011, the Company entered into a Senior Revolving Credit Facility Agreement with a group of primarily Swiss banks that 
provides for a revolving multicurrency unsecured credit facility in an amount of up to $250.0 million. The Company may, upon notice to the 
lenders and subject to certain requirements, arrange with existing or new lenders to provide up to an aggregate of $150.0 million in additional 
commitments, for a total of $400.0 million of unsecured revolving credit. The credit facility may be used for working capital, general corporate 
purposes, and acquisitions. There were no outstanding borrowings under the credit facility at September 30, 2013.  
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      September 30, 2013  
   

      Peripherals  
   

Video  
Conferencing  

   Total  
   

Beginning balance  
   $ 216,744 

   $ 124,613 
   $ 341,357 

   
Additions  

   202 
   —

   202 
   

Foreign currency movements  
   —

   731 
   731 

   
Reclassified from assets held for sale  

   2,469 
   —

   2,469 
   

Ending balance  
   $ 219,415 

   $ 125,344 
   $ 344,759 

   

      September 30, 2013  
   March 31, 2013  

   
      Gross Carrying  

   Accumulated  
   Net Carrying  

   Gross Carrying  
   Accumulated  

   Net Carrying  
   

      Amount  
   Amortization  

   Amount  
   Amount  

   Amortization  
   Amount  

   
                                    
Trademark/tradename  

   $ 32,085 
   $ (30,127 )  $ 1,958 

   $ 29,842 
   $ (26,558 )  $ 3,284 

   
Technology (1)  

   92,007 
   (84,144 )  7,863 

   73,249 
   (61,560 )  11,689 

   
Customer contracts  

   40,345 
   (32,419 )  7,926 

   39,068 
   (28,017 )  11,051 

   
      $ 164,437 

   $ (146,690 )  $ 17,747 
   $ 142,159 

   $ (116,135 )  $ 26,024 
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The credit facility matures on October 31, 2016. The Company may prepay the loans under the credit facility in whole or in part at any time 

without premium or penalty. Borrowings under the credit facility will accrue interest at a per annum rate based on LIBOR (London Interbank 
Offered Rate), or EURIBOR (Euro Interbank Offered Rate) in the case of loans denominated in euros, plus a variable margin determined 
quarterly based on the ratio of senior debt-to-earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization for the preceding four-quarter period, 
plus, if applicable, an additional rate per annum intended to compensate the lenders for the cost of compliance with regulatory reserve 
requirements and other banking regulations. The Company also pays a quarterly commitment fee of 40% of the applicable margin on the 
available commitment. In connection with entering into the credit facility, the Company incurred non-recurring fees totaling $1.5 million, which 
are amortized on a straight-line basis over the term of the credit facility.  

   
The facility agreement contains representations, covenants, including threshold financial covenants, and events of default customary in 

Swiss credit markets. Affirmative covenants include covenants regarding reporting requirements, maintenance of insurance, maintenance of 
properties and compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and financial covenants that require the maintenance of net senior debt, interest 
cover and adjusted equity ratios determined in accordance with the terms of the facility. Negative covenants limit the ability of the Company and 
its subsidiaries, among other things, to grant liens, make investments, incur debt, make restricted payments, enter into a merger or acquisition, or 
sell, transfer or dispose of assets, in each case subject to certain exceptions. As of March 31, 2013, the Company was not in compliance with the 
interest coverage ratio of this credit facility. This situation resulted from the significant operating loss incurred during fiscal year 2013.  On 
June 13, 2013, the Company amended this credit facility to amend the definitions of (a) EBITDA to exclude the effect of impairment of goodwill 
and other intangible assets and (b) interest coverage ratio calculation to utilize EBITDA rather than EBIT. As of September 30, 2013, the 
Company was not in compliance with the adjusted equity ratio of this facility. This facility continues to be available for the Company’s use 
based on a temporary waiver of the adjusted equity ratio covenant through the end of the third quarter of fiscal year 2014.  

   
This credit facility stipulates that, upon an uncured event of default under the facility, the lenders may declare all or a portion of the 

outstanding obligations payable by the Company to be immediately due and payable, terminate their commitments and exercise other rights and 
remedies provided for under the facility. The events of default under the facility include, among other things, payment defaults, covenant 
defaults, inaccuracy of representations and warranties, cross defaults with certain other indebtedness, bankruptcy and insolvency events and 
events that have a material adverse effect (as defined in the facility). Upon a change of control of the Company, lenders whose commitments 
aggregate more than two-thirds of the total commitments under the facility may terminate the commitments and declare all outstanding 
obligations to be due and payable.  

   
The Company had several uncommitted, unsecured bank lines of credit aggregating $62 million at September 30, 2013. There are no 

financial covenants under these lines of credit with which the Company must comply. At September 30, 2013, the Company had no outstanding 
borrowings under these lines of credit. The Company also had credit lines related to corporate credit cards totaling $17.4 million at 
September 30, 2013. The outstanding borrowings under these credit lines are recorded in other current liabilities. There are no financial 
covenants under these credit lines.  

   
Note 11 — Commitments and Contingencies  
   
Operating Leases  
   

The Company leases facilities under operating leases, certain of which require it to pay property taxes, insurance and maintenance costs. 
Operating leases for facilities are generally renewable at the Company’s option and usually include escalation clauses linked to inflation. Future 
minimum annual rentals under non-cancelable operating leases at September 30, 2013 amounted to $84.7 million.  

   
In connection with its leased facilities, the Company has recognized a liability for asset retirement obligations representing the present value 

of estimated remediation costs to be incurred at lease expiration.  
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The following table describes changes to the Company’s asset retirement obligation liability for the three and six months ended September 30, 
2013 and 2012 (in thousands):  

   

   
Product Warranties  
   

All of the Company’s products are covered by warranty to be free from defects in material and workmanship for periods ranging from one 
year to five years. At the time of sale, the Company accrues a warranty liability for estimated costs to provide replacement products, parts or 
services to repair or replace products in satisfaction of the warranty obligation. The Company’s estimate of costs to fulfill its warranty 
obligations is based on historical experience and expectations of future requirements. When the Company experiences changes in warranty claim 
activity or costs associated with fulfilling those claims, the warranty liability is adjusted accordingly. Changes in the Company’s warranty 
liability for the three and six months ended September 30, 2013 and 2012 were as follows (in thousands):  

   

   

(1)          Represents warranty liability previously allocated to the Company’s Retail — Remotes product category which was classified as an asset 
held for sale as of March 31, 2013.  

   
Deferred Services Revenue  
   

The Company’s video conferencing reporting unit offers maintenance contracts for sale of the majority of its products which allow for 
customers to receive service and support in addition to the expiration of the product warranty contractual term.  The Company also provides 
installation services to its customer under contractual arrangements.  The Company recognizes these contracts over the life of the service period.  
Change in the Company’s deferred services revenue during the three and six months ended September 30, 2013 and 2012 were as follows (in 
thousands):  
   

   
The cost of providing these services for the three months ended September 30, 2013 and 2012 was $2.1 million and $2.3 million, 

respectively, and for the six months ended September 30, 2013 and 2012 was $4.2 million and $4.3 million, respectively.  
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      Three Months ended September 30,  
   Six Months ended September 30,  

   
      2013  

   2012  
   2013  

   2012  
   

                          
Beginning balance  

   $ 1,532 
   $ 2,001 

   $ 1,750 
   $ 1,918 

   
Liabilities incurred  

   —
   —

   —
   —

   
Liabilities settled  

   (375 )  —
   (596 )  —

   
Accretion expense  

   9 
   4 

   11 
   16 

   
Foreign currency translation  

   12 
   (135 )  13 

   (64 ) 

Ending balance  
   $ 1,178 

   $ 1,870 
   $ 1,178 

   $ 1,870 
   

      Three Months ended September 30,  
   Six Months ended September 30,  

   
      2013  

   2012  
   2013  

   2012  
   

            As Revised  
         As Revised  

   
Beginning balance  

   $ 22,655 
   $ 23,966 

   $ 20,538 
   $ 25,494 

   
Provision during the period  

   3,356 
   3,444 

   6,645 
   5,981 

   
Settlements made during the year, net of adjustments 

   (3,926 )  (3,873 )  (7,425 )  (7,938 ) 
Amount classified as liabilities held for sale (1)  

   —
   —

   2,327 
   —

   
Ending balance  

   $ 22,085 
   $ 23,537 

   $ 22,085 
   $ 23,537 

   

      Three Months ended September 30,  
   Six Months ended September 30,  

   
      2013  

   2012  
   2013  

   2012  
   

                          
Beginning balance  

   $ 29,080 
   $ 26,340 

   $ 29,328 
   $ 24,568 

   
Additions for extended warranties issued during the period  

   7,914 
   8,112 

   15,830 
   16,394 

   
Amortization of deferred revenue for the period  

   (7,926 )  (7,333 )  (16,090 )  (13,843 ) 

Ending balance  
   $ 29,068 

   $ 27,119 
   $ 29,068 

   $ 27,119 
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Purchase Commitments  
   

At September 30, 2013, the Company had the following outstanding purchase commitments:  
   

   
Commitments for inventory purchases are made in the normal course of business to original design manufacturers, the majority of the 

contract manufacturers and other suppliers and are expected to be fulfilled by December 2013. Operating expense commitments are for 
consulting services, marketing arrangements, advertising, outsourced customer services, information technology maintenance and support 
services, and other services. Fixed purchase commitments for capital expenditures primarily related to commitments for computer hardware and 
leasehold improvements. Although open purchase orders are considered enforceable and legally binding, the terms generally allow the Company 
the option to reschedule and adjust its requirements based on the business needs prior to delivery of goods or performance of services.  

   
Guarantees  
   

Logitech International S.A., the parent holding company, has guaranteed payment of the purchase obligations of various subsidiaries from 
certain component suppliers. These guarantees generally have an unlimited term. The maximum potential future payment under the guarantee 
arrangements is limited to $30.0 million. At September 30, 2013, there were no purchase obligations outstanding for which the parent holding 
company was required to guarantee payment.  

   
Logitech Europe S.A., a subsidiary of the parent holding company, has guaranteed the purchase obligations of another Logitech subsidiary 

under two guarantee agreements. One of these guarantees does not specify a maximum amount. The remaining guarantee has a total limit of $7.0 
million. As of September 30, 2013, there was an immaterial amount of guaranteed purchase obligations that were outstanding under these 
guarantees. Logitech Europe S.A. has also guaranteed payment of the purchase obligations of a third-party contract manufacturer under one 
guarantee agreement. The maximum amount of this guarantee was $3.5 million as of September 30, 2013. As of September 30, 2013, $2.8 
million of guaranteed purchase obligations were outstanding under this agreement.  

   
Logitech International S.A. and Logitech Europe S.A. have guaranteed certain contingent liabilities of various subsidiaries related to 

transactions occurring in the normal course of business. The maximum amount of the guarantees was $35.0 million as of September 30, 2013 
and $5.6 million of guaranteed obligations were outstanding under these agreements.  

   
Indemnifications  
   

Logitech indemnifies certain of its suppliers and customers for losses arising from matters such as intellectual property disputes and product 
safety defects, subject to certain restrictions. The scope of these indemnities varies, but in some instances, includes indemnification for damages 
and expenses, including reasonable attorneys’ fees. No amounts have been accrued for indemnification provisions at September 30, 2013. The 
Company does not believe, based on historical experience and information currently available, that it is probable that any material amounts will 
be required to be paid under its indemnification arrangements.  
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      September 30, 2013  
   

          
Inventory purchases  

   $  132,782 
   

Operating expenses  
   63,426 

   
Capital expenditures  

   18,372 
   

      $  214,580 
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Logitech also indemnifies its current and former directors and certain of its current and former officers. Certain costs incurred for providing 
such indemnification may be recoverable under various insurance policies. Logitech is unable to reasonably estimate the maximum amount that 
could be payable under these arrangements because these exposures are not capped, the obligations are conditional in nature, and the facts and 
circumstances involved in any situation that might arise are variable.  

   
Legal Proceedings  
   

From time to time the Company is involved in claims and legal proceedings which arise in the ordinary course of its business. The 
Company is currently subject to several such claims and a small number of legal proceedings. The Company believes that these matters lack 
merit and intends to vigorously defend against them. Based on currently available information, the Company does not believe that resolution of 
pending matters will have a material adverse effect on its financial condition, cash flows or results of operations. However, litigation is subject to 
inherent uncertainties, and there can be no assurances that the Company’s defenses will be successful or that any such lawsuit or claim would not 
have a material adverse impact on the Company’s business, financial condition, cash flows and results of operations in a particular period. Any 
claims or proceedings against us, whether meritorious or not, can have an adverse impact because of defense costs, diversion of management and 
operational resources, negative publicity and other factors. Any failure to obtain necessary license or other rights, or litigation arising out of 
intellectual property claims, could adversely affect the Company’s business.  

   
Note 12 — Shareholders’ Equity  
   
Share Repurchases  
   

In September 2008, the Company’s Board of Directors approved the September 2008 share buyback program for $250.0 million. In 
November 2011, an amendment to the September 2008 share buyback program (“September 2008 - amended”) was approved by the Company’s 
Board of Directors to enable future purchases of shares for cancellation. During the three months ended December 31, 2012, 18.5 million shares 
were cancelled. In August 2013, the September 2008 share buyback and September 2008 - amended share buyback programs expired.  The 
approved share buyback programs are shown in the following table (in thousands, excluding transaction costs).  

   

   
During the six months ended September 30, 2012, the Company repurchased 18.5 million shares under the September 2008-amended 

program. No shares were repurchased during the three months ended September 30, 2013 and 2012 and six months ended September 30, 2013.  
   

28  

 

Date of Announcement  
   

Approved  
Share  

Buyback  
Number  

   

Approved  
Buyback  
Amount  

   Expiration Date  
   

Shares  
Repurchased  

   Amounts  
   

                                
September 2008 - amended  

   28,465 
   $ 177,030 

   August 2013  
   18,500 

   $ 170,714 
   

September 2008  
   8,344 

   $ 250,000 
   August 2013  

   7,609 
   $ 73,134 
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Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss  
   

The components of accumulated other comprehensive loss were as follows (in thousands):  
   

   

(1)  Net of tax of $315 as of September 30 and March 31, 2013.  
   
Note 13 — Segment Information  
   

Net sales by product family, excluding intercompany transactions, were as follows (in thousands):  
   

   

(1) Certain products within the retail product families as presented in the prior year have been reclassified to conform to the current year 
presentation, with no impact on previously reported total peripheral sales.  

   
The Company has two reporting segments, peripherals and video conferencing, based on product markets and internal organizational 

structure. The peripherals segment encompasses the design, manufacturing and marketing of peripherals for PCs, tablets and other digital 
platforms. The video conferencing segment encompasses the design, manufacturing and marketing of LifeSize video conferencing products, 
infrastructure and services for the enterprise, public sector and other business markets. The Company’s reporting segments do not record revenue 
on sales between segments, as such sales are not material.  

   
Operating performance measures for the peripherals segment and the video conferencing segment are reported separately to Logitech’s 

Chief Executive Officer, who is considered to be the Company’s chief operating decision maker. The Chief Executive Officer periodically 
reviews information such as net sales and operating income (loss) for each operating segment to make business decisions. These operating 
performance measures do not include share-based compensation expense, and amortization of intangible  
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      Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss  
   

      Cumulative  
   Defined  

   Deferred  
         

      Translation  
   Benefit  

   Hedging  
         

      Adjustment  
   Plan (1)  

   Gains (Losses)  
   Total  

   
March 31, 2013 (As Revised)  

   $ (73,187 )  $ (20,316 )  $ 510 
   $ (92,993 ) 

Net change in other comprehensive loss  
   2,829 

   (385 )  (2,102 )  342 
   

September 30, 2013  
   $ (70,358 )  $ (20,701 )  $ (1,592 )  $ (92,651 ) 

      Three Months ended  
   Six Months ended  

   
      September 30,  

   September 30,  
   

      2013  
   2012(1)  

   2013  
   2012(1)  

   
Peripherals  

                       
Retail - Pointing Devices  

   $ 130,656 
   $ 122,524 

   $ 245,307 
   $ 238,353 

   
Retail - PC Keyboards & Desktops  

   105,236 
   97,069 

   203,186 
   191,628 

   
Retail - Tablet Accessories  

   34,711 
   33,737 

   73,270 
   49,623 

   
Retail - Audio PC  

   67,199 
   77,267 

   119,164 
   138,792 

   
Retail - Audio - Wearables & Wireless  

   25,648 
   19,108 

   44,723 
   33,707 

   
Retail - Video  

   41,061 
   49,453 

   76,319 
   86,612 

   
Retail - PC Gaming  

   41,493 
   46,673 

   81,110 
   73,456 

   
Retail - Remotes  

   13,327 
   16,434 

   27,901 
   30,166 

   
Retail - Other  

   5,522 
   14,214 

   7,109 
   29,243 

   
OEM  

   37,526 
   36,718 

   72,039 
   73,393 

   
Total peripherals  

   502,379 
   513,197 

   950,128 
   944,973 

   
Video conferencing  

   29,593 
   34,496 

   59,768 
   71,324 

   
Total net sales  

   $ 531,972 
   $ 547,693 

   $ 1,009,896 
   $ 1,016,297 
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assets. Share-based compensation expense and amortization of intangible assets are presented in the following financial information by operating 
segment as “other charges.” Assets by operating segment are not presented since the Company does not present such data to the chief operating 
decision maker. Net sales and operating income (loss) for the Company’s reporting segments were as follows (in thousands):  

   

   

(1)          The previously-reported operating income (loss) for the three and six months ended September 30, 2012 was impacted by the errors 
described in Note 2 as follows: (a) For the three and six months ended September 30, 2012, Peripherals operating income (loss) 
decreased by an immaterial amount and increased by $1.2 million, respectively, and (b) For the three and six months ended 
September 30, 2012, Video Conferencing operating loss decreased by less than $0.1 million and $0.2 million, respectively. These 
changes resulted from the warranty accrual and amortization of intangibles error correction.  

   
Geographic net sales information in the table below is based on the customer location. Long-lived assets, primarily fixed assets, are reported 

below based on the location of the asset.  
   
Net sales to unaffiliated customers by geographic region were as follows (in thousands):  
   

   

(1)                             During fiscal year 2013, the Company determined that net sales to unaffiliated customers by geographic regions previously reported, including the three and six months ended September 30, 
2012, were not properly stated since amounts related to its Video Conferencing segment and other businesses were improperly allocated solely to the Americas region.  

   
Sales are attributed to countries on the basis of the customers’ locations. The United States represented 34% and 32% of the Company’s 

total consolidated net sales for the quarter ended September 30, 2013 and 2012. No other single country represented more than 10% of the 
Company’s total consolidated net sales during those periods. Revenues from sales to customers in Switzerland, the Company’s home domicile, 
represented 2% of the Company’s total consolidated net sales for the three and six months ended September 30, 2013 and 2012.  One customer 
group of the Company’s peripheral operating segment represented 14% and 13% of sales for the quarters ended September 30, 2013 and 2012. 
The United States represented 35% and 33% of the Company’s total consolidated net sales for the six months ended September 30, 2013 and 
2012. Revenues from sales to customers in Switzerland represented 1% and 2% of the Company’s total consolidated net sales for the six months 
ended September 30, 2013 and 2012. No other single country represented more than 10% of the Company’s total consolidated net sales during 
those periods. One customer group of the Company’s peripheral reporting segment represented 14% and 12% of net sales in each of the six 
month periods ended September 30, 2013 and 2012.  
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      Three Months ended September 30,  
   Six Months ended September 30,  

   
      2013  

   2012  
   2013  

   2012  
   

                          
Net sales by reporting segment:  

                       
Peripherals  

   $ 502,379 
   $ 513,197 

   $ 950,128 
   $ 944,973 

   
Video conferencing  

   29,593 
   34,496 

   59,768 
   71,324 

   
Total net sales  

   $ 531,972 
   $ 547,693 

   $ 1,009,896 
   $ 1,016,297 

   
                          
Operating income (loss) by segment:  

                       
Peripherals (1)  

   $ 39,281 
   $ 39,097 

   $ 52,151 
   $ (5,505 ) 

Video conferencing (1)  
   (12,708 )  (1,811 )  (15,877 )  (2,921 ) 

Operating income (loss) before other charges  
   26,573 

   37,286 
   36,274 

   (8,426 ) 
Other charges:  

                       
Share-based compensation  

   (4,109 )  (7,266 )  (8,499 )  (13,437 ) 
Amortization  

   (5,254 )  (6,191 )  (10,518 )  (12,589 ) 

Total operating income (loss)  
   $ 17,210 

   $ 23,829 
   $ 17,257 

   $ (34,452 ) 

      Three Months ended September 30,  
   Six Months ended September 30,  

   
      2013  

   2012  
   2013  

   2012  
   

            As Reported  
   Adjustments (1)  

   As Revised  
         As Reported  

   Adjustments (1)  
   As Revised  

   
                                             
Americas  

   $ 202,381 
   $ 216,596 

   $ (17,079 )  $ 199,517 
   $ 402,834 

   $ 420,522 
   $ (36,438 )  $ 384,084 

   
EMEA  

   203,353 
   212,050 

   10,939 
   222,989 

   358,576 
   362,056 

   24,306 
   386,362 

   
Asia Pacific  

   126,238 
   119,047 

   6,140 
   125,187 

   248,486 
   233,719 

   12,132 
   245,851 

   
Total net 

sales  
   $ 531,972 

   $ 547,693 
   $ —

   $ 547,693 
   $ 1,009,896 

   $ 1,016,297 
   $ —

   $ 1,016,297 
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Long-lived assets by geographic region were as follows (in thousands):  
   

   
Long-lived assets in the United States and China were $43.2 million and $35.0 million at September 30, 2013 and $43.2 million and $33.1 

million at March 31, 2013. No other countries represented more than 10% of the Company’s total consolidated long-lived assets at September 30 
and March 31, 2013.  Long-lived assets in Switzerland were $1.9 million and $4.2 million at September 30 and March 31, 2013.  

   
Note 14 — Restructuring  
   

During the first quarter of fiscal year 2013, Logitech implemented a restructuring plan to simplify the Company’s organization, to better 
align costs with its current business, and to free up resources to pursue growth opportunities. A majority of the restructuring activity was 
completed during the three months ended June 30, 2012. As part of this restructuring plan, the Company reduced its worldwide non-direct labor 
workforce. Charges and other costs related to the workforce reduction are presented as restructuring charges in the consolidated statements of 
operations. During the three months ended September 30, 2012, the Company incurred a $3.8 million credit in termination benefits to affected 
employees due to the further refinement of estimates previously accrued during the three months ended June 30, 2012.  For the six months ended 
September 30, 2012, the Company incurred $24.8 million in termination benefits to affected employees under this plan. In addition, the 
Company incurred legal, consulting, and other costs of $1.1 million and $2.2 million as a result of the terminations during the three and six 
months ended September 30, 2012.  The Company also incurred $1.5 million in lease exit costs primarily related to costs associated with the 
closure of existing facilities during the six months ended September 30, 2012. During the six months ended September 30, 2012, charges of 
approximately $3.0 million related to discontinuance of certain product development efforts are included in cost of goods sold in the 
consolidated statements of operations.  During the quarter ended September 30, 2012, the Company also incurred $2.2 million from the re-
measurement of its Swiss defined benefit pension plan caused by the number of plan participants affected by this restructuring that was not 
included in restructuring charge since it related to prior services.  

   
During the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2013, Logitech implemented an additional restructuring plan to align the organization to its 

strategic priorities of increasing focus on mobility products, improving profitability in PC-related products and enhancing global operational 
efficiencies. As part of this restructuring plan, the Company reduced its worldwide non-direct labor workforce. Restructuring charges under this 
plan primarily consisted of severance and other one-time termination benefits. Charges and other costs related to the workforce reduction are 
presented as restructuring charges in the consolidated statements of operations.  During the three months ended September 30, 2013, the 
Company incurred a $0.8 million credit in termination benefits to affected employees due to the further refinement of estimates which were 
previously accrued and a $0.3 million charge in lease exit costs. During the six months ended September 30, 2013, restructuring changes under 
this plan included $1.2 million in termination benefits to affected employees and $0.6 million in lease exit costs.  The Company estimates to 
complete this restructuring plan by March 31, 2014.  

   
31  

 

      September 30, 2013  
   March 31, 2013  

   
               
Americas  

   $ 43,386 
   $ 43,357 

   
EMEA  

   5,875 
   8,315 

   
Asia Pacific  

   42,396 
   40,952 

   
Total long-lived assets  

   $ 91,657 
   $ 92,624 
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During the second quarter of fiscal year 2014, Logitech implemented a restructuring plan associated with its video conferencing operating 
segment to simplify its organization, to better align costs with its current business, and to free up resources to pursue growth opportunities. A 
majority of the restructuring activity was completed during the three months ended September 30, 2013. As part of this restructuring plan, the 
Company reduced its non-direct labor workforce, which is presented as restructuring charges in the consolidated statements of operations. 
During the three months ended September 30, 2013, restructuring charges under this plan included $5.4 million in termination benefits to 
affected employees and $0.6 million in lease exit costs.  During the three months ended September 30, 2013, the Company also incurred a $5.2 
million write-off of discontinued products included in cost of goods sold in the consolidated statements of operations resulting from the 
restructuring of our video conferencing reporting segment. The Company estimates to complete this restructuring plan by March 31, 2014.  

   
Termination benefits were calculated based on regional benefit practices and local statutory requirements. Lease exit costs primarily relate 

to costs associated with the closure of existing facilities. Other charges primarily consist of legal, consulting and other costs related to employee 
terminations.  
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The following table summarizes restructuring related activities (in thousands):  
   

   

(1) During the three months ended September 30, 2013, the Company incurred $4.6 million in termination benefits, $5.4 million charge related 
to the restructuring plan initiated during the second quarter of fiscal year 2014 offset by a $0.8 million credit related to the restructuring plan 
initiated during the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2013.  During the same period, the Company also incurred $0.9 million in lease exit costs, $0.6 
million related to the restructuring plan initiated during the second quarter of fiscal year 2014 and $0.3 million related to the restructuring plan 
initiated during the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2013.  
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      Total  
   

Termination  
Benefits  

   
Lease Exit  

Costs  
   Other  

   
                         
Balance at March 31, 2012  

   $ —
   $ —

   $ —
   $ —

   
                         

Charges  
   31,227 

   28,655 
   1,472 

   1,100 
   

Cash payments  
   (5,195 )  (4,766 )  —

   (429 ) 
Foreign exchange  

   63 
   63 

   —
   —

   
                         
Balance at June 30, 2012  

   26,095 
   23,952 

   1,472 
   671 

   
                         

Charges (credits)  
   (2,671 )  (3,816 )  48 

   1,097 
   

Cash payments  
   (17,652 )  (16,642 )  (52 )  (958 ) 

Foreign exchange  
   14 

   —
   —

   14 
   

                         
Balance at September 30, 2012  

   $ 5,786 
   $ 3,494 

   $ 1,468 
   $ 824 

   
                         

Charges (credits)  
   (358 )  (188 )  (182 )  12 

   
Cash payments  

   (4,511 )  (2,633 )  (1,104 )  (774 ) 
Foreign exchange  

   —
   —

   —
   —

   
                         
Balance at December 30, 2012  

   917 
   673 

   182 
   62 

   
                         

Charges (credits)  
   15,507 

   16,437 
   (30 )  (900 ) 

Cash payments  
   (2,966 )  (3,727 )  (77 )  838 

   
Foreign exchange  

   —
   —

   —
   —

   
                         
Balance at March 31, 2013  

   13,458 
   13,383 

   75 
   —

   
                         

Charges  
   2,334 

   2,004 
   330 

   —
   

Cash payments  
   (8,422 )  (8,422 )  —

   —
   

Foreign exchange  
   (170 )  (170 )  —

   —
   

                         
Balance at June 30, 2013  

   7,200 
   6,795 

   405 
   —

   
                         

Charges  
   5,465 

   4,562 (1)  903 (1)  —
   

Cash payments  
   (7,099 )  (6,535 )  (564 )  —

   
Foreign exchange  

   —
   —

   —
   —

   
                         
Balance at September 30, 2013  

   $ 5,566 
   $ 4,822 

   $ 744 
   $ —
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ITEM 2.                       MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL C ONDITION AND RESULTS OF 
OPERATIONS  

   
You should read the following discussion in conjunction with the interim unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements and related notes.  
   
This Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 21E of the Securities Exchange 

Act of 1934. These forward-looking statements include, among other things, statements regarding our business strategy, the impact of investment 
prioritization decisions, product offerings, sales and marketing initiatives, addressing execution challenges, trends in consumer demand 
affecting our products and markets, trends in the composition of our customer base, our current or future revenue and revenue mix by product, 
among our lower- and higher-margin products and by geographic region, our expectations regarding the potential growth opportunities for our 
products in mature and emerging markets and the enterprise market, our expectations regarding trends in global economic conditions and 
consumer demand for PCs and mobile devices, smartphones, tablets, gaming, audio, video and video conferencing, digital home digital music 
and other computer devices and the interoperability of our products with such third party platforms, our expectations regarding the convergence 
of markets for computing devices and consumer electronics, our competitive position and the effect of pricing, product, marketing and other 
initiatives by us and our competitors, the impact of our restructuring plan on future costs, expenses and financial performance and the timing 
thereof, our estimates of future charges related to our restructuring plan, our expectations regarding the recoverability of our goodwill, 
goodwill impairment charge estimates and the potential for future impairment charges, the impact of our current and proposed product 
divestitures, changes in our planned divestitures, and the timing thereof, significant fluctuations in currency exchange rates, the impact of new 
product introductions and product innovation on future performance or anticipated costs and expenses and the timing thereof, cash flows, the 
sufficiency of our cash and cash equivalents, cash generated and available borrowings (including the availability of our uncommitted lines of 
credit) to fund future cash requirements, compliance with our credit facilities, our expectations regarding share repurchases and share 
cancellations, our expectations regarding our future working capital requirements and our anticipated capital expenditures needed to support 
our product development and expanded operations, our expectations regarding our future tax benefits and the adequacy of our provisions for 
uncertain tax positions, our expectations regarding our potential indemnification obligations, and the outcome of pending or future legal 
proceedings and tax audits, remediation of our material weaknesses and Logitech’s ability to achieve and sustain renewed growth, profitability 
and future success. Forward-looking statements also include, among others, those statements including the words “anticipate,” “believe,”
“could,” “estimate,” “expect,” “forecast,” “intend, ” “may,” “plan,” “project,” “predict,” “should,” “w ill,” and similar language. These 
forward-looking statements involve risks and uncertainties that could cause our actual performance to differ materially from that anticipated in 
the forward-looking statements. Factors that might cause or contribute to such differences include, but are not limited to, those discussed in the 
section titled “Risk Factors” in Part II, Item 1A of this quarterly report on Form 10-Q. You are cautioned not to place undue reliance on the 
forward-looking statements, which speak only as of the date of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q. We undertake no obligation to publicly 
release any revisions to the forward-looking statements or reflect events or circumstances after the date of this document.  

   
Overview of Our Company  
   

Logitech is a world leader in products that connect people to the digital experiences they care about. Spanning multiple computing, 
communication and entertainment platforms, we develop and market innovative hardware and software products that enable or enhance digital 
navigation, music and video entertainment, gaming, social networking, and audio and video communication over the Internet. We have two 
reporting segments: peripherals and video conferencing.  

   
Our peripherals segment encompasses the design, manufacturing and marketing of peripherals for PCs (personal computers), tablets and 

other digital platforms. Our products for home and business PCs include mice, trackballs, keyboards, interactive gaming controllers, multimedia 
speakers, headsets and webcams. Our tablet accessory products include keyboards, keyboard cases and covers, headphones, wireless  
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speakers and earphones. Our Internet communications products include webcams and headsets. Our digital music products include wireless 
speakers, earphones, headphones and custom in-ear monitors. For home entertainment systems, we offer the Harmony line of advanced remote 
controls. Our gaming products include mice, keyboards, headsets and gaming controllers. During the third quarter of fiscal year 2013, we 
identified a number of product categories that no longer fit with our current strategic direction.  As a result, we made a strategic decision to 
divest our remote product category and our digital video security product line, included within our video product category.  During the first 
quarter of fiscal year 2014, we updated our strategic focus, deciding to retain our remote product category and transition out of our digital video 
security product line. Since fiscal year 2013, we have been exiting other non-strategic products, such as speaker docks, and continue to evaluate 
non-strategic products as part of our ongoing portfolio management.  
   

Our brand, portfolio management, product definition and engineering teams in our peripherals segment are responsible for product strategy, 
technological innovation, product design and development, and bringing our products to market. Our peripherals business groups are organized 
by the following product categories: Pointing Devices, PC Keyboards & Desktops, Tablet Accessories, Audio PC, Audio-Wearables & Wireless, 
Video, PC Gaming and Remotes. Our global marketing organization is responsible for developing and building the Logitech brand, consumer 
insights, public relations and social media, and digital marketing. Our regional retail sales and marketing activities are organized into three 
geographic areas: Americas (including North and South America), EMEA (Europe, Middle East, Africa) and Asia Pacific (including, among 
other countries, China, Taiwan, Japan and Australia).  

   
We sell our peripherals products to a network of distributors, retailers and OEMs. Our worldwide retail network includes wholesale 

distributors, consumer electronics retailers, mass merchandisers, specialty electronics stores, computer and telecommunications stores, value-
added resellers and online merchants. Sales of peripherals to our retail channels were 87% and 86% of our net sales for the six months ended 
September 30, 2013 and 2012. The large majority of our revenues have historically been derived from sales of our peripherals products for use 
by consumers. Our OEM customers include several of the world’s largest PC manufacturers. Sales to OEM customers were 7% of our net sales 
for each of the six months ended September 30, 2013 and 2012.  

   
Our video conferencing segment encompasses the design, manufacturing and marketing of video conferencing products, infrastructure and 

services for the enterprise, public sector, and other small to medium business markets. Video conferencing products include scalable HD (high-
definition) video communication endpoints, HD video conferencing systems with integrated monitors, video bridges and other infrastructure 
software and hardware to support large-scale video deployments, and services to support these products. The video conferencing segment 
maintains a separate marketing and sales organization, which sells LifeSize products and services worldwide. Video conferencing product 
development and product management organizations are separate, but coordinated with our peripherals business, particularly our Consumer 
Computing Platform group. We sell our LifeSize products and services to distributors, value-added resellers, OEMs, and occasionally, direct 
enterprise customers. Sales of LifeSize products were 6% and 7% of our net sales in the six months ended September 30, 2013 and 2012.  
During fiscal year 2013, we recorded a non-cash goodwill impairment charge of $214.5 million related to our video conferencing segment.  

   
We seek to fulfill the increasing demand for interfaces between people and the expanding digital world across multiple platforms and user 

environments. The interface evolves as platforms, user models and our target markets evolve. As access to digital information has expanded, we 
have extended our focus to mobile devices, the digital home, and the enterprise as access points to the Internet and the digital world. All of these 
platforms require interfaces that are customized according to how the devices are used. We believe that continued investment in product research 
and development is critical to creating the innovation required to strengthen our competitive advantage and to drive future sales growth. We are 
committed to identifying and meeting current and future consumer trends with new and improved product technologies, partnering with others 
where our strengths are complementary, as well as leveraging the value of the Logitech and LifeSize brands from a competitive, channel partner 
and consumer experience perspective.  
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We believe innovation and product quality are important to gaining market acceptance and maintaining market leadership.  
   
We have been expanding the categories of products we sell and entering new markets, such as the markets for mobile device accessories. As 

we do so, we are confronting new competitors, many of which have more experience in the categories or markets and have greater marketing 
resources and brand name recognition than we have. In addition, because of the continuing convergence of the markets for computing devices 
and consumer electronics, we expect greater competition in the future from well-established consumer electronics companies in our new 
categories as well as future ones we might enter. Many of these companies have greater financial, technical, sales, marketing and other resources 
than we have.  

   
The peripherals and video conferencing industries are intensely competitive. The peripherals industry is characterized by platform 

evolution, short product life cycles, continual performance enhancements, and rapid adoption of technological and product advancements by 
competitors in our retail markets, and price sensitivity in the OEM market. We experience aggressive price competition and other promotional 
activities from our primary competitors and from less-established brands, including brands owned by some retail customers known as house 
brands, in response to declining consumer demand in both mature retail and OEM markets. We may also encounter more competition if any of 
our competitors in one or more categories decide to enter other categories in which we currently operate.  

   
From time to time, we may seek to partner with or acquire, when appropriate, companies that have products, personnel, and technologies 

that complement our strategic direction. We continually review our product offerings and our strategic direction in light of our profitability 
targets, competitive conditions, changing consumer trends, and the evolving nature of the interface between the consumer and the digital world.  

   
Revision of Financial Statements for the Three and Six Months ended September 30, 2012  
   

In the first quarter of fiscal year 2014, we identified errors related to the accounting for our product warranty liability and amortization 
expense of certain intangible assets.  The errors impacted prior reporting periods, starting prior to fiscal year 2009. While these errors were not 
material to any previously issued annual or quarterly consolidated financial statements, management concluded that correcting the cumulative 
errors and related tax effects, which amounted to $19.1 million, in the first quarter of fiscal year 2014, would be material to the consolidated 
financial statements for the three months ended June 30, 2013 and to the expected results of operations for the fiscal year ending March 31, 
2014.  

   
We evaluated the cumulative impact of the errors on prior periods under the guidance in ASC 250-10 relating to SEC SAB No. 99, 

Materiality . We also evaluated the impact of correcting the errors through an adjustment to our financial statements and concluded, based on the 
guidance within ASC 250-10 relating to SAB No. 108, Considering the Effects of Prior Year Misstatements when Quantifying Misstatements in 
Current Year Financial Statements , to revise our previously issued financial statements to reflect the impact of the correction of these errors 
when we file subsequent reports on Form 10-Q and Form 10-K. Accordingly, we revised our consolidated financial statements for the quarter 
ended June 30, 2012 to correct these errors. In addition, as a result of the decision to revise our previously issued consolidated financial 
statements to correct for the errors described above, we corrected other immaterial errors that were previously uncorrected. We filed a Form 10-
K/A to revise our financial statements for the years ended March 31, 2011, 2012 and 2013 to correct for the same errors.  As a result, we have 
also revised our financial statements for the three and six months ended September 30, 2012 from what we previously reported.  

   
The revised financial statements corrected the following errors:  
   
(1) - Warranty accrual — We determined that our prior warranty model did not accurately estimate warranty costs and liabilities.  The 

inherent flaws in the prior model involved use of generic assumptions, incomplete warranty cost data and inter-regional methodological 
differences. This error impacted prior reporting periods, starting prior to fiscal year 2009, and impacted deferred tax asset classification between 
current and non-current assets.  
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(2) - Amortization of intangibles – We determined that $4.2 million in intangible assets originating from a November 2009 acquisition 
were never amortized.  The impact of this adjustment was $2.0 million in amortization expense not properly recorded during the periods from 
the quarter ended December 31, 2009 through the end of fiscal year 2013.  

   
(3) - Other adjustments – We also corrected a number of other immaterial errors, including the cumulative translation adjustment related to 

the purchase of treasury shares, and an adjustment affecting the amount of property, plant and equipment purchased during the first quarter of 
fiscal year 2013.  

   
The adjustments made as a result of the revisions to the historical financial statements are more fully discussed in Note 2, Revision of 

Previously Issued Financial Statements , to the Consolidated Financial Statements.  
   

Summary of Financial Results  
   

Our total net sales for the six months ended September 30, 2013 decreased 1%, compared with the six months ended September 30, 2012, 
due to a decrease of 2% in OEM sales and a decrease of 16% in video conferencing sales, offset in part by an increase of 1% in retail sales.  

   
Retail sales during the six months ended September 30, 2013 increased 1% and retail units sold decreased 5%, compared with the six 

months ended September 30, 2012.  We experienced an increase of 9% in the Americas and a decrease of 7% in the EMEA regions. Sales in 
Asia Pacific region remained constant. If foreign currency exchange rates had been the same in the six months ended September 30, 2013 and 
2012, the percentage changes in our constant dollar retail sales would have been a decrease of 1% for total retail sales, an increase of 9% in the 
Americas, an increase of 4% in the Asia Pacific, and a decrease of 9% in the EMEA regions. Sales incentive spending (including pricing 
discounts) during the six months ended September 30, 2013, compared with the six months ended September 30, 2012, increased by 4% during 
this period.  Sales returns expense during the six months ended September 30, 2013, compared with the six months ended September 30, 2012, 
decreased by 13% due to lower channel inventory return rate and lower channel inventory level during this period.  

   
OEM net sales decreased 2% and units sold remained constant in the six months ended September 30, 2013, compared with the preceding 

fiscal year. The decline was primarily due to overall weak market conditions for sale of new desktop PCs.  
   
Sales of video conferencing products, which were 7% of total net sales in the six months ended September 30, 2013, decreased by 16% in 

the six months ended September 30, 2013, compared with the six months ended September 30, 2012, due to a combination of a changing 
industry landscape caused by a shift to less expensive, cloud-based video conferencing solutions, an evolving LifeSize product line and 
challenges in execution.  

   
Our gross margin for the six months ended September 30, 2013 improved to 34.8%, compared with 33.6% for the six months ended 

September 30, 2012.  The improvement in gross margin for the six months ended September 30, 2013, compared with the same period of the 
prior fiscal year, primarily resulted from cost improvements in some of our PC-related categories and from actions we took during fiscal year 
2013 to streamline our product portfolio.  The improvement also resulted from negative factors affecting our gross margin during the same 
period of the prior fiscal year which did not exist during the six months ended September 30, 2013, including $4.5 million in pricing actions 
related to the simplification of our product portfolio in the Americas and EMEA regions, $3.0 million in costs related to product development 
efforts that were discontinued as a result of the April 2012 restructuring, and a provision for a patent dispute. The improvement was offset in part 
by a $5.2 million write-off of video conferencing discontinued products resulting from the restructuring of our video conferencing reporting 
segment during the quarter ended September 30, 2013.  
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Operating expenses for the six months ended September 30, 2013 were 33.1% of net sales, compared with 37.0% in the same period of 
the prior fiscal year. The decrease in total operating expenses as a percentage of net sales was primarily due to a decrease of $20.8 million in 
restructuring charges combined with a $17.1 million decrease in market and selling expense due to a decline in marketing spend activity.  

   
Net income for the six months ended September 30, 2013 was $15.4 million, compared with net income of $3.4 million in the six months 

ended September 30, 2012. This improvement primarily resulted from a decrease of $20.8 million in restructuring charges and a decrease in 
market and selling expense, offset in part by a shift from a $38.0 million benefit from income taxes during the six months ended September 30, 
2012 to a $2.3 million provision for income taxes during the six months ended September 30, 2013.  

   
Trends in Our Business  
   

Our sales of PC peripherals for use by consumers in the Americas and Europe have historically made up the large majority of our revenues. 
In the last several years, the PC market has changed dramatically and there continues to be significant weakness in the global market for new 
PCs. This weakness had a negative impact on our net sales in all of our PC-related categories.  We believe that this weakness reflects the 
growing popularity of tablets and smartphones as mobile computing devices.  

   
We believe Logitech’s future growth will be determined by our ability to rapidly create innovative products across multiple digital 

platforms, especially accessories for mobility-related products, including tablets, smartphones and other mobile devices, and for digital music, 
including wireless speakers and wearables such as earphones, to limit and offset the decline in our PC peripherals. We pursue growth 
opportunities in emerging markets, mobility-related products, products for digital music and enterprise markets. The following discussion 
represents key trends specific to each of our two operating segments, peripherals and video conferencing.  

   
Trends Specific to our Peripherals Segment  
   

Mature and Emerging Markets. In our traditional, mature markets, such as North America, Western and Northern Europe, Japan, and 
Australia, although the installed base of PC users is large, consumer demand for new PCs has declined in recent years, and we believe it will 
continue to decline in future years. As a consequence, consumer demand for PC peripherals is slowing, or in some case declining. While we 
continue to pursue growth opportunities in select PC peripherals product lines in mature markets, we believe there are growth opportunities for 
our PC peripherals outside the mature markets. We have invested significantly in growing the number of our sales, marketing and administrative 
personnel in China, our largest target emerging market, with the result that China was our second-largest country in retail sales for the six 
months ended September 30, 2013. We are also expanding our presence in other emerging markets.  

   
Enterprise Market .  We are continuing our efforts to create and sell products and services to enterprises. We believe the preferences of 

employees increasingly drive companies’ choices in the information technologies they deploy to their employee base. Growing our enterprise 
peripherals business will continue to require investment in selected business-specific products, targeted product marketing, and sales channel 
development.  

   
Tablets, Smartphones and Other Mobile Devices. The increasing popularity of smaller, mobile computing devices, such as tablets and 

smartphones with touch interfaces, have created new markets and usage models for peripherals and accessories. Logitech has begun to offer 
products to enhance the use of mobile devices.  For example, we are experiencing strong demand for our tablet keyboards.  We introduced the 
Logitech Ultrathin Keyboard mini, a slim protective keyboard cover designed to enhance the iPad mini experience during the fourth quarter of 
fiscal year 2013.  Demand for the Logitech Ultrathin Keyboard mini  
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has continued to be very positive.  The tablet accessories category is one of the primary strategic categories of our business.  We continue to 
expand and leverage on our success in this category through the recent introduction of innovative products such as the Logitech Keyboard Folio 
and Folio mini, the Logitech FabricSkin Keyboard Folio for iPad and iPad mini, the Logitech Wired Keyboard for iPad, and the Logitech 
Ultrathin Keyboard Folio for Samsung Galaxy Tablet.  

   
Digital Music. We believe that digital music, the seamless consumption of digital audio content on mobile devices, presents a growth 

opportunity for Logitech, based on our history of successful earphone and speaker products. Many consumers listen to music as a pervasive 
entertainment activity, fueled by the growth in smartphones, tablets, music services and Internet radio. We believe we have a solid foundation of 
audio solutions to satisfy consumers’ needs for music consumption, including earphones and digital music speakers. We continue to invest and 
introduce innovative new products in this category such as UE BOOM, a wireless speaker offering 360-degree stereo sound announced in late 
May 2013.  

   
OEM Business.   Sales of our OEM mice and keyboards have historically made up the bulk of our OEM sales. In recent years, there has 

been a dramatic shift away from desktop PCs and there continues to be significant weakness in the global market for PCs, which has adversely 
affected our sales of OEM mice and keyboards, all of which are sold with name-brand desktop PCs. We expect this trend to continue and for 
OEM sales to comprise a smaller percentage of our total revenues in the future.  

   
Trends in Other Peripherals Product Categories . Some of our other peripherals product categories are experiencing significant market 

challenges.  As the quality of PC-embedded webcams improves along with the increasing popularity of tablets and smartphones with embedded 
webcams, we expect future sales of our PC-connected webcams in mature consumer markets to continue declining.  During the third quarter of 
fiscal year 2013, we identified a number of product categories that no longer fit with our current strategic direction.  As a result, we made a 
strategic decision to divest our entire Retail-Remotes product category and our digital video security product line included in our Retail-Video 
product category. During the first quarter fiscal year 2014, we updated our strategic focus deciding to retain our Retail-Remote product 
category.   We will continue to evaluate our product offerings and will exit those which no longer support our strategic direction.  

   
Trends Specific to our Video Conferencing Segment  
   

The trend among businesses and institutions to use video conferencing offers a long-term growth opportunity for Logitech.  However, the 
overall video conferencing industry has experienced a slowdown in recent quarters.  In addition, there has been an increase in the competitive 
environment in fiscal year 2013.  This resulted in a $214.5 million non-cash goodwill impairment charge in the fiscal year ended March 31, 
2013.  During the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2013 and the second quarter fiscal year 2014, we implemented restructuring plans affecting our 
video conferencing operating segment to align its organization to it strategic priorities of increasing focus on a tighter range of products, 
expanding cloud-based video conferencing services and improving profitability. We believe the growth in our video conferencing segment 
depends in part on our ability to increase sales to enterprises with existing installed bases of equipment supplied by our competitors, and to 
enterprises that may purchase such competitor equipment in the future. We believe the ability of our LifeSize products to interoperate with the 
equipment of other telecommunications, video conferencing or telepresence equipment suppliers to be a key factor in purchasing decisions by 
current or prospective LifeSize customers. In addition, LifeSize has broadened its product portfolio to include infrastructure, cloud services and 
other offerings which require different approaches to developing customer solutions.  We also are seeking to offer LifeSize products designed to 
enhance the use of mobile devices in video conferencing applications.  
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Critical Accounting Estimates  
   

The preparation of financial statements and related disclosures in conformity with U.S. GAAP (generally accepted accounting principles in 
the United States of America) requires us to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect reported amounts of assets, liabilities, net 
sales and expenses, and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities.  

   
We consider an accounting estimate critical if it: (i) requires management to make judgments and estimates about matters that are inherently 

uncertain; and (ii) is important to an understanding of Logitech’s financial condition and operating results.  
   
 We base our estimates on historical experience and on various other assumptions we believe to be reasonable under the circumstances. 

Although these estimates are based on management’s best knowledge of current events and actions that may impact us in the future, actual 
results could differ from those estimates. Management has discussed the development, selection and disclosure of these critical accounting 
estimates with the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors.  

   
There have been no significant changes during the three and six months ended September 30, 2013, except for product warranty accrual, to 

the nature of the critical accounting policies, and no significant changes to the critical accounting estimates that were disclosed in the 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations in our Annual Report on Form 10-K/A for the fiscal 
year ended March 31, 2013.  

   
Product Warranty Accrual  
   
We provide for the estimated cost of product warranties at the time the related revenue is recognized based on historical and projected 

warranty claim rates, historical and projected cost, and knowledge of specific product failures that are outside of our typical experience. Each 
quarter, we reevaluate our estimates to assess the adequacy of our recorded warranty liabilities considering the size of the installed base of 
products subject to warranty protection and adjust the amounts as necessary. If actual product failure rates or repair costs differ from estimates, 
revisions to the estimated warranty liabilities would be required and could materially affect our results of operations.  

   
As discussed in the subsection titled, Revision of Financial Statements for the three and six months ended September 30, 2012 , we 

determined that our prior warranty model did not accurately accrue for costs of product warranties given to end customers, including an on-going 
review of the assumptions to determine the completeness and accuracy of the warranty accrual at each reporting period.  The inherent flaws in 
the prior model involved use of generic assumptions, incomplete warranty cost data and inter-regional methodological differences. During the 
quarter ended June 30, 2013, we developed and implemented a new warranty model (“new model”) to estimate its warranty costs and liability at 
each reporting period.  The new model has been implemented by all regions and incorporates a waterfall method to more accurately capture 
consumer return behavior and a single model approach for all regions.  Key assumptions used in the new model include:  

   
•             Warranty expenses: All warranty costs, including product, freight, handling and warehousing costs are captured by the new model.  
   
•             Sell-through revenue, if available: Use of sell-through revenue, defined as sales data to end consumers, is relevant given that the 

warranty period comments on the date the consumer purchases the product.  
   
•             Historic product return waterfall rates: Waterfall rates are used in the new model to predict consumer product warranty returns based 

on historical consumer behavior patterns.  
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This error impacted prior reporting periods, starting prior to fiscal year 2009, and resulted in a $17.1 million cumulative correcting 
adjustment to our consolidated financial statements from the beginning of fiscal year 2009 through the end of fiscal year 2013.  

   
Recent Accounting Pronouncement  
   
In July 2013, the FASB issued ASU No. 2013-11, “ Presentation of an Unrecognized Tax Benefit When a Net Operating Loss 

Carryforward, a Similar Tax Loss, or a Tax Credit Carryforward Exists ”. The ASU provides explicit guidance on the financial statement 
presentation of an unrecognized tax benefit when a net operating loss carryforward, a similar tax loss, or a tax credit carryforward exists. ASU 
No. 2013-11 is effective for interim and annual periods beginning after December 15, 2013. We do not expect the adoption of this guidance to 
have a material impact on our cash flows, results of operations, financial position or liquidity.  

   
Results of Operations  
   
Net Sales  
   

Net sales by channel for the three and six months ended September 30, 2013 and 2012 were as follows (in thousands):  
   

   
The following table presents the approximate percentage of our total net sales that were denominated in currencies other than the U.S. dollar 

in the three and six months ended September 30, 2013 and 2012:  
   

   
If foreign currency exchange rates had been the same in the three and six months ended September 30, 2013 and 2012, the percentage 

change in our constant dollar net sales would have been:  
   

   
Our retail sales in the three and six months ended September 30, 2013 decreased by 2% and increased by 1%, compared with the same 

periods of the prior fiscal year. Retail sales increased in Americas and declined in EMEA and Asia Pacific regions during the three months ended 
September 30, 2013, and increased in Americas, declined in EMEA, and remained constant in Asia Pacific regions during the six months ended 
September 30, 2013, compared with the same periods of the prior fiscal year. Retail units sold decreased 4% and 5% during the three and six 
months ended September 30, 2013, compared with  
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      Three Months ended September 30,  
         Six Months ended September 30,  

         
      2013  

   2012  
   Change %  

   2013  
   2012  

   Change %  
   

                                    
Retail  

   $ 464,853 
   $ 476,479 

   (2 )% $ 878,089 
   $ 871,580 

   1 %  
OEM  

   37,526 
   36,718 

   2 %  72,039 
   73,393 

   (2 )% 
Video Conferencing  

   29,593 
   34,496 

   (14 )% 59,768 
   71,324 

   (16 )% 
Total net sales  

   $ 531,972 
   $ 547,693 

   (3 )% $ 1,009,896 
   $ 1,016,297 

   (1 )% 

      Three Months ended September 30,  
   Six Months ended September 30,  

   
      2013  

   2012  
   2013  

   2012  
   

                          
Currencies other than USD  

   45 %  47 %  44 %  45 % 

      Three Months ended  
   Six Months ended  

   
      September 30, 2013  

   September 30, 2013  
   

                
Retail  

   (3 )% 1 %  
OEM  

   3 %  (2 )% 
Video Conferencing  

   (14 )% (16 )% 

Total net sales  
   (3 )% (1 )% 
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the same periods of the prior fiscal year. Our overall retail average selling price increased by 2% and 6% during the three and six months ended 
September 30, 2013. Products priced below $40 represented approximately 53% and 54% of retail sales in the three and six months ended 
September 30, 2013, compared with 53% and 59% of retail sales in the three and six months ended September 30, 2012. Sales of retail products 
priced above $100 represented 15% and 14% of retail sales in the three and six months ended September 30, 2013, compared with 12% and 11% 
of total retail sales in the three and six months ended September 31, 2012. If foreign currency exchange rates had been the same in the three and 
six months ended September 30, 2013 and 2012, our constant dollar retail sales increase would have been a decrease of 3% and an increase of 
1%.  

   
OEM net sales increased 2% and decreased 2% and units sold increased 2% and remained constant in the three and six months ended 

September 30, 2013, compared with the same periods in the prior fiscal year. The increase during the three months ended September 30, 2013 
was due to new business from a large customer as well as a sale opportunity in the Gaming category. The decline during the six months ended 
September 30, 2013 was primarily due to overall weak market conditions for sale of new desktop PCs.  

   
Video conferencing net sales decreased 14% and 16% during the three and six months ended September 30, 2013, compared with the 

same periods of the prior fiscal year.  This decrease primarily resulted from the combination of a changing industry landscape caused by a shift 
to less expensive, cloud-based video conferencing solutions, an evolving LifeSize product line and challenges in execution.  

   
We refer to our net sales excluding the impact of foreign currency exchange rates as constant dollar sales. Constant dollar sales are a non-

GAAP financial measure, which is information derived from consolidated financial information but not presented in our financial statements 
prepared in accordance with U.S. GAAP. Our management uses these non-GAAP measures in its financial and operational decision-making, and 
believes these non-GAAP measures, when considered in conjunction with the corresponding GAAP measures, facilitate a better understanding 
of changes in net sales. Constant dollar sales are calculated by translating prior period sales in each local currency at the current period’s average 
exchange rate for that currency.  

   
Retail Sales by Region  
   

The following table presents the changes in retail units sold, retail sales and constant dollar retail sales by region for the three and six 
months ended September 30, 2013, compared with the three and six months ended September 30, 2012.  

   

   
Americas  
   
The Americas region experienced a 7% increase in retail sales during the three months ended September 30, 2013, compared with the 

same period of the prior fiscal year.  Sales increased in Pointing Devices, PC Keyboards & Desktops, Audio-Wearables & Wireless, Tablet 
Accessories and PC Gaming, offset in part by sales declines in Audio-PC, Non-strategic Other, Remotes and Video.  Sales increase in Pointing 
Devices was driven by both high-end and low-end products, while sales increase in PC Keyboards & Desktops was driven by low-end 
products.   Sales increase in Tablets Accessories was led by sales increases from the Logitech Ultrathin Keyboard Cover for iPad mini, and from 
the recently introduced  
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      Three Months ended September 30, 2013  
   Six Months ended September 30, 2013  

   
      Change in  

         Change in  
   Change in  

         Change in  
   

      Retail Units  
   Change in  

   Constant Dollar  
   Retail Units  

   Change in  
   Constant Dollar  

   
      Sold  

   Retail Sales  
   Retail Sales  

   Sold  
   Retail Sales  

   Retail Sales  
   

                                    
EMEA  

   (14 )%  (10 )%  (13 )%  (13 )%  (7 )%  (9 )% 
Asia Pacific  

   4 %  (4 )%  0 %  (1 )%  0 %  4 %  
Americas  

   2 %  7 %  7 %  0 %  9 %  9 %  
Total retail sales  

   (4 )%  (2 )%  (3 )%  (5 )%  1 %  1 %  
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Logitech Keyboard Folio suite of products designed for the iPad and iPad mini. We also experienced sales increases in PC Gaming due to a 
recent launch of new gaming products and in Audio-Wearables & Wireless from the UE Mobile Boombox and the UE BOOM.  Compared to the 
same period of the prior fiscal year, we experienced sales improvement in the United States and Canada. Retail sell-through in the Americas 
region increased 4% in three months ended September 30, 2013, compared with the same period of the prior fiscal year.  

   
The Americas region experienced a 9% increase in retail sales during six months ended September 30, 2013, compared with the same 

period of the prior fiscal year. Sales increased in Tablet Accessories, Pointing Devices, PC Keyboards & Desktops, Audio-Wearables & 
Wireless, and PC Gaming, offset in part by sales declines in Non-strategic Other, Audio-PC, Remotes and Video.  This increase was led by sales 
increase in Tablet Accessories due to sales increase from the Logitech Ultrathin Keyboard Cover for iPad mini, and from the recently introduced 
Logitech Keyboard Folio suite of products designed for the iPad and iPad mini. We also experienced sales increases in Pointing Devices driven 
by mid-range and high-end products, in PC Keyboards & Desktops driven by low-end products, in Audio-Wearables & Wireless from the UE 
Mobile Boombox and the UE BOOM, and in PC Gaming due to a recent launch of new gaming products. During the six months ended 
September 30, 2013, compared to the same period of the prior fiscal year, we experienced improvement in the United States and Canada. Retail 
sell-through in the Americas region increased 4% in the six months ended September 30, 2013, compared with the same period of the prior fiscal 
year.  

   
EMEA  
   
Retail sales in the EMEA region experienced a 10% decrease during the three months ended September 30, 2013, compared with the same 

period of the prior fiscal year. Sales declined in all categories except Audio-Wearables & Wireless and PC Keyboards & Desktops.  We 
experienced significant sales decrease in Germany, our largest country within this region, due to execution challenges that we are in the process 
of addressing. The decrease in Germany was offset in part by a sales increase in the United Kingdom. Retail sell-through in the EMEA region 
decreased 5% in the three months ended September 30, 2013, compared with the same period of the prior fiscal year.  

   
Retail sales in the EMEA region a 7% decrease during the six months ended September 30, 2013, compared with the same period of the 

prior fiscal year. During the six months ended September 30, 2013, sales declined in all categories except Audio-Wearables & Wireless, Tablet 
Accessories, Remotes and PC Keyboards & Desktops. During the six months ended September 30, 2013, we also experienced significant sales 
decrease in Germany due to execution challenges which we are in the process of addressing. The decrease in Germany was offset in part by sales 
increase in the United Kingdom. Retail sell-through in the EMEA region decreased 6% in the six months ended September 30, 2013, compared 
with the same period of the prior fiscal year.  

   
Asia Pacific  
   
Asia Pacific region retail sales decreased by 4% during the three months ended September 30, 2013, compared with the same period of 

the prior fiscal year.  The decrease was primarily driven by declines in Non-Strategic Other, Audio-PC, Audio-Wearable & Wireless, Video and 
Tablet Accessories, offset in part by increases in PC Gaming, Pointing Devices, PC Keyboards & Desktops and Remotes. We experienced sales 
decline in Japan, offset in part by sales growth in China, compared to the same period of the prior fiscal year.  Retail sell-through in the Asia 
Pacific region increased 3% in the three months ended September 30, 2013, compared with the same period of the prior fiscal year.  
   

Asia Pacific region retail sales remained constant during the six months ended September 30, 2013, compared with the same period of the 
prior fiscal year.  Sales in PC Gaming, Tablet Accessories, PC Keyboard & Desktops and Remotes increased while sales in Audio PC, non-
strategic Other, Video, Pointing Device, Audio-PC and Audio-Wearables & Wireless decreased. We also experienced sales decrease in Japan, 
offset in part by sales growth in China, compared to the same periods of the prior fiscal year.  Retail sell-through in the Asia Pacific region 
increased 2% in the six months ended September 30, 2013, compared with the same period of the prior fiscal year.  
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Net Retail Sales by Product Category  
   

Net retail sales by product category during the three and six months ended September 30, 2013 and 2012 were as follows (in thousands):  
   

   
Retail Pointing Devices  
   

Retail sales of Pointing Devices increased 7% and retail units sold increased 3% in the three months ended September 30, 2013, compared 
with the same period ended September 30, 2012. The growth was primarily from the Americas region, where sales increased by 16%, compared 
with the same period of the prior fiscal year.  The growth was offset in part by the continued weakness in the global PC market. Specifically, the 
increase during the three months ended September 30, 2013 was driven by our low-end product offerings, which experienced a 12% increase, 
followed by our high-end product offerings, which experienced a 53% increase, offset in part by a decrease of 25% in our mid-range product 
offerings.  Sales of all cordless mice increased 9% and units sold increased 12% in the three months ended September 30, 2013, compared with 
the same period of the prior fiscal year.  Corded mice sales decreased 4% and units sold decreased 9% in the three months ended September 30, 
2013, compared with the same period of the prior fiscal year.  By geography, the Americas region sales and units sold increased by 16% and 
10%, the EMEA region sales and units sold remained constant and decreased by 9%, and the Asia Pacific region sales and units sold increased 
by 5% and 16% during this period.  

   
Retail sales of Pointing Devices increased 3% and retail units sold increased 2% in the six months ended September 30, 2013, compared 

with the same period ended September 30, 2012. The increase during the six months ended September 30, 2013 was primarily driven by our 
mid-range product offerings, which experienced a 9% increase, followed by our high-end product offerings, which experienced a 23% increase, 
offset in part by a decrease of 1% in our low-end product offerings.  The growth was offset in part by the continued weakness in the global PC 
market. Sales of all cordless mice increased 6%, while units sold increased 8% in the six months ended September 30, 2013, compared with the 
same period of the prior fiscal year.  Corded mice sales and units sold decreased 7% in the six months ended September 30, 2013, compared with 
the same period of the prior fiscal year.  By geography, the Americas region sales and units sold increased by 15% and 10%, the EMEA region 
sales and units sold decreased by 4% and 6%, and the Asia Pacific region sales and units sold decreased by 3% and increased by 6% during this 
period.  

   
Retail PC Keyboards and Desktops  
   

Retail sales of PC Keyboards & Desktops increased 8% during the three months ended September 30, 2013, compared with the same 
period of the prior fiscal year, and units sold increased 3% during this period.  This sales increase was driven by a very strong quarter in our 
cordless keyboard category, led by our Wireless Touch Keyboard K400, which features an integrated touchpad and has been popular for use in 
the living room.  Sales of corded and cordless keyboard decreased by 2% and increased by 33% in sales and decreased by 14% and increased by 
29% in units sold during the three months ended September 30, 2013, compared with the same period in the prior fiscal year.  Sales of corded 
and cordless desktops increased by 7% and units sold increased by 6% and 18% during the three months ended September 30, 2013, compared 
with the same period in the prior fiscal year. By geography, the Americas region sales increased by 16% and units sold increased by 5%, the 
EMEA region sales increased by 3% and units sold decreased by 3%, and the Asia Pacific region sales and units sold increased by 5% and 7% 
during this period.  
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      Three Months ended September 30,  
         Six Months ended September 30,  

         
      2013  

   2012  
   Change %  

   2013  
   2012  

   Change %  
   

                                    
Retail - Pointing Devices  

   $ 130,656 
   $ 122,524 

   7 %  $ 245,307 
   $ 238,353 

   3 %  
Retail - PC Keyboards & 

Desktops  
   105,236 

   97,069 
   8 %  203,186 

   191,628 
   6 %  

Retail - Tablet Accessories  
   34,711 

   33,737 
   3 %  73,270 

   49,623 
   48 %  

Retail - Audio PC  
   67,199 

   77,267 
   (13 )% 119,164 

   138,792 
   (14 )% 

Retail - Audio - Wearables & 
Wireless  

   25,648 
   19,108 

   34 %  44,723 
   33,707 

   33 %  
Retail - Video  

   41,061 
   49,453 

   (17 )% 76,319 
   86,612 

   (12 )% 
Retail - PC Gaming  

   41,493 
   46,673 

   (11 )% 81,110 
   73,456 

   10 %  
Retail - Remotes  

   13,327 
   16,434 

   (19 )% 27,901 
   30,166 

   (8 )% 
Retail - Other  

   5,522 
   14,214 

   (61 )% 7,109 
   29,243 

   (76 )% 

      $ 464,853 
   $ 476,479 

        $ 878,089 
   $ 871,580 
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Retail sales of PC Keyboards & Desktops increased 6% during the six months ended September 30, 2013, compared with the same period 
of the prior fiscal year, while units sold decreased 1% during this period.  This sales increase was driven by a very strong quarter in our cordless 
keyboard category, led by our Wireless Touch Keyboard K400. Sales of corded and cordless keyboard decreased by 10% and increased by 36% 
in sales and decreased by 20% and increased by 25% in units sold during the six months ended September 30, 2013, compared with the same 
period in the prior fiscal year.  Sales of corded and cordless desktops increased by 7% and 4% and units sold increased by 5% and 12% during 
the six months ended September 30, 2013, compared with the same period in the prior fiscal year. By geography, the Americas region sales 
increased by 15% and units sold remained constant, the EMEA region sales remained constant and units sold decreased by 7%, and the Asia 
Pacific region sales and units sold increased by 2% and 3% during this period.  

   
Retail Tablet Accessories  
   
Retail Tablet Accessories increased 3% and retail units sold increased 26% in the three months ended September 30, 2013, compared with 

the same period ended September 30, 2012. The stronger unit growth reflects the broadening of our portfolio to address a larger portion of the 
tablet accessory market, including tablet cases. The relatively low sales growth in the quarter is primarily due to the timing of our new product 
launches. We launched a number of new iPad accessories in the first quarter of the current fiscal year, which led to a sales increase of over 100% 
during the first quarter. Given the timing of the release date of the next generation iPad, we did not have a similar product launch during the 
quarter ended September 30, 2013, compared with the same quarter of the prior year. Specifically, this increase in sales was driven by strong 
demand from the Logitech Ultrathin Keyboard Cover for the iPad Mini and the Logitech Keyboard Folio suite of products designed for the iPad 
and iPad mini.  By geography, the Americas region sales increased by 21% and units sold increased by 23%, the EMEA region sales decreased 
by 13% while units sold increased by 37%, and the Asia Pacific region sales decreased by 19% while units sold increased by 17% during this 
period.  

   
Retail Tablet Accessories increased 48% and retail units sold increased 70% in the six months ended September 30, 2013, compared with 

the same period ended September 30, 2012.  This increase was driven by sales growth from the Logitech Ultrathin Keyboard Cover for the iPad 
Mini and the Logitech Keyboard Folio suite of products designed for the iPad and iPad mini. The stronger unit growth reflects the broadening of 
our portfolio to address a larger portion of the tablet accessory market, including tablet cases. By geography, the Americas region sales increased 
by 56% and units sold increased by 64%, the EMEA region sales increased by 25% while units sold increased by 64%, and the Asia Pacific 
region sales increased by 70% while units sold increased by 100% during this period.  

   
Retail Audio-PC  
   
Retail Audio-PC sales and units sold decreased 13% and 17% during the three months ended September  30, 2013, compared with the 

same period in the prior fiscal year. This decrease was due to sales and unit declines of 14% and 17% in PC speakers and sales and unit declines 
of 11% and 17% in PC headsets.  These declines reflect both weakness in the overall market for new PCs, a market shift toward mobile audio 
devices, and a product line that has not been meaningfully refreshed in over a year.  We have started to address this situation through our recent 
introduction of the Logitech Bluetooth Speakers Z600, wireless stereo speakers that stream music and other audio from a computer, smartphone 
or tablet. By geography, we experienced declines in all regions during this period.  The declines were led by the Asia Pacific region where sales 
and units sold decreased by 19% and 27%, followed by the EMEA region where sales and units sold decreased by 11% and 19%, and by the 
Americas region where sales and units sold decreased by 14% and 11%.  
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Retail Audio-PC sales and units sold decreased 14% and 20% during the six months ended September  30, 2013, compared with the same 
period in the prior fiscal year. This decrease was due to sales and unit declines of 14% and 19% in PC speakers and sales and unit declines of 
15% and 22% in PC headsets.  These declines reflect both weakness in the overall market for new PCs, a market shift toward mobile audio 
devices, and a product line that has not been meaningfully refreshed in over a year.  We have started to address this situation through our recent 
introduction of the Logitech Bluetooth Speakers Z600, wireless stereo speakers that stream music and other audio from a computer, smartphone 
or tablet. By geography, we experienced declines in all regions during this period.  The declines were led by the Asia Pacific region where sales 
and units sold decreased by 21% and 31%, followed by the EMEA region where sales and units sold decreased by 13% and 21%, and by the 
Americas region where sales and units sold decreased by 13% and 14%.  

   
Retail Audio - Wearables & Wireless  
   
Retail Audio-Wearables & Wireless sales increased 34% during the three months ended September 30, 2013, compared with the same 

period of the prior fiscal year, while retail units sold decreased 35% during this period.  This increase was due to a 119% increase in our wireless 
speakers for smartphones and tablets, driven by strong demand for the UE Mobile Boombox, the UE BOOM and the UE Mini Boombox.  Sales 
of our audio wearables products continued to be weak, decreasing by 49% during the three months ended September 30, 2013, compared with 
the same period of the prior fiscal year.  By geography, we experienced strong overall growth in Americas and EMEA regions, led by the 
Americas region where sales increased by 73% while units sold decreased by 19%, followed by the EMEA region where sales increased by 63% 
while units sold decreased by 4%, offset in part by the Asia Pacific region where sales and units sold decreased by 27% and 59%.  

   
Retail Audio-Wearables & Wireless sales increased 33% during the six months ended September 30, 2013, compared with the same period 

of the prior fiscal year, while retail units sold decreased 29% during this period.  This increase was due to a 122% increase in our wireless 
speakers for smartphones and tablets, driven by strong demand for the UE Mobile Boombox, the UE BOOM and UE Mini Boombox.  Sales of 
our audio wearables products continued to be weak, decreasing by 45% during the six months ended September 30, 2013, compared with the 
same period of the prior fiscal year.  By geography, we experienced strong growth in Americas and EMEA regions, led by the Americas region 
where sales increased by 51% while units sold decreased by 14%, followed by the EMEA region where sales and units sold increased by 59% 
and 3%, offset in part by the Asia Pacific region where sales and units sold decreased by 5% and 51%.  

   
Retail Video  
   
Retail Video sales and units sold decreased by 17% and 31% during the three months ended September 30, 2013, compared with the same 

period in the prior fiscal year. The sales decrease was mainly due to weakness in our retail webcam product line, which declined by 14% during 
this period, and which continued to be negatively impacted by the combination of market trends, including the popularity of embedded webcams 
in mobile devices, and the overall weakness of the PC market.  The decline in our webcam product line was concentrated in the low-end, from 
which we are gradually shifting away.  The decline was offset in part by strong growth in our high-end webcam category, which increased by 
25%, driven by the Logitech HD Pro Webcam C920 and the webcams targeted at the Unified Communications applications. The decrease in 
retail video sales was also from a 25% decline in our digital video security products, a category we announced we would transition out of by the 
end of fiscal year 2014.  By geography, sales and units sold decreased by 7% and 16% in the Americas region, 26% and 42% in the EMEA 
region, and 15% and 25% in the Asia Pacific region.  

   
Retail Video sales and units sold decreased by 12% and 31% during the six months ended September 30, 2013, compared with the same 

period in the prior fiscal year. The sales decrease was mainly due to weakness in our consumer webcam product line, which declined by 10% 
during this period, and which continued to be negatively impacted by the combination of market trends, including the popularity of embedded 
webcams in mobile devices, and the overall weakness of the PC market.  The decline in our  
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webcam product line was concentrated in the low-end, from which we are gradually shifting away.   The decline was offset in part by strong 
growth in our high-end category, which increased by 40%, and our mid-range webcam category, which increased by 195%, driven by the 
Logitech HD Pro Webcam C920 and the webcams targeted at the Unified Communications applications.  The decrease in retail video sales was 
also from a 26% decline in our digital video security products.  By geography, sales and units sold decreased by 1% and 15%, 21% and 42%, 
and 13% and 28% in Americas, EMEA and Asia Pacific regions, respectively.  

   
Retail PC Gaming  
   
Retail PC Gaming sales and units sold decreased by 11% and 1% during the three months ended September 30, 2013, compared with the 

same period in the prior fiscal year. The decrease was primarily driven by the weakness in EMEA region caused by poor sales execution in 
Germany, our largest market in the region. The decrease was offset in part by the recent launch of new gaming products, including mice, 
keyboards and headsets. PC Gaming sales increased by 17% and 14% in the Americas and Asia Pacific regions and decreased by 34% in the 
EMEA region in the three months ended September 30, 2013, compared with the same period of the prior fiscal year.  

   
Retail PC Gaming sales and units sold increased by 10% and 6% during the six months ended September 30, 2013, compared with the 

same period in the prior fiscal year. This growth was driven by the recent launch of new gaming products, including mice, keyboards and 
headsets.  PC Gaming sales increased by 39% and 24% in the Americas and Asia Pacific regions and decreased by 11% in the EMEA region in 
the six months ended September 30, 2013, compared with the same period of the prior fiscal year.  

   
Retail Remotes  
   
Retail sales and units sold of our Remotes category decreased 19% and 51% during the three months ended September 30, 2013, 

compared with the same period of the prior fiscal year. The 51% decline in units sold, relative to the 19% sales decrease, reflects our shift in 
focus on high-end remote categories. During the three months ended September 30, 2013, we experienced strong demand for the Logitech 
Harmony Ultimate and Harmony Touch, our premium remote product launched during the current quarter.  By geography, remote sales 
decreased in the Americas and the EMEA regions by 20% and 19%, and increased by 7% in the Asia Pacific region.  

   
Retail sales and units sold of our Remotes category decreased 8% and 46% during the six months ended September 30, 2013, compared 

with the same period of the prior fiscal year. The 46% decline in units sold, relative to the 8% sales decrease, reflects our shift in focus on high-
end remote categories. During the six months ended September 30, 2013, we also experienced strong demand for the Logitech Harmony 
Ultimate and Harmony Touch.  By geography, remote sales decreased in the Americas region by 17% and increased by 31% and 74% in the 
EMEA and Asia Pacific regions.  

   
Retail Other  
   
This category comprises a variety of products that we currently intend to transition out of, or have already transitioned out of, because 

they are no longer strategic to our business.  Products currently included in this category include speaker docks, streaming media systems, 
console gaming peripherals and other products. We will continue to evaluate non-strategic products as part of our ongoing portfolio 
management.  

   
Retail sales of this category decreased by 61% during the three months ended September 30, 2013, compared with the same period in the 

prior fiscal year, while retail units sold decreased 59% during this period.  Our other category sales in the Americas, EMEA and Asia Pacific 
regions decreased by 73%, 42% and 105% in the three months ended September 30, 2013, compared with same period of the prior fiscal year.  
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Retail sales of this category decreased by 76% during the six months ended September 30, 2013, compared with the same period in the 
prior fiscal year, while retail units sold decreased 73% during this period.  Our other category sales in the Americas, EMEA and Asia Pacific 
regions decreased by 86%, 64% and 105% in the six months ended September 30, 2013, compared with same period of the prior fiscal year.  

   
OEM  
   
OEM sales and units sold increased by 2% and 2% during the three months ended September 30, 2013, compared with the same period of 

the prior fiscal year. This increase was primarily driven by a 32% increase in OEM PC Keyboards & Desktops sales during this period due to 
new business from a large customer as well as a sale opportunity in the Gaming category.  

   
OEM sales and units sold decreased by 2% and remained constant during the six months ended September 30, 2013, compared with the 

same period of the prior fiscal year. This decrease was primarily driven by the weakness of global PC market, offset in part by a 23% increase in 
OEM PC Keyboards & Desktops sales during this period due to new business from a large customer as well as a sale opportunity in the Gaming 
category.  

   
Video Conferencing  
   
Video conferencing net sales decreased 14% and 16% during the three and six months ended September 30, 2013, compared with the 

same periods of the prior fiscal year.  This decrease was experienced in all geographic regions, and resulted from the combination of a changing 
industry landscape caused by a shift to less expensive, cloud-based video conferencing solutions, an evolving LifeSize product line and 
challenges in execution.  

   
Gross Profit  
   

Gross profit for the three and six months ended September 30, 2013 and 2012 was as follows (in thousands):  
   

   
Gross profit consists of net sales, less cost of goods sold which includes materials, direct labor and related overhead costs, costs of 

manufacturing facilities, costs of purchasing components from outside suppliers, distribution costs, outside processing costs, write-down of 
inventories and amortization of intangible assets.  

   
The decline in gross margin for the three months ended September 30, 2013, compared with the same period of the prior fiscal year, 

primarily resulted from a $5.2 million write-off of discontinued products, resulting from the restructuring of our video conferencing reporting 
segment during the three months ended September 30, 2013.  

   
The improvement in gross margin for the six months ended September 30, 2013, compared with the same period of the prior fiscal year, 

primarily resulted from cost improvements across all of our PC-related categories and from actions we took during fiscal year 2013 to streamline 
our product portfolio.  The improvement also resulted from negative factors affecting the September 30, 2012 gross margin which did not exist 
during the three months ended September 30, 2013, including $4.5 million in pricing actions related to the simplification of our product portfolio 
in the Americas and EMEA regions, $3.0 million in costs related to product development efforts that were discontinued as a result of the 
April 2012 restructuring, and a provision for a patent dispute. The improvement was offset in part by the $5.2 million write-off of discontinued 
products, a product rationalization initiative resulting from the restructuring of our video conferencing reporting segment during the quarter 
ended September 30, 2013.  
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      Three Months ended September 30,  
         Six Months ended September 30,  

         
      2013  

   2012  
   Change  

   2013  
   2012  

   Change  
   

            As Revised  
               As Revised  

         
                                    
Net sales  

   $ 531,972 
   $ 547,693 

   (3 )%  $ 1,009,896 
   $ 1,016,297 

   (1 )% 
Cost of goods sold  

   348,559 
   351,919 

   (1 )%  658,128 
   675,177 

   (3 )% 
Gross profit  

   $ 183,413 
   $ 195,774 

   (6 )%  $ 351,768 
   $ 341,120 

   3 %  
Gross margin  

   34.5 %  35.7 %  
     34.8 %  33.6 %  
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Operating Expenses  
   

Operating expenses for the three and six months ended September 30, 2013 and 2012 were as follows (in thousands):  
   

   
The decrease in total operating expenses as a percentage of net sales was primarily due to the restructuring plans initiated in first and fourth 

quarters of fiscal year 2013, which reduced personnel-related expenses.  
   
We refer to our operating expenses excluding the impact of foreign currency exchange rates as constant dollar operating expenses. Constant 

dollar operating expenses are a non-GAAP financial measure, which is information derived from consolidated financial information but not 
presented in our financial statements prepared in accordance with U.S. GAAP. Our management uses these non-GAAP measures in its financial 
and operational decision-making, and believes these non-GAAP measures, when considered in conjunction with the corresponding GAAP 
measures, facilitate a better understanding of changes in operating expenses. Constant dollar operating expenses are calculated by translating 
prior period operating expenses in each local currency at the current period’s average exchange rate for that currency.  

   
Marketing and Selling  
   

Marketing and selling expense consists of personnel and related overhead costs, corporate and product marketing, promotions, advertising, 
trade shows, customer and technical support and facilities costs.  

   
Marketing and selling expense reduced by 15% and 8% during the three and six months ended September 30, 2013, compared with the 

same periods of the prior fiscal year.  The decrease was primarily driven by the decreases in personnel-related expenses and share-based 
compensation expense due to the reduction in worldwide workforce resulting from our recent restructuring plans. During the three months ended 
September 30, 2013, new product launches declined substantially since such activities were shifted to the three months ended June 30, 2013, 
which caused the decrease of marketing and selling expense during the three month ended September 30, 2013 being greater than the decrease 
during the  six month ended  September 30, 2013.  

   
If foreign currency exchange rates had been the same in the three months ended September 30, 2013 and 2012, the percentage change in 

constant dollar marketing and selling expense would have also been 15%.  If foreign currency exchange rates had been the same in the six 
months ended September 30, 2013 and 2012, the percentage change in constant dollar marketing and selling expense would have also been 8%.  
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      Three Months ended September 30,  
         Six Months ended September 30,  

         
      2013  

   2012  
   Change  

   2013  
   2012  

   Change  
   

            As Revised  
               As Revised  

         
                                    
Marketing and selling  

   $ 93,710 
   $ 110,522 

   (15 )% $ 194,345 
   $ 211,419 

   (8 )% 
% of net sales  

   18 %  20 % 
     19 %  21 % 

     
Research and development  

   37,633 
   38,114 

   (1 )% 73,824 
   77,137 

   (4 )% 
% of net sales  

   7 %  7 % 
     7 %  8 % 

     
General and administrative  

   29,395 
   25,980 

   13 %  58,543 
   58,460 

   0 %  
% of net sales  

   6 %  5 % 
     6 %  6 % 

     
Restructuring charges  

   5,465 
   (2,671 )  (305 )% 7,799 

   28,556 
   (73 )% 

% of net sales  
   1 %  0 % 

     1 %  3 % 
     

Total operating expenses  
   $ 166,203 

   $ 171,945 
   (3 )% $ 334,511 

   $ 375,572 
   (11 )% 
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Research and Development  
   
Research and development expense consists of personnel and related overhead costs, contractors and outside consultants, supplies and 

materials, equipment depreciation and facilities costs, all associated with the design and development of new products and enhancements of 
existing products.  

   
Although we continued to make investments in product development, we experienced 1% and 4% decreases in research and development 

expense during the three and six months ended September 30, 2013, compared with the same period of the prior fiscal year, primarily from a 
decline in personnel-related expenses due to the reduction in worldwide workforce resulting from our recent restructuring plans.  

   
If foreign currency exchange rates had been the same in the three months ended September 30, 2013 and 2012, the change in constant 

dollar research and development expense would have also been a decrease of 2%.  If foreign currency exchange rates had been the same in the 
six months ended September 30, 2013 and 2012, the change in constant dollar research and development expense would have also been a 
decrease of 4%.  

   
General and Administrative  
   

General and administrative expense consists primarily of personnel and related overhead and facilities costs for the finance, information 
systems, executive, human resources and legal functions.  

   
General and administrative expense increased 13% in the three months ended September 30, 2013, compared with the three months ended 

September 30, 2012, primarily driven by higher variable compensation costs related to our improved performance during the current quarter. 
General and administrative expense remained constant in the six months ended September 30, 2013, compared with the six months ended 
September 30, 2012. During the six months ended September, 2013, higher variable compensation costs were offset in part by the decline in 
personnel-related expenses, facility-related expenses and share-based compensation expense due to our recent restructuring plans combined with 
the write-off of the remaining lease obligations resulting from the exit of our former corporate headquarters which occurred during the three 
months ended June 30, 2012.  

   
If foreign currency exchange rates had been the same in the three months ended September 30, 2013 and 2012, the percentage change in 

constant dollar general and administrative expense would have also been a decrease of 13%. If foreign currency exchange rates had been the 
same in the six months ended September 30, 2013 and 2012, the percentage change in constant dollar general and administrative expense would 
have also remained constant.  

   
Restructuring Charges  
   

Restructuring charges consist of termination benefits, lease exit costs and other charges associated with our restructuring plans.  
   
During the first quarter of fiscal year 2013, we implemented a restructuring plan to simplify our organization, to better align costs with 

our current business, and to free up resources to pursue growth opportunities. A majority of the restructuring activity was completed during the 
three months ended June 30, 2012. As part of this restructuring plan, we reduced our worldwide non-direct-labor workforce. Charges and other 
costs related to the workforce reduction are presented as restructuring charges in the consolidated statements of operations. During the three 
months ended September 30, 2012, we incurred a $3.8 million credit in termination benefits to affected employees due to the further refinement 
of estimates previously accrued during the three months ended June 30, 2012. For the six months ended September 30, 2012, we incurred $24.8 
million in termination benefits to affected employees under this plan. Termination benefits are calculated based on regional benefit practices and 
local statutory requirements. In addition, we incurred legal, consulting, and other costs of $1.1 million and $2.2 million as a result of the 
terminations during the three and six months ended September 30, 2012. We also incurred $1.5 million in lease exit costs primarily related to 
costs associated with the closure of existing facilities during the six months ended September 30, 2012.  
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During the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2013, we implemented an additional restructuring plan to align our organization to our strategic 
priorities of increasing focus on mobility products, improving profitability in PC-related products and enhancing global operational efficiencies.  
As part of this restructuring plan, we reduced our worldwide non-direct-labor workforce. Restructuring charges under this plan primarily 
consisted of severance and other one-time termination benefits. Charges and other costs related to the workforce reduction are presented as 
restructuring charges in the consolidated statements of operations. During the three months ended September 30, 2013, we incurred a $0.8 
million credit in termination benefits to affected employees due to the further refinement of estimates which were previously accrued and a $0.3 
million charge in lease exit costs. During the six months ended September 30, 2013, restructuring changes under this plan included $1.2 million 
in termination benefits to affected employees and $0.6 million in lease exit costs.  We estimate completing this restructuring plan during fiscal 
year 2014.  

   
During the second quarter of fiscal year 2014, we implemented a restructuring plan solely affecting our video conferencing operating 

segment to align its organization to its strategic priorities of increasing focus on a tighter range of products, expanding cloud-based video 
conferencing services and improving profitability. Restructuring charges under this plan primarily consist of severance and other one-time 
termination benefits. Charges and other costs related to the workforce reduction are presented as restructuring charges in the consolidated 
statements of operations. During the three months ended September 30, 2013, restructuring charges under this plan included $5.4 million in 
termination benefits to affected employees and $0.6 million in lease exit costs. We estimate completing this restructuring plan during fiscal year 
2014.  
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The following table summarizes restructuring-related activities (in thousands):  
   

   

(1) During the three months ended September 30, 2013, we incurred $4.6 million in termination benefits, $5.4 million charge related to the 
restructuring plan initiated during the second quarter of fiscal year 2014 offset by a $0.8 million credit related to the restructuring plan initiated 
during the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2013.  During the same period, we also incurred $0.9 million in lease exit costs, $0.6 million related to the 
restructuring plan initiated during the second quarter of fiscal year 2014 and $0.3 million related to the restructuring plan initiated during the 
fourth quarter of fiscal year 2013.  
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      Total  
   

Termination  
Benefits  

   
Lease Exit  

Costs  
   Other  

   
                         
Balance at March 31, 2012  

   $ —
   $ —

   $ —
   $ —

   
                         

Charges  
   31,227 

   28,655 
   1,472 

   1,100 
   

Cash payments  
   (5,195 )  (4,766 )  —

   (429 ) 
Foreign exchange  

   63 
   63 

   —
   —

   
                         
Balance at June 30, 2012  

   26,095 
   23,952 

   1,472 
   671 

   
                         

Charges (credits)  
   (2,671 )  (3,816 )  48 

   1,097 
   

Cash payments  
   (17,652 )  (16,642 )  (52 )  (958 ) 

Foreign exchange  
   14 

   —
   —

   14 
   

                         
Balance at September 30, 2012  

   $ 5,786 
   $ 3,494 

   $ 1,468 
   $ 824 

   
                         

Charges (credits)  
   (358 )  (188 )  (182 )  12 

   
Cash payments  

   (4,511 )  (2,633 )  (1,104 )  (774 ) 
Foreign exchange  

   —
   —

   —
   —

   
                         
Balance at December 30, 2012  

   917 
   673 

   182 
   62 

   
                         

Charges (credits)  
   15,507 

   16,437 
   (30 )  (900 ) 

Cash payments  
   (2,966 )  (3,727 )  (77 )  838 

   
Foreign exchange  

   —
   —

   —
   —

   
                         
Balance at March 31, 2013  

   13,458 
   13,383 

   75 
   —

   
                         

Charges  
   2,334 

   2,004 
   330 

   —
   

Cash payments  
   (8,422 )  (8,422 )  —

   —
   

Foreign exchange  
   (170 )  (170 )  —

   —
   

                         
Balance at June 30, 2013  

   7,200 
   6,795 

   405 
   —

   
                         

Charges  
   5,465 

   4,562 (1) 903 (1) —
   

Cash payments  
   (7,099 )  (6,535 )  (564 )  —

   
Foreign exchange  

   —
   —

   —
   —

   
                         
Balance at September 30, 2013  

   $ 5,566 
   $ 4,822 

   $ 744 
   $ —
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Interest Income, net  
   
Interest income, net for the three and six months ended September 30, 2013 and 2012 were as follows (in thousands):  
   

   
Interest income remained constant in the three months ended September 30, 2013, compared with the three months ended September 30, 

2012. Interest income was lower in the six months ended September 30, 2013, compared with the six months ended September 30, 2012, 
primarily due to lower invested balances resulting from the $133.5 million cash dividend payment made on September 18, 2012 and from the 
$87.8 million paid to repurchase 8.6 million shares under our amended September 2008 buyback program.  

   
Other Income (Expense)  
   

Other income (expense) for the three and six months ended September 30, 2013 and 2012 were as follows (in thousands):  
   

   
Foreign currency exchange gains or losses relate to balances denominated in currencies other than the functional currency of a particular 

subsidiary, to the sale of currencies, and to gains or losses recognized on foreign exchange forward contracts. We do not speculate in currency 
positions, but we are alert to opportunities to maximize foreign exchange gains.  

   
Investment income (loss) for three and six months ended September 30, 2013 and 2012 represents earnings, gains, and losses on trading 

investments related to a deferred compensation plan offered by one of our subsidiaries.  
   
During the six months ended September 30, 2012, we sold the remaining two of our available-for-sale securities for $0.9 million. This 

sale resulted in $0.8 million of gain recognized in other income (expense), $0.3 million of which resulted from the recognition of a temporary 
increase in fair value previously recorded in accumulated other comprehensive loss.  

   
Provision for Income Taxes  
   

The provision for income taxes and effective tax rates for the three and six months ended September 30, 2013 and 2012 were as follows (in 
thousands):  

   

   
The provision for (benefit from) income taxes consists of income and withholding taxes. We operate in multiple jurisdictions and our profits 

are taxed pursuant to the tax laws of these jurisdictions. Our effective income tax rate may be affected by changes in or interpretations of tax 
laws and tax agreements in any given jurisdiction, utilization of net operating loss and tax credit carryforwards, changes in geographical mix of 
income and expense, and changes in management’s assessment of matters such as the ability to realize deferred tax assets.  
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      Three Months ended September 30,  
         Six Months ended September 30,  

         
      2013  

   2012  
   Change  

   2013  
   2012  

   Change  
   

                                    
Interest income  

   $ 496 
   $ 495 

   0 %  $ 918 
   $ 1,227 

   (25 )% 
Interest expense  

   (313 )  (342 )  (8 )%  (758 )  (690 )  10 %  
Interest income, net  

   $ 183 
   $ 153 

   20 %  $ 160 
   $ 537 

   (70 )% 

      Three Months ended September 30,  
         Six Months ended September 30,  

         
      2013  

   2012  
   Change  

   2013  
   2012  

   Change  
   

                                    
Foreign currency exchange gain (loss)  

   (77 )  (937 ) 92 %  413 
   (1,608 )  126 %  

Investment income (loss) related to 
deferred compensation plan  

   (121 )  510 
   124 %  243 

   99 
   (145 )% 

Gain on sale of investments  
   —

   —
   (100 )% —

   831 
   (100 )% 

Other, net  
   260 

   (82 ) (417 )% (377 )  10 
   (3870 )% 

Other income (expense)  
   $ 62 

   $ (509 ) 112 %  $ 279 
   $ (668 )  142 %  

      Three Months ended September 30,  
   Six Months ended September 30,  

   
      2013  

   2012  
   2013  

   2012  
   

                          
Benefit from income taxes  

   $ 3,057 
   $ (31,076 )  $ 2,255 

   $ (37,986 )  
Effective income tax rate  

   17.5 % (132.4 )% 12.7 % 109.8 % 
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The change in the effective income tax rate for the three and six months ended September 30, 2013 compared with the same periods in 

fiscal year 2013 is primarily due to the mix of income and losses in the various tax jurisdictions in which we operate, and the treatment of 
restructuring expenses as a discrete event in determining the annual effective tax rate in fiscal year 2013.  In addition, there was a discrete tax 
benefit of $32.1 million in the three months ended September 30, 2012 from the reversal of uncertain tax positions resulting from the closure of 
federal income tax examinations in the United States.  

   
In fiscal year 2013, we incurred $43.7 million of restructuring charges and related expenses to simplify the organization and to align the 

organization to its strategic priorities, $28.6 million of such charges were incurred through the second quarter of fiscal year 2013 with the 
remaining balance primarily incurred in the fourth quarter of the fiscal year.  In the three and six months ended September 30, 2013, we incurred 
restructuring-related termination benefits and lease exit costs in the amount of $5.5 million and $7.8 million, respectively.  In determining the 
estimated fiscal 2014 annual effective tax rate, the restructuring activities were not treated as a discrete event as the charges were not 
significantly unusual and infrequent in nature, unlike those that were incurred in fiscal year 2013.   The tax benefit associated with the 
restructuring in the six months ended September 30, 2013 was not material.  

   
As of September 30 and March 31, 2013, the total amount of unrecognized tax benefits and related accrued interest and penalties due to 

uncertain tax positions was $103.5 million and $102.0 million, of which $90.8 million and $90.3 million would affect the effective income tax 
rate if recognized.  We classified the unrecognized tax benefits as non-current income taxes payable.  

   
We continue to recognize interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax positions in income tax expense. As of September 30 and 

March 31, 2013, we had approximately $6.9 million and $6.6 million of accrued interest and penalties related to uncertain tax positions.  
   
We file Swiss and foreign tax returns. For all these tax returns, we are generally not subject to tax examinations for years prior to fiscal year 

2001. We are under examination and have received assessment notices in foreign tax jurisdictions. At this time, we are able to estimate the 
potential impact that these examinations may have on income tax expense. If the examinations are resolved unfavorably, there is a possibility 
they may have a material negative impact on our results of operations.  
   

Although we have adequately provided for uncertain tax positions, the provisions on these positions may change as revised estimates are 
made or the underlying matters are settled or otherwise resolved. It is not possible at this time to reasonably estimate changes in the 
unrecognized tax benefits within the next twelve months.  

   
Liquidity and Capital Resources  
   
Cash Balances, Available Borrowings, and Capital Resources  
   

At September 30, 2013, our working capital was $389.5 million, compared with $381.6 million at March 31, 2013. The increase in working 
capital over the prior year was primarily due to higher receivable and inventory balances, offset in part by a $36.1 million cash dividend 
payment. This dividend was approved on September 4, 2013 by our shareholders at the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders and paid in 
September 2013.  

   
During the six months ended September 30, 2013, we generated $14.2 million from operating activities. Our main sources of operating cash 

flows were net income after adding non-cash expenses of depreciation, amortization, and share-based compensation expense, and from an 
increase in accounts payable and accrued and other liabilities. These sources of operating cash flows were offset in part by a increase in accounts 
receivable and inventories. Net cash used in investing activities was $23.3 million,  
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primarily from $23.1 million of investments in leasehold improvements, computer hardware and software, tooling and equipment and from a 
$0.7 million investment in a privately-held company. Net cash used by financing activities was $30.4 million, primarily from the $36.1 million 
cash dividend, offset in part by $6.1 million in proceeds received from sale of shares upon exercise of options and purchase rights.  

   
At September 30, 2013, we had cash and cash equivalents of $294.8 million. Our cash and cash equivalents are comprised of bank 

demand deposits and short-term time deposits carried at cost, which is equivalent to fair value. Approximately 58% of our cash and cash 
equivalents are held by our Swiss-based entities, and approximately 27% is held by our subsidiaries in Hong Kong and China. We do not expect 
to incur any material adverse tax impact or be significantly inhibited by any country in which we do business from the repatriation of funds to 
Switzerland, our home domicile.  

   
In December 2011, we entered into a Senior Revolving Credit Facility Agreement with a group of primarily Swiss banks that provides for a 

revolving multicurrency unsecured credit facility in an amount of up to $250.0 million. We may, upon notice to the lenders and subject to certain 
requirements, arrange with existing or new lenders to provide up to an aggregate of $150.0 million in additional commitments, for a total of 
$400.0 million of unsecured revolving credit. The credit facility may be used for working capital, general corporate purposes, and acquisitions. 
There were no outstanding borrowings under the credit facility at September 30, 2013.  

   
The credit facility matures on October 31, 2016. We may prepay the loans under the credit facility in whole or in part at any time without 

premium or penalty. Borrowings under the credit facility will accrue interest at a per annum rate based on LIBOR (London Interbank Offered 
Rate), or EURIBOR (Euro Interbank Offered Rate) in the case of loans denominated in euros, plus a variable margin determined quarterly based 
on the ratio of senior debt to earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization for the preceding four-quarter period, plus, if 
applicable, an additional rate per annum intended to compensate the lenders for the cost of compliance with regulatory reserve requirements and 
other banking regulations. We also pay a quarterly commitment fee of 40% of the applicable margin on the available commitment. In connection 
with entering into the credit facility, we incurred non-recurring fees totaling $1.5 million, which are amortized on a straight-line basis over the 
term of the credit facility.  
   

The facility agreement contains representations and covenants, including threshold financial covenants, and events of default customary in 
Swiss credit markets. Affirmative covenants include covenants regarding reporting requirements, maintenance of insurance, maintenance of 
properties and compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and financial covenants that require the maintenance of net senior debt, interest 
cover and adjusted equity ratios determined in accordance with the terms of the facility. Negative covenants limit the ability of the Company and 
its subsidiaries, among other things, to grant liens, make investments, incur debt, make restricted payments, enter into a merger or acquisition, or 
sell, transfer or dispose of assets, in each case subject to certain exceptions. As of March 31, 2013, we were not in compliance with the interest 
coverage ratio of the credit facility. This situation resulted from the significant operating loss incurred during fiscal year 2013. On June 13, 2013, 
we amended the credit facility to amend the definitions of (a) EBITDA to exclude the effect of impairment of goodwill and other intangible 
assets and (b) interest coverage ratio calculation to utilize EBITDA rather than EBIT. As of September 30, 2013, we were not in compliance 
with the adjusted equity ratio of this facility.  The facility continues to be available for our use based on a temporary waiver of the adjusted 
equity ratio covenant through the end of the third quarter of fiscal year 2014.  

   
This facility stipulates that, upon an uncured event of default under the facility, the lenders may declare all or a portion of the outstanding 

obligations payable by us to be immediately due and payable, terminate their commitments and exercise other rights and remedies provided for 
under the facility. The events of default under the facility include, among other things, payment defaults, covenant defaults, inaccuracy of 
representations and warranties, cross defaults with certain other indebtedness, bankruptcy and insolvency events and events that have a material 
adverse effect (as defined in the facility). Upon a change of control of the Company, lenders whose commitments aggregate more than two-thirds 
of the total commitments under the facility may terminate the commitments and declare all outstanding obligations to be due and payable.  
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We have credit lines with several European and Asian banks totaling $62 million as of September 30, 2013. As is common for businesses 
in European and Asian countries, these credit lines are uncommitted and unsecured. Despite the lack of formal commitments from the banks, we 
believe that these lines of credit will continue to be made available because of our long-standing relationships with these banks and our current 
financial condition. At September 30, 2013, there were no outstanding borrowings under these lines of credit. There are no financial covenants or 
cross default provisions under these facilities. We also have credit lines related to corporate credit cards totaling $17.4 million as of 
September 30, 2013. The outstanding borrowings under these credit lines are recorded in other current liabilities. There are no financial 
covenants or cross default provisions under these credit lines.  

   
We have financed our operating and capital requirements primarily through cash flow from operations and, to a lesser extent, from capital 

markets and bank borrowings. Our normal liquidity for the next 12 months and our longer-term capital resource requirements are provided from 
three sources: cash flow generated from operations, cash and cash equivalents on hand, and borrowings, as needed, under our credit facilities. 
We believe that, based on the trend of our historical cash flow generation, our projections of future operations and reduced expenses, our 
available cash balances and credit lines will provide sufficient liquidity to fund our operation for at least the next 12 months.  

   
Cash Flow from Operating Activities  
   

The following table presents selected financial information and statistics as of September 30, 2013 and 2012 (dollars in thousands):  
   

   

(1)                  DSO is determined using ending accounts receivable as of the most recent quarter-end and net sales for the most recent quarter.  
(2)                  ITO is determined using ending inventories and annualized cost of goods sold (based on the most recent quarterly cost of goods sold).  
   

During the six months ended September 30, 2013, operating activities provided net cash of $14.2 million, compared with net cash 
provided by operating activities of $9.2 million for the same period in the prior fiscal year. The primary drivers of the increase in net cash 
provided by operating cash flows include increase in net income, from $3.4 million in the six months ended September 30, 2012 to $15.4 million 
in the six months ended September 30, 2013, and from a $39.6 million increase in accounts payable and a $26.1 million increase in accrued and 
other liabilities. These increases of operating cash flows were offset in part by a $77.0 million increase in accounts receivable and a $21.4 
million increase in inventories during this period.  

   
DSO improved by three days between the three months ended September 30, 2013 and the three months ended September 30, 2012, 

primarily due to lower accounts receivable balances resulting from increased cash collection. Typical payment terms require customers to pay 
for product sales generally within 30 to 60 days. However, terms may vary by customer type, by country and by selling season.  
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      September 30,  
   

      2013  
   2012  

   
            As Revised  

   
               
Accounts receivable, net  

   $ 258,858 
   $ 284,451 

   
Inventories  

   292,777 
   321,307 

   
Working capital  

   389,504 
   345,071 

   
Days sales in accounts receivable (DSO) (1)  

   44 days 
   47 days 

   
Inventory turnover (ITO) (2)  

   4.8x 
   4.4x 

   
Net cash provided by operating activities  

   $ 14,186 
   $ 9,247 
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Extended payment terms are sometimes offered to a limited number of customers during the second and third fiscal quarters. We do not modify 
payment terms on existing receivables, but may offer discounts for early payment.  

   
Inventory turnover between the three months ended September 30, 2013 and 2012 increased primarily due to lower inventory level as of 

September 31, 2013, compared to the inventory level as of September 30, 2012.  
   

Cash Flow from Investing Activities  
   

Cash flows from investing activities during the six months ended September 30, 2013 and 2012 were as follows (in thousands):  
   

   
Our expenditures for property, plant and equipment during the six months ended September 30, 2013 and 2012 were principally normal 

expenditures for leasehold improvements, computer hardware and software, tooling and equipment. During the six months ended September 30, 
2013, purchases of property, plant and equipment decreased, compared with the six months ended September 30, 2012, primarily due to 
leasehold improvements related to our new Silicon Valley campus during the three months ended June 30, 2012.  

   
During the six months ended September 30, 2013, we invested $0.7 million to acquire a privately-held company.  During the six months 

ended September 30, 2012, we sold our two remaining available-for-sale securities for $0.9 million. The purchases and sales of trading 
investments in the six months ended September 30, 2013 and 2012 represent mutual fund activity directed by participants in a deferred 
compensation plan offered by one of our subsidiaries. The mutual funds are held by a Rabbi Trust.  

   
Cash Flow from Financing Activities  
   

The following table presents information on our cash flows from financing activities during the six months ended September 30, 2013 and 
2012 (in thousands):  
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      Six Months ended September 30,  
   

      2013  
   2012  

   
           As Revised  

   
                
Purchases of property, plant and equipment  

   $ (23,063 )  $ (32,817 )  
Acquisition of a privately-held company  

   (650 )  (3,970 )  
Proceeds from sale of available-for-sale securities  

   —
   917 

   
Purchases of trading investments  

   (6,146 )  (1,648 )  
Proceeds from sale of trading investments  

   6,602 
   1,638 

   
Net cash used in investing activities  

   $ (23,257 )  $ (35,880 )  

      Six Months ended September 30,  
   

      2013  
   2012  

   
            As Revised  

   
                
Cash dividend payment  

   $ (36,123 )  $ (133,462 )  
Purchase of treasury shares  

   —
   (87,812 )  

Proceeds from sale of shares upon exercise of options and purchase rights  
   6,135 

   9,008 
   

Tax withholdings related to net share settlements of RSUs  
   (453 )  (635 )  

Excess tax benefits from share-based compensation  
   —

   22 
   

Net cash used in financing activities  
   $ (30,441 )  $ (212,879 )  
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During the six months ended September 30, 2012, we repurchased 8.6 million shares for $87.8 million under the Company’s amended 
September 2008 buyback program, compared with the six months ended September 30, 2013, during which no share repurchases were made. 
The amounts of the repurchases include transaction costs incurred as part of the repurchase.  

   
Cash Outlook  
   

Our principal sources of liquidity are our cash and cash equivalents, cash flow generated from operations and, to a lesser extent, capital 
markets and borrowings. Our future working capital requirements and capital expenditures may increase to support investment in product 
innovations and growth opportunities, or to acquire or invest in complementary businesses, products, services, and technologies.  

   
In December 2011, we entered into a Senior Revolving Credit Facility Agreement with a group of primarily Swiss banks that provides for a 

revolving multicurrency unsecured credit facility in an amount of up to $250.0 million. We may, upon notice to the lenders and subject to certain 
requirements, arrange with existing or new lenders to provide up to an aggregate of $150.0 million in additional commitments, for a total of 
$400.0 million of unsecured revolving credit. The credit facility may be used for working capital, general corporate purposes, and acquisitions. 
The credit facility matures on October 31, 2016.  We may prepay the loans under the credit facility in whole or in part at any time without 
premium or penalty. The facility agreement contains representations, covenants, including threshold financial covenants, and events of default 
customary in Swiss credit markets. There were no outstanding borrowings under the credit facility at September 30, 2013. As of September 30, 
2013, we were not in compliance with the adjusted equity ratio of this facility. The facility continues to be available for our use based on a 
temporary waiver of the adjusted equity ratio covenant through the end of the third quarter of fiscal year 2014.  

   
In September 2008, our Board of Directors approved a share buyback program, which authorizes the Company to invest up to $250.0 

million to purchase its own shares. In November 2011, we received approval from the Swiss regulatory authorities for an amendment to the 
September 2008 share buyback program to enable future repurchases of shares for cancellation.  In fiscal year 2012, we repurchased 17.5 million 
shares for $156.0 million under the September 2008 program. Under the amended September 2008 program, we repurchased 8.6 million shares 
for $87.8 million during fiscal year 2013. On September 5, 2012, our shareholders approved the cancellation of 18.5 million shares repurchased 
under the September 2008 amended share buyback program.  These shares were legally cancelled during the third quarter of fiscal year 2013. In 
August 2013, we announced that the $250.0 million share buyback program expired.  
   

Our shareholders approved a distribution of a gross dividend of CHF 0.21 per share (US dollar amount of $0.22 per share based on the 
exchange rate at September 13, 2013), or an aggregate amount of approximately CHF 33.7 million (U.S. dollar amount of $36.1 million based on 
the exchange rate at September 13, 2013).  The dividend payment was made in September 2013.  

   
We file Swiss and foreign tax returns. For all these tax returns, we are generally not subject to tax examinations for years prior to fiscal 

year 2001.  We are under examination and have received assessment notices in foreign tax jurisdictions. At this time, we are not able to estimate 
the potential impact that these examinations may have on income tax expense. If the examinations are resolved unfavorably, there is a possibility 
they may have a material negative impact on our results of operations.  

   
Although we have adequately provided for uncertain tax positions, the provisions on these positions may change as revised estimates are 

made or the underlying matters are settled or otherwise resolved.  It is not possible at this time to reasonably changes in the unrecognized tax 
benefits within the next twelve months.  

   
During the first quarter of fiscal year 2013, we implemented a restructuring plan to reduce operating costs and improve financial results. 

We substantially completed this restructuring plan during the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2013.  During the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2013, we 
implemented an additional restructuring plan to realign our organization to increase our focus on mobility products, improve profitability in PC-
related products and enhance our global operational efficiencies. During the second quarter of fiscal year 2014, we implemented a restructuring 
plan solely affecting our video conferencing reporting segment to align its organization to it strategic priorities of increasing focus on a tighter 
range of products, expanding cloud-based video conferencing services and improving profitability.  
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Our other contractual obligations and commitments that require cash are described in the following sections.  
   
For over ten years, we have generated positive cash flows from our operating activities, including cash from operations of $117.1 million in 

fiscal year 2013.  During fiscal year 2013, our normal level of cash and cash equivalents was significantly reduced by the cash dividend payment 
of CHF 125.7 million (U.S. dollar amount of $133.5 million at the time it was paid) out of retained earnings, and by the $87.8 million in share 
repurchases during this period. During fiscal year 2014, our cash and cash equivalents was further reduced by the cash dividend payment of CHF 
33.7 million (U.S. dollar amount of $36.1 million at the time it was paid) out of retained earnings. If we do not generate sufficient operating cash 
flows to support our operations and future planned cash requirements, our operations could be harmed and our access to credit facilities could be 
restricted or eliminated.  However, we believe that the trend of our historical cash flow generation, our projections of future operations and 
reduced expenses, our available cash balances and credit lines will provide sufficient liquidity to fund our operations for at least the next 12 
months.  

   
Although we believe that we can meet our liquidity needs, if we fail to meet our operating forecast or market conditions negatively affect 

our cash flows or ability to fund growth opportunities, we may be required to seek additional funding. If we seek additional funding, adequate 
funds may not be available on favorable terms, or at all. If adequate funds are not available on acceptable terms, or at all, we may be unable to 
adequately fund our business plans and it could have a negative effect on our business, operating cash flows and financial condition.  

   
Contractual Obligations and Commitments  
   

As of September 30, 2013, our outstanding contractual obligations and commitments included: (i) facilities leased under operating lease 
commitments, (ii) purchase commitments and obligations, (iii) long-term liabilities for income taxes payable, and (iv)defined benefit pension 
plan and non-retirement post-employment benefit obligations. The following summarizes our contractual obligations and commitments at 
September 30, 2013 (in thousands):  
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      September 30, 2013  
   

          
Operating leases  

   $ 84,640 
   

Purchase commitments - inventory  
   132,782 

   
Purchase obligations - capital expenditures  

   18,372 
   

Purchase obligations - operating expenses  
   63,426 

   
Income taxes payable - non-current  

   100,310 
   

Obligation for deferred compensation  
   15,435 

   
Pension and post-employment obligations  

   40,728 
   

Other long-term liabilities  
   11,070 

   
Total contractual obligations and commitments  

   $ 466,763 
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Operating Leases  
   

We lease facilities under operating leases, certain of which require it to pay property taxes, insurance and maintenance costs. Operating 
leases for facilities are generally renewable at our option and usually include escalation clauses linked to inflation. The remaining terms on our 
non-cancelable operating leases expire in various years through 2028. Our asset retirement obligations on these leases as of September 30, 2013 
were $1.2 million.  

   
Purchase Commitments  
   

At September 30, 2013, we have fixed purchase commitments of $132.8 million for inventory purchases made in the normal course of 
business to original design manufacturers, contract manufacturers and other suppliers, the majority of which are expected to be fulfilled by 
December 2013. We also had commitments of $63.4 million for consulting services, marketing arrangements, advertising, outsourced customer 
services, information technology maintenance and support services, and other services. Fixed purchase commitments for capital expenditures 
amounted to $18.4 million at September 30, 2013, and primarily relate to commitments for computer hardware and leasehold improvements. We 
expect to continue making capital expenditures in the future to support product development activities and ongoing and expanded operations. 
Although open purchase commitments are considered enforceable and legally binding, the terms generally allow us the option to reschedule and 
adjust our requirements based on business needs prior to delivery of goods or performance of services.  

   
Income Taxes Payable  
   

At September 30, 2013, we had $100.3 million in non-current income taxes payable, including interest and penalties, related to our 
income tax liability for recognized uncertain tax positions, compared with $98.8 million in non-current taxes payable as of March 31, 2013.  

   
We file Swiss and foreign tax returns. For all these tax returns, we are generally not subject to tax examinations for years prior to fiscal 

year 2001. We are under examination and have received assessment notices in foreign tax jurisdictions. At this time, we are not able to estimate 
the potential impact that these examinations may have on income tax expense. If the examinations are resolved unfavorably, there is a possibility 
they may have a material negative impact on our results of operations.  

   
Although we have adequately provided for uncertain tax positions, the provisions on these positions may change as revised estimates are 

made or the underlying matters are settled or otherwise resolved.  It is not possible at this time to reasonably estimate the changes of the 
unrecognized tax benefits within the next twelve months.  

   
Obligation for Deferred Compensation  
   

At September 30, 2013, we had $15.4 million in liabilities related to a deferred compensation plan offered by one of our subsidiaries. For 
more information, please refer to our Annual Report on Form 10-K/A for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2013.  

   
Pension and Post-Employment Obligations  
   

At September 30, 2013, we had $42.3 million in liabilities related to our defined benefit pension plans and non-retirement post-
employment benefit obligations, of which $1.6 million is payable in the next 12 months. For more information, please refer to our Annual Report 
on Form 10-K/A for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2013.  

   
Other Contractual Obligations and Commitments  
   

For further detail about our contractual obligations and commitments, please refer to our Annual Report on Form 10-K/A for the fiscal year 
ended March 31, 2013.  
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Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements  
   

We have not entered into any transactions with unconsolidated entities whereby we have financial guarantees, subordinated retained 
interests, derivative instruments or other contingent arrangements that expose us to material continuing risks, contingent liabilities, or any other 
obligation under a variable interest in an unconsolidated entity that provides financing, liquidity, market risk or credit risk support to us.  

   
Guarantees  
   

Logitech International S.A., the parent holding company, has guaranteed payment of the purchase obligations of various subsidiaries from 
certain component suppliers. These guarantees generally have an unlimited term. The maximum potential future payment under the guarantee 
arrangements is limited to $30 million. At September 30, 2013, there were no purchase obligations outstanding for which the parent holding 
company was required to guarantee payment.  

   
Logitech Europe S.A., a subsidiary of the parent holding company, has guaranteed the purchase obligations of another Logitech subsidiary 

under two guarantee agreements. One of these guarantees does not specify a maximum amount.  The remaining guarantee has a total limit of 
$7.0 million. As of September 30, 2013, an immaterial amount of guaranteed purchase obligations were outstanding under these guarantees. 
Logitech Europe S.A. has also guaranteed payment of the purchase obligations of a third-party contract manufacturer under one guarantee 
agreement.  The maximum amount of this guarantee was $3.5 million as of September 30, 2013.  As of September 30, 2013, $2.8 million of 
guaranteed purchase obligations were outstanding under this agreement.  

   
Logitech International S.A. and Logitech Europe S.A. have guaranteed certain contingent liabilities of various subsidiaries related to 

transactions occurring in the normal course of business. The maximum amount of the guarantees was $35.0 million as of September 30, 2013. 
As of September 30, 2013, $5.6 million of guaranteed obligations were outstanding under these agreements.  

   
Indemnifications  
   

Logitech indemnifies certain of its suppliers and customers for losses arising from matters such as intellectual property disputes and product 
safety defects, subject to certain restrictions. The scope of these indemnities varies, but in some instances, includes indemnification for damages 
and expenses, including reasonable attorneys’ fees. No amounts have been accrued for indemnification provisions at September 30, 2013. We do 
not believe, based on historical experience and information currently available, that it is probable that any material amounts will be required to 
be paid under our indemnification arrangements.  
   

Logitech also indemnifies its current and former directors and certain of its current and former officers. Certain costs incurred for providing 
such indemnification may be recoverable under various insurance policies. Logitech is unable to reasonably estimate the maximum amount that 
could be payable under these arrangements because these exposures are not capped, the obligations are conditional in nature, and the facts and 
circumstances involved in any situation that might arise are variable.  

   
Legal Proceedings  
   

From time to time we are involved in claims and legal proceedings which arise in the ordinary course of its business.  We are currently 
subject to several such claims and a small number of legal proceedings.  We believe that these matters lack merit and we intend to vigorously 
defend against them.  Based on currently available information, we do not believe that resolution of pending matters will have a material adverse 
effect on our financial condition, cash flows or results of operations.  However, litigation is subject to inherent uncertainties, and there can be no 
assurances that our defenses will be successful or that any such lawsuit or claim would not have a material adverse impact on our business, 
financial condition, cash flows and results of operations in a particular period.  Any claims or proceedings against us, whether meritorious or not, 
can have an adverse impact because of defense costs, diversion of management and operational resources, negative publicity and other factors. 
Any failure to obtain necessary license or other rights, or litigation arising out of intellectual property claims, could adversely affect our 
business.  
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ITEM 3.   QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK  
   
Market Risk  
   

Market risk represents the potential for loss due to adverse changes in the fair value of financial instruments. As a global concern, we face 
exposure to adverse movements in foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates. These exposures may change over time as business 
practices evolve and could have a material adverse impact on our financial results.  

   
Foreign Currency Exchange Rates  
   

We are exposed to foreign currency exchange rate risk as we transact business in multiple foreign currencies, including exposure related to 
anticipated sales, anticipated purchases and assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other than the U.S. dollar. Logitech transacts 
business in over 30 currencies worldwide, of which the most significant to operations are the Chinese Renminbi, Australian Dollar, Taiwanese 
Dollar, Euro, British Pound, Canadian Dollar, Japanese Yen and Mexican Peso. The functional currency of our operations is primarily the U.S. 
dollar.  To a lesser extent, certain operations use the Euro, Chinese Renminbi, Swiss Franc, or the local currency of the country as their 
functional currencies. Accordingly, unrealized foreign currency gains or losses resulting from the translation of net assets or liabilities 
denominated in foreign currencies to the U.S. dollar are accumulated in the cumulative translation adjustment component of other 
comprehensive (loss) in shareholders’ equity.  
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The table below provides information about our underlying transactions that are sensitive to foreign exchange rate changes, primarily 
assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other than the functional currency, where the net exposure is greater than $0.5 million at 
September 30, 2013. The table also presents the U.S. dollar impact on earnings of a 10% appreciation and a 10% depreciation of the functional 
currency as compared with the transaction currency (in thousands):  
   

   
Long currency positions represent net assets being held in the transaction currency while short currency positions represent net liabilities 

being held in the transaction currency.  
   
Our principal manufacturing operations are located in China, with much of our component and raw material costs transacted in CNY. 

However, the functional currency of our Chinese operating subsidiary is the U.S. dollar as its sales and trade receivables are transacted in U.S. 
dollars. To hedge against any potential significant appreciation of the CNY, we maintain a portion of our cash investments in CNY-denominated 
accounts. At September 30, 2013, net liabilities held in CNY totaled $54.5 million. We continue to evaluate the level of net assets held in CNY 
relative to component and raw material purchases and interest rates on cash equivalents.  

   
Derivatives  
   

We enter into foreign exchange forward contracts to hedge against exposure to changes in foreign currency exchange rates related to our 
subsidiaries’ forecasted inventory purchases. The primary risk managed by using derivative instruments is the foreign currency exchange rate 
risk. We have designated these derivatives as cash flow hedges. Logitech does not use derivative financial instruments for trading or speculative 
purposes. These hedging contracts generally mature within four months, and are denominated in the same currency as the underlying 
transactions. Gains and losses in the fair value of the effective portion of the hedges are deferred as a component of accumulated other 
comprehensive loss until the hedged inventory purchases are sold, at which time the gains or losses are reclassified to cost of goods sold. We 
assess the effectiveness of the hedges by comparing changes in the spot rate of the currency underlying the forward contract with changes in the 
spot rate of the currency in which the forecasted transaction will be consummated. If the underlying transaction being hedged fails to occur or if 
a portion of the hedge does not generate offsetting changes in the foreign currency exposure of forecasted inventory purchases, we immediately 
recognize the gain or loss on the associated financial instrument in other income (expense). As  
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Functional  
Currency  

   Transaction Currency  
   

Net Exposed  
Long (Short)  

Currency  
Position  

   

FX Gain (Loss)  
From 10%  

Appreciation of  
Functional  
Currency  

   

FX Gain (Loss)  
From 10%  

Depreciation of  
Functional  
Currency  

   
                           
Euro  

   British Pound  
   $ 15,486 

   $ (1,408 )  $ 1,721 
   

U.S. Dollar  
   Australian Dollar  

   12,025 
   (1,093 )  1,336 

   
Taiwanese Dollar  

   U.S. Dollar  
   11,867 

   (1,079 )  1,319 
   

Singapore Dollar  
   U.S. Dollar  

   2,926 
   (266 )  325 

   
U.S. Dollar  

   Indian Rupee  
   865 

   (79 )  96 
   

Euro  
   Romanian New Lei  

   742 
   (67 )  82 

   
Euro  

   Russian Rouble  
   704 

   (64 )  78 
   

Euro  
   Utd. Arab Emir. dirham  

   (525 )  48 
   (58 ) 

U.S. Dollar  
   Euro  

   (622 )  57 
   (69 ) 

Euro  
   Hungarian Forint  

   (658 )  60 
   (73 ) 

Euro  
   Polish Zloty  

   (710 )  65 
   (79 ) 

Euro  
   Hungarian Forint  

   (772 )  70 
   (86 ) 

Euro  
   Norwegian Kroner  

   (777 )  71 
   (86 ) 

Euro  
   Swedish Krona  

   (1,953 )  178 
   (217 ) 

Mexican Peso  
   U.S. Dollar  

   (11,177 )  1,016 
   (1,242 ) 

Japanese Yen  
   U.S. Dollar  

   (13,272 )  1,207 
   (1,475 ) 

Chinese Renminbi  
   U.S. Dollar  

   (54,541 )  4,958 
   (6,060 ) 

            $ (40,392 )  $ 3,674 
   $ (4,488 ) 



Table of Contents  
   

of September 30, 2013, the notional amounts of foreign exchange forward contracts outstanding related to forecasted inventory purchases were 
$56.7 million (€41.9 million). Deferred realized losses of $0.8 million are recorded in accumulated other comprehensive loss at September 30, 
2013, and are expected to be reclassified to cost of goods sold when the related inventory is sold. Deferred unrealized losses of $0.8 million 
related to open cash flow hedges are also recorded in accumulated other comprehensive loss as of September 30, 2013 and these forward 
contracts will be revalued in future periods until the related inventory is sold, at which time the resulting gains or losses will be reclassified to 
cost of goods sold.  

   
We also enter into foreign exchange forward contracts to reduce the short-term effects of foreign currency fluctuations on certain foreign 

currency receivables or payables. These forward contracts generally mature within three months. We may also enter into foreign exchange swap 
contracts to economically extend the terms of its foreign exchange forward contracts. The primary risk managed by using forward and swap 
contracts is the foreign currency exchange rate risk. The gains or losses on foreign exchange forward contracts are recognized in earnings based 
on the changes in fair value. Cash flows from these contracts are classified as operating activities in the consolidated statements of cash flows.  

   
The notional amounts of foreign exchange forward contracts outstanding at September 30, 2013 relating to foreign currency receivables or 

payables were $16.4 million. Open forward contracts as of September 30, 2013 consisted of contracts in U.S. Dollars to purchase Taiwanese 
Dollars and contract in euros to sell British Pounds. The notional amounts of foreign exchange swap contracts outstanding at September 30, 
2013 were $31.7 million. Swap contracts outstanding at September 30, 2013 consisted of contracts in Mexican Pesos, Japanese Yen and 
Australian Dollars. Unrealized net loss on the contracts outstanding at September 30, 2013 was $0.7 million.  

   
If the U.S. dollar had appreciated by 10% at September 30, 2013 compared with the foreign currencies in which we have forward or swap 

contracts, an unrealized gain of $6.3 million in our forward foreign exchange contract portfolio would have occurred. If the U.S. dollar had 
depreciated by 10% compared with the foreign currencies in which we have forward or swap contracts, a $10.7 million unrealized loss in our 
forward foreign exchange contract portfolio would have occurred.  

   
Interest Rates  
   

Changes in interest rates could impact our future interest income on our cash equivalents and investment securities. We prepared 
sensitivity analyses of our interest rate exposures to assess the impact of hypothetical changes in interest rates. Based on the results of these 
analyses, a 100 basis point decrease or increase in interest rates from the September 30, 2013 period end rates would not have a material effect 
on our results of operations or cash flows.  
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ITEM 4.   CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES  
   

Disclosure Controls and Procedures  
   

As of the end of the period covered by this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, Logitech carried out an evaluation, under the supervision 
and with the participation of our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and our Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of our 
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in the Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(e)). Disclosure controls and procedures are controls and other 
procedures designed to reasonably assure that information required to be disclosed in our reports filed under the Securities Exchange Act of 
1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”), such as this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within 
the time periods specified in the Securities and Exchange Commission’s rules and forms. Disclosure controls and procedures are also designed to 
reasonably assure that this information is accumulated and communicated to our management, including the Chief Executive Officer and the 
Chief Financial Officer, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.  

   
Based on that evaluation, Logitech’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have concluded that, as of such date, our 

disclosure controls and procedures were not effective as a result of the material weakness that existed in our internal control over financial 
reporting described below.  

   
Notwithstanding the material weaknesses discussed below, our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial 

Officer, has concluded that the consolidated financial statements included in this report fairly present, in all material respects, our financial 
condition, results of operations and cash flows for the periods presented in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States.  

   
Material Weaknesses in Internal Control over Financial Reporting  
   

A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over financial reporting, such that there is a 
reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely 
basis. Management identified the following material weaknesses as of March 31, 2013 that continued to exist as of September 30, 2013:  

   
(a) We did not design and maintain effective controls over the review of supporting information to determine the completeness and 

accuracy of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income (loss), and disclosures in the notes to 
the consolidated financial statements. While this control deficiency did not result in any material misstatement of our historical financial 
statements through June 30, 2013, it did result in audit adjustments to the consolidated statement of cash flows, the consolidated statement of 
comprehensive income (loss) and disclosures in the notes to the Company’s fiscal 2013 consolidated financial statements and revisions to the 
Company’s consolidated financial statements for the interim periods ended June 30, 2013 and September 30, 2013, and will result in additional 
similar revisions to our interim consolidated financial statements for the interim period ended December 31, 2013 when reported in fiscal 2014, 
if applicable to the interim consolidated financial statements.  

   
(b) We did not design and maintain effective controls related to developing an appropriate methodology to accrue costs of product 

warranties given to end customers, including an on-going review of the assumptions within the methodology to determine the completeness and 
accuracy of the warranty accrual.  While this control deficiency did not result in any material misstatement of our historical financial statements 
as of March 31, 2013, it did result in adjustments to our cost of goods sold and warranty accrual accounts and revisions to the Company’s 
consolidated financial statements for fiscal 2013, 2012 and 2011, and interim periods in fiscal 2013 and 2012.  

   
Additionally, these control deficiencies could result in a misstatement to the Company’s consolidated financial statements and 

disclosures that would result in a material misstatement to the annual or interim consolidated financial statements that would not be prevented or 
detected. Accordingly, management has determined these control deficiencies constitutes material weaknesses.  
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Management’s Plan for Remediation  
   

Logitech’s management has been actively engaged in developing a comprehensive remediation plan to fully address the material 
weaknesses. Remediation efforts taken by management include the following:  

   
•       implemented new controls and improved existing controls over financial reporting, including disclosures in the notes to the 

financial statements;  
   
•       implemented appropriate controls to accrue for product warranty costs, including an on-going review of assumptions within the 

methodology to capture all relevant costs related to product warranties given to end customers;  
   
•       hired an additional financial reporting manager and engaged consultants to assist in the financial reporting process; and  
   
•       increased training to reinforce pre-established and new controls to improve our ability to detect potential misstatements in our 

internally prepared reports, analyses and financial records.  
   
Logitech’s management believes the foregoing efforts will effectively remediate the material weaknesses. As we continue to evaluate 

and work to improve our internal control over financial reporting, management may determine to take additional measures to address the 
material weaknesses or determine to modify the remediation plan described above.  

   
Internal control over financial reporting, no matter how well designed, has inherent limitations. Therefore, even those controls 

determined to be effective may not prevent or detect misstatements and can provide only reasonable assurance with respect to financial statement 
preparation and presentation. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may 
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.  

   
Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting  
   

The changes in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting during the fiscal quarter ended September 30, 2013, that have 
materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company’s internal control over financial reporting are discussed above in 
Management’s Plan for Remediation.  
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PART II — OTHER INFORMATION  
   

ITEM 1.   LEGAL PROCEEDINGS  
   

From time-to-time we are involved in claims and legal proceedings which arise in the ordinary course of our business.  We are currently 
subject to several such claims and a small number of legal proceedings.  We believe that these matters lack merit and we intend to vigorously 
defend against them.  Based on currently available information, we do not believe that resolution of pending matters will have a material adverse 
effect on our financial condition, cash flows or results of operations.  However, litigation is subject to inherent uncertainties, and there can be no 
assurances that our defenses will be successful or that any such lawsuit or claim would not have a material adverse impact on our business, 
financial condition, cash flows and results of operations in a particular period.  Any claims or proceedings against us, whether meritorious or not, 
can have an adverse impact because of defense costs, diversion of management and operational resources, negative publicity and other factors. 
Any failure to obtain necessary license or other rights, or litigation arising out of intellectual property claims, could adversely affect our 
business.  

   
ITEM 1A.   RISK FACTORS  
   

Our operating results are difficult to predict and fluctuations in results may cause volatility in the price of our shares.  
   
Our revenues and profitability are difficult to predict due to the nature of the markets in which we compete, fluctuating end-user demand, 

the uncertainty of current and future global economic conditions, and for many other reasons, including the following:  
   

•       Our operating results are highly dependent on the volume and timing of orders received during the quarter, which are difficult to 
forecast. Customers generally order on an as-needed basis and we typically do not obtain firm, long-term purchase commitments 
from our customers. As a result, our revenues in any quarter depend primarily on orders booked and shipped in that quarter.  

   
•       A significant portion of our quarterly retail sales typically occurs in the last weeks of each quarter, further increasing the 

difficulty in predicting quarterly revenues and profitability.  
   
•       Our sales are impacted by end-user consumer demand and current and future global economic conditions, and can therefore 

fluctuate abruptly and significantly during periods of uncertain economic conditions or geographic distress, as well as from shifts 
in consumer buying patterns.  

   
•       We must incur a large portion of our costs in advance of sales orders, because we must plan research and production, order 

components, buy tooling equipment, and enter into development, sales and marketing, and other operating commitments prior to 
obtaining firm commitments from our customers. This makes it difficult for us to rapidly adjust our costs during the quarter in 
response to a revenue shortfall, which could adversely affect our operating results.  

   
•       We may not fully or in a timely manner realize the anticipated benefits from the restructuring plans we implemented during fiscal 

years 2013 and 2014. The restructuring plans were intended to simplify the organization, to reduce operating costs through global 
workforce reductions and a reduction in the complexity of our product portfolio, and to better align costs with our current 
business as we attempt to expand from PC accessories to growth opportunities in accessories for mobile devices and digital 
music.  
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•       Fluctuations in currency exchange rates can impact our revenues, expenses and profitability because we report our financial 
statements in U.S. dollars, whereas a significant portion of our revenues and expenses are in other currencies. We attempt to 
adjust product prices over time to offset the impact of currency movements. However, over short periods of time and during 
periods of weakness in consumer spending, our ability to increase local currency selling prices to offset the impact of currency 
fluctuations is limited.  

   
Because our operating results are difficult to predict, our results may be below the expectations of financial analysts and investors, which 

could cause the price of our shares to decline.  
   
If we fail to innovate and develop new products in a timely and cost-effective manner for our new and existing product categories, our 

business and operating results could be adversely affected.  
   
The peripherals industry is characterized by short product life cycles, frequent new product introductions, rapidly changing technology, 

dynamic consumer demand and evolving industry standards. As a result, we must continually innovate in our new and existing product 
categories, introduce new products and technologies, and enhance existing products in order to remain competitive.  

   
The success of our product portfolio depends on several factors, including our ability to:  
   

•       identify new features, functionality and opportunities;  
   
•       anticipate technology, market trends and consumer preferences;  
   
•       develop innovative, high-quality, and reliable new products and enhancements in a cost-effective and timely manner;  
   
•       distinguish our products from those of our competitors; and  
   
•       offer our products at prices and on terms that are attractive to our customers and consumers.  
   

If we do not execute on these factors successfully, products that we introduce or technologies or standards that we adopt may not gain 
widespread commercial acceptance, and our business and operating results could suffer. In addition, if we do not continue to differentiate our 
products through distinctive, technologically advanced features, designs, and services that are appealing to our customers and consumers, as well 
as continue to build and strengthen our brand recognition and our access to distribution channels, our business could be adversely affected.  

   
The development of new products and services is very difficult and requires high levels of innovation. The development process is also 

lengthy and costly. There are significant initial expenditures for research and development, tooling, manufacturing processes, inventory and 
marketing, and we may not be able to recover those investments. If we fail to accurately anticipate technological trends or our end-users’ needs 
or preferences, are unable to complete the development of products and services in a cost-effective and timely fashion or are unable to 
appropriately increase production to fulfill customer demand, we will be unable to successfully introduce new products and services into the 
market or compete with other providers. Even if we complete the development of our new products and services in a cost-effective and timely 
manner, they may be not competitive with products developed by others, they may not achieve acceptance in the market at anticipated levels or 
at all, they may not be profitable or, even if they are profitable, they may not achieve margins as high as our expectations or as high as the 
margins we have achieved historically.  

   
As we introduce new or enhanced products, integrate new technology into new or existing products, or reduce the overall number of 

products offered, we face risks including, among other things, disruption in customers’ ordering patterns, excessive levels of new and existing 
product inventories, revenue deterioration in our existing product lines, insufficient supplies of new products to meet customers’  
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demand, possible product and technology defects, and a potentially different sales and support environment. Premature announcements or leaks 
of new products, features or technologies may exacerbate some of these risks by reducing the effectiveness of our product launches, reducing 
sales volumes of current products due to anticipated future products, making it more difficult to compete, shortening the period of differentiation 
based on our product innovation, straining relationships with our partners or increasing market expectations for the results of our new products 
before we have had an opportunity to demonstrate the market viability of the products. Our failure to manage the transition to new products or 
the integration of new technology into new or existing products could adversely affect our business, results of operations, operating cash flows 
and financial condition.  

   
We believe sales of our PC (personal computer) peripherals in our mature markets will continue to decline, and that our future growth 

will depend on our new product categories and sales in emerging market geographies, and if we do not successfully execute on our growth 
opportunities, or if our sales of PC peripherals in mature markets are less than we expect, our operating results could be adversely affected.  

   
We have historically targeted peripherals for the PC platform. Consumer demand for PCs in our traditional, mature markets such as North 

America, Western and Nordic Europe, Japan and Australia has been declining and we expect it to continue to decline in the future. As a result, 
consumer demand for PC peripherals in mature markets is slowing and in some cases declining. We expect this trend to continue. For example, 
we experienced weak consumer demand for many of our PC peripherals in each quarter of fiscal year 2013, which adversely affected our 
financial performance.  From time to time, our channel partners have also reduced their inventory levels for PC peripherals as the PC market has 
continued to decline. In our OEM channel, the decline of desktop PCs has adversely impacted our sales of OEM mice, which have historically 
made up the bulk of our OEM sales. Our OEM sales accounted for 7%, 8% and 9% of total revenues in the fiscal years ended March 31, 2013, 
2012 and 2011.  

   
In addition, our sales in our mature markets in North America, Western and Nordic Europe, Japan and Australia might be less than we 

expect due to a decline in business or economic conditions in one or more of the countries or regions, a greater decline than we expect in demand 
for our products, our inability to successfully execute our sales and marketing plans, or for other reasons. Global economic concerns, such as the 
varying pace of global economic recovery and the impact of sovereign debt issues in Europe, create unpredictability and add risk to our future 
outlook.  

   
As a result, we are focusing more of our personnel, financial resources, and management attention on product innovations and growth 

opportunities, on products for tablets and mobile devices, on products for the consumption of digital music, on products for PC gaming, in 
emerging markets, and on other potential growth opportunities. Our investments may not result in the growth we expect, or when we expect it, 
for a variety of reasons including those described below.  

   
Tablets, Smartphones and Other Mobile Devices. The increasing popularity of smaller, mobile computing devices such as tablets and 

smartphones with touch interfaces is rapidly changing the consumer PC market. In our retail channels, tablets and smartphones are sold by 
retailers without peripherals. We believe this creates opportunities to sell products to consumers to help make their devices more productive and 
comfortable. However, consumer acceptance and demand for peripherals for use with tablets and other mobile computing devices is still 
uncertain. The increasing popularity of tablets and smartphones has decreased consumer demand for our PC peripherals, which has adversely 
affected our sales of these products. If we do not successfully innovate and market products designed for tablets and smartphones, if our 
distributor or retailer customers do not choose to carry or market such peripherals, or if general consumer demand for peripherals for use with 
these devices does not increase, our business and results of operations could be adversely affected.  

   
Digital Music. We are focused on products for the consumption of digital music as a future sales growth area. During fiscal year 2013, we 

increased our product development and marketing investment in digital music. However, several of our product launches were not as successful 
in fiscal year 2013 as we had expected due to a combination of our decision to limit our investment in lifestyle brand marketing and  
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weak competitive differentiation. This remains a new market for us, and we still face a steep learning curve.  Historically our audio product 
development and marketing efforts have focused primarily on products for the PC platform and on sound quality. This past experience has not 
been transferable to the consumption of music through mobile devices such as tablets and smartphones, where we believe consumers put a 
greater emphasis on features such as convenience and brand. In addition, competition in the digital music consumption category is intense, and 
we expect it to increase. If we are not able to identify product development and marketing skill gaps, resolve them, and introduce differentiated 
product and marketing strategies to separate ourselves from competitors, our digital music efforts will not be successful, and our business and 
results of operations could be adversely affected.  

   
PC Gaming .  We are shifting the focus of our gaming accessories from devices for console gaming, such as PlayStation, Xbox and 

Nintendo Wii, to keyboards, mice and other products for PC gaming, which we believe are the market segments with better growth 
opportunities. The developing and changing market and increasing competition increase the risk that we will not be successful with this more 
narrow focus, and our business and results of operations could be adversely affected.  

   
Emerging Markets. We believe that the world’s emerging markets, such as China, Eastern Europe and Latin America, will, for the next 

several years though with volatility from period to period, continue to be growth markets for our peripherals product lines. We have allocated 
significant resources to our sales, marketing and administrative personnel in China and, to a lesser extent, other emerging markets. We anticipate 
that emerging markets will include potentially high growth opportunities, offset by potentially entrenched local competition, higher credit risks, 
and other factors that affect consumer trends in ways that may be substantially different from our current major markets. PCs may not continue 
to be a growth category in emerging markets, and consumers in emerging markets may prefer tablets, smartphones, other mobile devices or other 
technologies. If we do not develop innovative and reliable peripherals and enhancements in a cost-effective and timely manner that are attractive 
to consumers in these markets, if consumer demand for PCs and our peripherals in emerging markets declines or does not increase as much as 
we expect, or if we invest resources in products or geographic areas that do not produce the growth or profitability we expect, or when we expect 
it, our business and results of operations could be adversely affected.  

   
As we expand into new markets and product categories, we must comply with a wide variety of laws, standards and other requirements 

governing, among other things, health and safety, hazardous materials usage, product-related energy consumption, packaging, recycling and 
environmental matters. Our products may be required to obtain regulatory approvals and satisfy other regulatory concerns in the various 
jurisdictions where they are manufactured, sold or both. These requirements create procurement and design challenges, which, among other 
things, require us to incur additional costs identifying suppliers and contract manufacturers who can provide or obtain compliant materials, parts 
and end products. Failure to comply with such requirements can subject us to liability, additional costs, and reputational harm and, in severe 
cases, force us to recall products or prevent us from selling our products in certain jurisdictions.  

   
If we do not compete effectively, demand for our products could decline and our business and operating results could be adversely 

affected.  
   
The peripherals and video conferencing industries are intensely competitive.  
   
The peripherals industry is characterized by short product life cycles, continual performance enhancements, and rapid adoption of 

technological and product advancements by competitors in our retail markets, and price sensitivity in the OEM market. We experience 
aggressive price competition and other promotional activities from our primary competitors and from less-established brands, including brands 
owned by retail customers known as house brands, in both the retail and OEM markets. In addition, our competitors may offer customers terms 
and conditions that may be more favorable than our terms and conditions and may require us to take actions to increase our customer incentive 
programs, which could impact our revenues and operating margins.  
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The video conferencing industry is characterized by continual performance enhancements and large, well-financed competitors. There is 
increased participation in the video conferencing market by companies such as Cisco Systems, Inc. and Polycom, Inc., and as a result, 
competition has increased in fiscal year 2013 and we expect competition in the industry to further intensify. In addition, there are an increasing 
number of PC-based multi-person video conferencing applications, such as Microsoft’s Lync and Skype, which could compete at the lower end 
of the video conferencing market with our LifeSize products and services or could provide other competitors with lower barriers of entry into the 
video conferencing market.  

   
In recent years, we have expanded the categories of products we sell, and entered new markets. We remain alert to opportunities in new 

categories and markets. As we do so, we are confronting new competitors, many of which have more experience in the categories or markets and 
have greater marketing resources and brand name recognition than we have. In addition, because of the continuing convergence of the markets 
for computing devices and consumer electronics, we expect greater competition in the future from well-established consumer electronics 
companies in our developing categories as well as in future categories we might enter. Many of these companies, such as Microsoft Corporation, 
Apple Inc., Cisco, Sony Corporation, Polycom and others, have greater financial, technical, sales, marketing and other resources than we have.  

   
Microsoft and Apple are leading producers of operating systems, hardware and applications with which our mice, keyboards and other 

peripherals are designed to operate. In addition, Microsoft and Apple each has significantly greater financial, technical, sales, marketing and 
other resources than Logitech, as well as greater name recognition and a larger customer base. As a result, Microsoft and Apple each may be able 
to improve the functionality of its own peripherals to correspond with ongoing enhancements to its operating systems, hardware and software 
applications before we are able to make such improvements. This ability could provide Microsoft and Apple with significant lead-time 
advantages. In addition, Microsoft and Apple may be able to offer pricing advantages on bundled hardware and software products that we may 
not be able to offer, and may be financially positioned to exert significant downward pressure on product prices and upward pressure on 
promotional incentives in order to gain market share.  

   
Pointing Devices and PC Keyboards & Desktops. Microsoft Corporation is our main competitor in our mice, keyboard and desktop 

product lines. We also experience competition and pricing pressure for corded and cordless mice and desktops from less-established brands, 
including house brands, which we believe have impacted our market share in some sales geographies and which could potentially impact our 
market share.  

   
Tablet Accessories. We primarily manufacture tablet keyboards and other accessories for Apple products, such as iPad and iPhone . 

Competitors in the tablet keyboard market are Zagg, Kensington, Belkin, Targus and other less-established brands. Although we are one of the 
front runners in the tablet keyboard market and continue to expand our product portfolio to other tablet products, we expect the competition will 
increase as large tablet manufactures, such as Microsoft Corporation, start to offer tablet keyboards and other accessories along with their tablet 
products.  

   
Audio PC .   In the PC speaker business, our competitors include Bose, Cyber Acoustics, Altec Lansing LLC and Creative Labs, Inc.  In 

the PC headset business, our main competitors include Plantronics and Altec Lansing.  
   
Audio Wearables & Wireless .  Our competitors for non-PC audio products, such as earphones and wireless speakers, include Skullcandy, 

Beats Electronics, Bose, Sennheiser and Jawbone, each of which have higher consumer recognition and retailer shelf space than we do.  
   
Video.   Our primary competitor for PC webcams is Microsoft, with various other manufacturers taking smaller market share. The 

worldwide market for PC webcams has been declining, and as a result, fewer competitors have entered the market.  
   
PC Gaming. Competitors for our PC Gaming peripheral products include Razer USA Ltd., SteelSeries, A4TECH, Turtle Beach and Mad 

Catz Interactive.  
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Remotes. Our primary competitors for remotes include Philips, Universal Remote Control, Inc., General Electric, RCA and Sony. We 
expect that the technological innovation in smartphone and tablet devices, as well as subscriber service specific remotes such as Direct TV, will 
likely result in increased competition.  

   
Video Conferencing.  We primarily compete in the medium and small business, education, and state and local business sectors of the 

enterprise video conferencing market.  This market is characterized by continual performance enhancements and large, well-financed 
competitors.  There is increased participation in the video conferencing market by companies such as Cisco Systems, Inc., Polycom, Inc. and 
Avaya, Inc., and as a result, competition has increased in fiscal year 2013 and we expect competition in the industry to further intensify.  In 
addition, there are an increasing number of PC-based multi-person video conferencing applications, such as Microsoft’s Lync and Skype, which 
could compete at the lower-end of the video conferencing market with our LifeSize products and services, or could provide other competitors 
with lower barriers of entry into the video conferencing market.  

   
Our business depends in part on access to third-party platforms or technologies, and if the access is withdrawn, denied, or is not 

available on terms acceptable to us, or if the platforms or technologies change without notice to us, our business and operating results could 
be adversely affected.  

   
Our peripherals business has historically been built largely around the PC platform, which over time became relatively open, and its 

inputs and operating system standardized. With the growth of mobile, tablet, gaming and other computer devices, the number of platforms has 
grown, and with it the complexity and increased need for us to have business and contractual relationships with the platform owners in order to 
produce products compatible with these platforms. Our product portfolio includes current and future products designed for use with third-party 
platforms or software, such as the Apple iPad, iPod and iPhone and Android phones and tablets. Our business in these categories relies on our 
access to the platforms of third parties, some of whom are our competitors. Platform owners that are competitors have a competitive advantage 
in designing products for their platforms and may produce peripherals or other products that work better than our products in connection with 
those platforms. As we expand the number of platforms and software applications with which our products are compatible, we may not be 
successful in launching products for those platforms or software applications, we may not be successful in establishing strong relationships with 
the new platform or software owners, or we may negatively impact our ability to develop and produce high-quality products on a timely basis for 
those platforms and software applications or we may otherwise adversely affect our relationships with existing platform or software owners.  

   
Our access to third-party platforms may require paying a royalty, which lowers our product margins, or may otherwise be on terms that 

are not acceptable to us. In addition, the third-party platforms or technologies used to interact with our product portfolio can be delayed in 
production or can change without prior notice to us, which can result in our having excess inventory or lower margins.  

   
If we are unable to access third-party platforms or technologies, or if our access is withdrawn, denied, or is not available on terms 

acceptable to us, or if the platforms or technologies are delayed or change without notice to us, our business and operating results could be 
adversely affected.  

   
If we do not accurately forecast market demand for our products, our business and operating results could be adversely affected.  
   
We use our forecasts of product demand to make decisions regarding investments of our resources and production levels of our products. 

Although we receive forecasts from our customers, many are not obligated to purchase the forecasted demand. Also, actual sales volumes for 
individual products in our retail distribution channel can be volatile due to changes in consumer preferences and other reasons. In addition, our 
retail products have short product life cycles, so a failure to accurately predict high demand for a product can result in lost sales that we may not 
recover in subsequent periods, or higher product costs if we meet demand by paying higher costs for materials, production and delivery. We 
could also frustrate our customers and lose shelf space. Our failure to predict low demand for a product can result in excess inventory, lower 
cash flows and lower margins if we are required to reduce product prices in order to reduce inventories.  
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Over the past few years, we have expanded the types of products we sell, and the geographic markets in which we sell them. The changes 
in our product portfolio and the expansion of our sales markets have increased the difficulty of accurately forecasting product demand.  

   
We have experienced large differences between our forecasts and actual demand for our products. We expect other differences between 

forecasts and actual demand to arise in the future. If we do not accurately predict product demand, our business and operating results could be 
adversely affected.  

   
Our success largely depends on our ability to hire, retain, integrate and motivate sufficient numbers of qualified personnel, including 

senior management. Our strategy and our ability to innovate, design and produce new products, sell products, maintain operating margins 
and control expenses depend on key personnel that may be difficult to replace.  

   
Our success depends on our ability to attract and retain highly skilled personnel, including senior management and international 

personnel. From time to time, we experience turnover in some of our senior management positions.  
   
We compensate our employees through a combination of salary, bonuses, benefits and equity compensation. Recruiting and retaining 

skilled personnel, including software and hardware engineers, is highly competitive. If we fail to provide competitive compensation to our 
employees, it will be difficult to retain, hire and integrate qualified employees and contractors, and we may not be able to maintain and expand 
our business. If we do not retain our senior managers or other key employees for any reason, we risk losing institutional knowledge, experience, 
expertise and other benefits of continuity as well as the ability to attract and retain other key employees. In addition, we must carefully balance 
the size of our employee base with our current infrastructure, management resources and anticipated operating cash flows. If we are unable to 
manage the size of our employee base, particularly engineers, we may fail to develop and introduce new products successfully and in a cost-
effective and timely manner. If our revenue growth or employee levels vary significantly, our operating cash flows and financial condition could 
be adversely affected. Volatility or lack of positive performance in our stock price, including declines in our stock prices in the past year, may 
also affect our ability to retain key employees, many of whom have been granted equity incentives. Logitech’s practice has been to provide 
equity incentives to its employees, but the number of shares available for equity grants is limited. We may find it difficult to provide competitive 
equity incentives, and our ability to hire, retain and motivate key personnel may suffer.  

   
Recently and in past years, we have initiated reductions in our workforce to align our employee base with our anticipated revenue base or 

with our areas of focus. We have also experienced turnover in our workforce. These reductions and turnover have resulted in reallocations of 
duties, which could result in employee uncertainty and discontent. Reductions in our workforce could make it difficult to attract, motivate and 
retain employees, which could adversely affect our business.  

   
We may not fully realize the anticipated benefits from our restructuring plans.  
   
In order to simplify the organization, to implement our strategic focus on growth opportunities, to reduce operating costs through global 

workforce reductions and a reduction in the complexity of our product portfolio, and to better align costs with our current business and 
decreasing revenues, we restructured our business in fiscal year 2013 and in the first half of fiscal year 2014.  We may continue to restructure in 
fiscal year 2014 as we divest or discontinue non-strategic product categories.  

   
Our ability to achieve the anticipated cost savings and other benefits from these restructurings within our expected timeframes are subject 

to many estimates and assumptions, and the actual savings and timing for those savings may vary materially based on factors such as local labor 
regulations, negotiations with third parties, and operational requirements. These estimates and assumptions are subject to significant economic, 
competitive and other uncertainties, some of which are beyond our control. There can be no assurance that we will fully realize the anticipated 
benefits from these restructuring plans. To the extent that we are unable to improve our financial performance, further restructuring measures 
may be required in the future.  
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As part of the restructuring plans, we conducted intensive reviews of our product portfolio in fiscal year 2013 and attempted to reduce the 
assortment of similar products at similar price points within each product category, which we believe has generated confusion for the consumer. 
While we are constantly replacing products and dependent on the success of our new products, this product line simplification effort was 
substantial, making us even more dependent on the success of the new products that we are introducing.  

   
Our gross margins can vary significantly depending on multiple factors, which can result in unanticipated fluctuations in our 

operating results.  
   
Our gross margins can vary due to consumer demand, competition, product life cycle, new product introductions, unit volumes, 

commodity and supply chain costs, geographic sales mix, foreign currency exchange rates, and the complexity and functionality of new product 
innovations. In particular, if we are not able to introduce new products in a timely manner at the product cost we expect, or if consumer demand 
for our products is less than we anticipate, or if there are product pricing, marketing and other initiatives by our competitors to which we need to 
react or that are initiated by us to drive sales that lower our margins, then our overall gross margin will be less than we project.  

   
In addition, our gross margins may vary significantly by product line, sales geography and customer type, as well as within product lines. 

When the mix of products sold shifts from higher margin product lines to lower margin product lines, to lower margin sales geographies, or to 
lower margin products within product lines, our overall gross margins and our profitability may be adversely affected.  

   
As we expand into accessories for tablets and other mobile devices, and digital music, our products in those categories may have lower 

gross margins than in our traditional product categories.  Consumer demand in these product categories, based on style, color and other factors, 
tends to be less predictable and tends to vary more across geographic markets.  As a result, we may face higher up-front investments and 
inventory costs associated with attempting to anticipate consumer preferences.  If we are unable to offset these potentially lower margins by 
enhancing the margins in our more traditional product categories, our profitability may be adversely affected.  

   
The impact of these factors on gross margins can create unanticipated fluctuations in our operating results, which may cause volatility in 

the price of our shares.  
   
As we focus on growth opportunities, we are divesting or discontinuing non-strategic product categories and pursuing strategic 

acquisitions and investments, which could have an adverse impact on our business if they are unsuccessful.  
   
During the third quarter of fiscal year 2013, the declining trends in our PC peripherals accelerated, and we made a strategic decision to 

divest or discontinue certain non-strategic product categories and products. If we are unable to effect such sales on favorable terms or if such 
realignment is more costly or distracting than we expect or has a negative effect on our organization, employees and retention, then our business 
and operating results may be adversely affected. In addition, discontinuing products with service components may cause us to continue to incur 
expenses to maintain services within the product life cycle or to adversely affect our customer and consumer relationships and brand.  

   
As we attempt to grow our business in strategic product categories and emerging market geographies, we will consider growth through 

acquisition or investment.  We will evaluate acquisition opportunities that could provide us with additional product or service offerings or with 
additional industry expertise, assets and capabilities. Acquisitions could result in difficulties integrating acquired operations, products, 
technology, internal controls, personnel and management teams and result in the diversion of  
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capital and management’s attention away from other business issues and opportunities. If we fail to successfully integrate acquisitions, our 
business could be harmed.  Moreover, our acquisitions may not be successful in achieving our desired strategic objectives, which would also 
cause our business to suffer. Acquisitions can also lead to large non-cash charges that can have an adverse effect on our results of operations as a 
result of write-offs for items such as future impairments of intangible assets and goodwill or the recording of stock-based compensation.  Several 
of our past acquisitions have not been successful and have led to impairment charges, including a $214.5 million non-cash goodwill impairment 
charge in fiscal year 2013.  In addition, from time to time we make strategic venture investments in other companies that provide products and 
services that are complementary to ours. If these investments are unsuccessful, this could have an adverse impact on our results of operations, 
operating cash flows and financial condition.  

   
We rely on third parties to sell and distribute our products, and we rely on their information to manage our business. Disruption of 

our relationship with these channel partners, changes in their business practices, their failure to provide timely and accurate information or 
conflicts among our channels of distribution could adversely affect our business, results of operations, operating cash flows and financial 
condition.  

   
Our sales channel partners, the distributors and retailers who distribute and sell our products, also sell products offered by our competitors 

and, in the case of retailer house brands, may also be our competitors. If product competitors offer our sales channel partners more favorable 
terms, have more products available to meet their needs, or utilize the leverage of broader product lines sold through the channel, or if our 
retailer channel partners show preference for their own house brands, our sales channel partners may de-emphasize or decline to carry our 
products. In addition, certain of our sales channel partners could decide to de-emphasize the product categories that we offer in exchange for 
other product categories that they believe provide them with higher returns. If we are unable to maintain successful relationships with these sales 
channel partners or to maintain our distribution channels, our business will suffer.  

   
As we expand into accessories for tablets and other mobile devices and digital music, we will have to build relationships with new 

channel partners and adapt to new distribution and marketing models.  Entrenched and more experienced competitors will make these transitions 
difficult.  If we are unable to build successful distribution channels or successfully market our products in these new product categories, we may 
not be able to take advantage of the growth opportunities, and our business and our ability to effect a turnaround in our declining revenues could 
be adversely affected.  

   
The impact of economic conditions, evolving consumer preferences, and purchasing patterns on our distribution partners, or competition 

between our sales channels, could result in sales channel disruption. For example, if sales at large retail stores are displaced as a result of 
bankruptcy, competition from internet sales channels or otherwise, our product sales could be adversely affected. Any loss of a major partner or 
distribution channel or other channel disruption could make us more dependent on alternate channels, increase pricing and promotional pressures 
from other partners and distribution channels, increase our marketing costs, or adversely impact buying and inventory patterns, payment terms or 
other contractual terms.  

   
We use retail sell-through data, which represents sales of our products by our retailer customers to consumers, and by our distributor 

customers to their customers, along with other metrics, to assess consumer demand for our products. Sell- through data is subject to limitations 
due to collection methods and the third party nature of the data and thus may not be an accurate indicator of actual consumer demand for our 
products. In addition, the customers supplying sell-through data vary by geographic region and from period to period, but typically represent a 
majority of our retail sales. If we do not receive this information on a timely and accurate basis, or if we do not properly interpret this 
information, our results of operations and financial condition may be adversely affected.  
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Our principal manufacturing operations and third-party contract manufacturers are located in China and Southeast Asia, which 
exposes us to risks associated with doing business in that geographic area.  

   
We produce approximately half of our products at facilities we own in China. The majority of our other production is performed by third-

party contract manufacturers, including other design manufacturers, in China. We also utilize third-party contract manufacturers in Malaysia and 
India.  

   
Our manufacturing operations in China could be adversely affected by changes in the interpretation and enforcement of legal standards, 

by strains on China’s available labor pool, communications, trade, and other infrastructures, by natural disasters, by conflicts or disagreements 
between China and Taiwan or China and the United States, by labor unrest, and by other trade customs and practices that are dissimilar to those 
in the United States and Europe. Interpretation and enforcement of China’s laws and regulations continue to evolve and we expect differences in 
interpretation and enforcement to continue in the foreseeable future.  

   
Our manufacturing operations at third-party contractors could be adversely affected by contractual disagreements, by labor unrest, by 

natural disasters, by strains on local communications, trade, and other infrastructures, by competition for the available labor pool or 
manufacturing capacity, and by other trade customs and practices that are dissimilar to those in the United States and Europe.  

   
Further, we may be exposed to fluctuations in the value of the local currency in the countries in which manufacturing occurs. Future 

appreciation of these local currencies could increase our component and other raw material costs. In addition, our labor costs could continue to 
rise as wage rates increase and the available labor pool declines. These conditions could adversely affect our gross margins and financial results.  

   
We purchase key components and products from a limited number of sources, and our business and operating results could be 

adversely affected if supply were delayed or constrained or if there were shortages of required components.  
   
We purchase certain products and key components from a limited number of sources. If the supply of these products or key components, 

such as micro-controllers, optical sensors and LifeSize hardware products, were to be delayed or constrained, or if one or more of our single-
source suppliers goes out of business as a result of adverse global economic conditions or natural disasters, we might be unable to find a new 
supplier on acceptable terms, or at all, and our product shipments to our customers could be delayed, which could adversely affect our business, 
financial condition and operating results.  

   
Lead times for materials, components and products ordered by us or by our contract manufacturers can vary significantly and depend on 

factors such as contract terms, demand for a component, and supplier capacity. From time to time, we have experienced component shortages 
and extended lead times on semiconductors, such as micro-controllers and optical sensors, and base metals used in our products. Shortages or 
interruptions in the supply of components or subcontracted products, or our inability to procure these components or products from alternate 
sources at acceptable prices in a timely manner, could delay shipment of our products or increase our production costs, which could adversely 
affect our business and operating results.  

   
If we do not successfully coordinate the worldwide manufacturing and distribution of our products, we could lose sales.  
   
Our business requires us to coordinate the manufacture and distribution of our products over much of the world. We rely on third parties 

to manufacture many of our products, manage centralized distribution centers, and transport our products. If we do not successfully coordinate 
the timely manufacturing and distribution of our products, we may have insufficient supply of products to meet customer demand and we could 
lose sales, or we may experience a build-up in inventory.  
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A significant portion of our quarterly retail orders and product deliveries generally occur in the last weeks of the fiscal quarter. This 
places pressure on our supply chain and could adversely affect our revenues and profitability if we are unable to successfully fulfill customer 
orders in the quarter.  

   
We conduct operations in a number of countries, and have invested significantly in growing our sales and marketing activities in 

China, and the effect of business, legal and political risks associated with international operations could adversely affect us.  
   
We conduct operations in a number of countries, and have invested significantly in growing our sales and marketing activities in China. 

We may also increase our investments to grow sales in other emerging markets, such as Latin America and Eastern Europe. There are risks 
inherent in doing business in international markets, including:  

   
•       difficulties in staffing and managing international operations;  
   
•       compliance with laws and regulations, including environmental and tax laws, which vary from country to country and over time, 

increasing the costs of compliance and potential risks of non-compliance;  
   
•       varying laws, regulations and other legal protections, uncertain and varying enforcement of those laws and regulations, 

dependence on local authorities, and the importance of local networks and relationships;  
   
•       exposure to political and financial instability, especially with the uncertainty associated with the ongoing sovereign debt crisis in 

certain Euro zone countries, which may lead to currency exchange losses and collection difficulties or other losses;  
   
•       lack of infrastructure or services necessary or appropriate to support our products and services;  
   
•       exposure to fluctuations in the value of local currencies;  
   
•       difficulties and increased costs in establishing sales and distribution channels in unfamiliar markets, with their own market 

characteristics and competition;  
   
•       changes in VAT (value-added tax) or VAT reimbursement;  
   
•       imposition of currency exchange controls; and  
   
•       delays from customs brokers or government agencies.  
   

Any of these risks could adversely affect our business, financial condition and operating results.  
   
Our sales in China have increased substantially in the last two fiscal years, and continued sales growth in China is an important part of our 

expectations for our business. As a result, if Chinese economic, political or business conditions deteriorate, or if one or more of the risks 
described above materializes in China, our overall business and results of operations will be adversely affected.  

   
Claims by others that we infringe their proprietary technology could adversely affect our business.  
   
We have been expanding the categories of products we sell, and entering new markets, such as the market for enterprise video 

conferencing and our introduction of products for tablets, other mobile devices and digital music. We expect to continue to enter new categories 
and markets. As we do so, we face an increased risk that claims alleging we infringe the patent or other intellectual property rights of others, 
regardless of the merit of the claims, may increase in number and significance. Infringement claims against  
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us may also increase as the functionality of video, voice, data and conferencing products begin to overlap. This risk is heightened by the increase 
in lawsuits brought by holders of patents that do not have an operating business or are attempting to license broad patent portfolios and by the 
increasing attempts by companies in the technology industries to enjoin their competitors from selling products that they claim infringe their 
intellectual property rights. Intellectual property lawsuits are subject to inherent uncertainties due to the complexity of the technical issues 
involved, and we cannot be certain that we will be successful in defending ourselves against intellectual property claims. A successful claimant 
could secure a judgment that requires us to pay substantial damages or prevents us from distributing certain products or performing certain 
services. We might also be required to seek a license for the use of such intellectual property, which may not be available on commercially 
acceptable terms or at all. Alternatively, we may be required to develop non-infringing technology, which could require significant effort and 
expense and may ultimately not be successful. Any claims or proceedings against us, whether meritorious or not, could be time consuming, 
result in costly litigation or the diversion of significant operational resources, or require us to enter into royalty or licensing agreements, any of 
which could materially and adversely affect our business and results of operations.  

   
We may be unable to protect our proprietary rights. Unauthorized use of our technology may result in the development of products 

that compete with our products.  
   
Our future success depends in part on our proprietary technology, technical know-how and other intellectual property. We rely on a 

combination of patent, trade secret, copyright, trademark and other intellectual property laws, and confidentiality procedures and contractual 
provisions such as nondisclosure terms and licenses, to protect our intellectual property.  

   
We hold various United States patents and pending applications, together with corresponding patents and pending applications from other 

countries. It is possible that any patent owned by us will be invalidated, deemed unenforceable, circumvented or challenged, that the patent rights 
granted will not provide competitive advantages to us, or that any of our pending or future patent applications will not be granted. In addition, 
other intellectual property laws or our confidentiality procedures and contractual provisions may not adequately protect our intellectual property. 
Also, others may independently develop similar technology, duplicate our products, or design around our patents or other intellectual property 
rights. Unauthorized parties have copied and may in the future attempt to copy aspects of our products or to obtain and use information that we 
regard as proprietary. Any of these events could adversely affect our business, financial condition and operating results.  

   
Product quality issues could adversely affect our reputation and could impact our operating results.  
   
The market for our products is characterized by rapidly changing technology and evolving industry standards. To remain competitive, we 

must continually introduce new products and technologies. The products that we sell could contain defects in design or manufacture. Defects 
could also occur in the products or components that are supplied to us. There can be no assurance we will be able to detect and remedy all 
defects in the hardware and software we sell. Failure to do so could result in product recalls, product redesign efforts, lost revenue, loss of 
reputation, and significant warranty and other expenses to remedy.  

   
We have identified material weaknesses in our internal control over financial reporting which could, if not remediated, result in 

material misstatements in our financial statements.  
   
As disclosed in Item 9A of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2013, as amended on Form 10-K/A, we 

identified material weaknesses in our internal control over financial reporting. This follows the identification in previous periods of significant 
deficiencies in our internal controls over financial reporting. A material weakness is defined as a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in 
internal control over financial reporting, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of our annual or interim financial 
statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis. As a result of these material weaknesses, our management concluded that our 
internal control  
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over financial reporting was not effective as of March 31, 2013, based on criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the 
Treadway Commission in Internal Control—An Integrated Framework. We are actively engaged in developing a remediation plan designed to 
address these material weaknesses. If our remediation measures are insufficient to address these material weaknesses, or if additional material 
weaknesses in our internal controls are discovered or occur in the future, our consolidated financial statements may contain material 
misstatements and we could be required to restate our financial results.  
   

The collection, storage, transmission, use and distribution of user data could give rise to liabilities and additional costs of operation as 
a result of laws and governmental regulation.  

   
In connection with certain of our products, we collect data related to our consumers. This information is increasingly subject to legislation 

and regulations in numerous jurisdictions around the world, and especially in Europe. Government actions are typically intended to protect the 
privacy and security of personal information and its collection, storage, transmission, use and distribution in or from the governing jurisdiction. 
In addition, because various jurisdictions have different laws and regulations concerning the use, storage and transmission of such information, 
we may face requirements that pose compliance challenges in existing markets as well as new international markets that we seek to enter. Such 
laws and regulations, and the variation between jurisdictions, could subject us to costs, liabilities or negative publicity that could adversely affect 
our business.  

   
We are upgrading our worldwide business application suite, and difficulties, distraction or disruptions may interrupt our normal 

operations and adversely affect our business and operating results.  
   
During fiscal years 2014 and 2015, we plan to devote significant resources to the upgrade of our worldwide business application suite to 

Oracle’s version R12. Oracle has already begun to discontinue its support for our current business application suite, version 11i. As a result of 
that discontinued support or our upgrade or both, we may experience difficulties with our systems, management distraction, and significant 
business disruptions. Difficulties with our systems may interrupt our normal operations, including our enterprise resource planning, forecasting, 
demand planning, supply planning, intercompany processes, promotion management, internal financial controls, pricing, and our ability to 
provide quotes, process orders, ship products, provide services and support to our customers and consumers, bill and track our customers, fulfill 
contractual obligations, and otherwise run and track our business. In addition, we may need to expend significant attention, time and resources to 
correct problems or find alternative sources for performing these functions. Any such difficulty or disruption may adversely affect our business 
and operating results.  

   
Goodwill impairment charges could have an adverse effect on the results of our operations.  
   
Goodwill associated with a number of previous acquisitions could result in impairment charges. The slowdown in the overall video 

conferencing industry in recent quarters, together with the competitive environment in fiscal year 2013, resulted in a $214.5 million non-cash 
goodwill impairment charge in fiscal year 2013, which substantially impacted operating results. As we attempt to effect a turnaround of our 
business, including returning our LifeSize video conferencing segment to profitability and divesting or discontinuing product categories or 
products that we previously acquired, we will need to continue to evaluate the carrying value of our goodwill.  Additional impairment charges 
could adversely affect our results of operations.  

   
Our effective income tax rates may increase in the future, which could adversely affect our net income.  
   
We operate in multiple jurisdictions and our profits are taxed pursuant to the tax laws of these jurisdictions. Our effective income tax rate 

may be affected by changes in or interpretations of tax laws and tax agreements in any given jurisdiction, utilization of net operating loss and tax 
credit carryforwards, changes in geographical allocation of income and expense, and changes in management’s assessment of matters such as the 
realizability of deferred tax assets. In the past, we have experienced fluctuations in our effective income tax rate. Our effective income tax rate in 
a given fiscal year reflects a variety of factors that may not be present in the succeeding fiscal year or years. There is no assurance that our 
effective income tax rate will not change in future periods.  
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We file Swiss and foreign tax returns.  We are frequently subject to tax audits, examinations and assessments in various jurisdictions.  A 
material assessment by a governing tax authority could adversely affect our profitability. If our effective income tax rate increases in future 
periods, our net income could be adversely affected.  

   
ITEM 2.   UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES A ND USE OF PROCEEDS  
   
Share Repurchases  
   

None.  
   

ITEM 3.   DEFAULTS UPON SENIOR SECURITIES  
   

Not applicable.  
   

ITEM 4.   MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES  
   

Not applicable.  
   

ITEM 5.   OTHER INFORMATION  
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ITEM 6.   EXHIBITS  
   

Exhibit Index  
   

   

*       This exhibit is furnished herewith, but not deemed “filed” for purposes of Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, 
or otherwise subject to liability under that section. Such certification will not be deemed to be incorporated by reference into any filing 
under the Securities Act or the Exchange Act, except to the extent that we explicitly incorporate it by reference.  

   
**    Indicates management compensatory plan, contract or arrangement.  
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Exhibit No.  
   Description  

         

10.1 **  
   

Offer Letter between Logitech Inc. and Vincent Pilette dated September 3, 2013 (previously filed as Exhibit 10.1 to Form 8-K 
filed on September 6, 2013)  

         

10.2 **  
   

Form of restricted stock unit agreement for new hire grants to Vincent Pilette on September 15, 2013 under the Logitech 
International S.A. 2006 Stock Incentive Plan.  

         

10.3 **  
   

Form of performance share unit agreement for new hire grants to Vincent Pilette on September 15, 2013 under the Logitech 
International S.A. 2006 Stock Incentive Plan.  

         

10.4 **  
   

Form of restricted stock unit agreement for grant to Guerrino De Luca on October 15, 2013 under the Logitech International 
S.A. 2006 Stock Incentive Plan.  

         
31.1  

   Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification of Chief Executive Officer.  
         

31.2  
   Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification of Chief Financial Officer.  

         
32.1 *  

   Section 1350 Certifications of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer.  
         

101.INS  
   XBRL Instance Document  

         
101.SCH  

   XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document  
         

101.CAL  
   XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document  

         
101.LAB  

   XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document  
         

101.PRE  
   XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document  

         
101.DEF  

   XBRL Taxonomy Definition Linkbase Document  
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SIGNATURES  
   

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this Report to be signed on its behalf 
by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.  
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LOGITECH INTERNATIONAL S.A.  

      
      
   

/s/ Bracken P. Darrell  
   

Bracken P. Darrell  
President and  
Chief Executive Officer  

      
      
   

/s/ Vincent Pilette  
   

Vincent Pilette  
   

Chief Financial Officer  
      
November 5, 2013  

   



Exhibit 10.2 
   

LOGITECH INTERNATIONAL S.A. 2006 STOCK INCENTIVE PL AN  
   

RESTRICTED STOCK UNIT AGREEMENT  
   

This Restricted Stock Unit Agreement, including any country-specific terms and conditions set forth in the attached Appendix 
(collectively, the “ Agreement ”), is between Logitech International S.A., a Swiss company (the “ Company ”), and the Participant named below 
and is made pursuant to the Logitech International S.A. 2006 Stock Incentive Plan (the “ Plan ”).  To the extent any capitalized terms used in this 
Agreement are not defined, they shall have the meaning given to them in the Plan. In the event of a conflict between the terms and conditions of 
the Plan and the terms and conditions of this Agreement, the terms of the Plan shall prevail.  

   
In consideration of the mutual agreements herein contained and intending to be legally bound hereby, the parties agree as follows:  
   

1.              Grant of Restricted Stock Units .  The Company hereby grants to the Participant named below the number of Restricted Stock Units 
corresponding to Shares specified below, subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement and of the Plan, which is incorporated in this 
Agreement by reference:  
   

   
2.              Vesting .  Subject to the terms and conditions of the Participant’s written employment offer letter with the Company, dated 
September 3, 2013 (or as such offer letter may later be amended or superseded) (the “Offer Letter”), the Restricted Stock Units subject to this 
Award shall vest [INSERT VESTING CRITERIA] (each such [DATE] being a “ Vesting Date ”), subject to the Participant’s continuous Service 
through the applicable Vesting Date, until all Restricted Stock Units subject to this Award are vested in full.  In no event shall any Restricted 
Stock Units vest after the Participant’s termination of Service.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Restricted Stock Units shall be subject to the 
provisions contained in Addendum A , which is attached to this Agreement, and to the terms and conditions of any change of control severance 
agreement between the Company or Employer (as defined in Section 7) and the Participant (a “COC Severance Agreement”).  
   
3.              Settlement of Vested Restricted Stock Units .  Subject to the settlement provisions set forth in the Offer Letter, the Participant’s vested 
Restricted Stock Units shall be settled promptly (and in any event within 30 days) after the applicable Vesting Date pursuant to Section 2 (or, if 
earlier, upon a vesting event contemplated in the Offer Letter), provided that the Company shall have no obligation to issue Shares pursuant to 
this Agreement unless and until the Participant has satisfied any applicable tax and/or other obligations pursuant to Section 9 below and such 
issuance otherwise complies with Applicable Laws.  The foregoing notwithstanding, in the event that Restricted Stock Units are considered an 
item of non-qualified deferred compensation that is subject to Section 409A of the Code, the vesting and settlement of the Restricted Stock Units 
is conditioned on the Participant’s execution and delivery of a release, and the settlement period commences in one calendar year and ends in the 
next calendar year, then the Restricted Stock Units shall be settled in the second calendar year.  At the time of settlement, the Participant shall 
receive one Share for each vested Restricted Stock Unit, net of applicable withholdings.  The Company in  
   

 

Participant’s Name:  
   [NAME]  

         
Grant Date:  

   [GRANT DATE]  
         
Total Number of Restricted Stock  

   [UNITS]  
Units granted  

   
   



   
its discretion may designate a brokerage firm to assist with settlement of Restricted Stock Units, or as the sole means for settlement of Restricted 
Stock Units.  
   
4.              Nature of Restricted Stock Units .  The Restricted Stock Units are mere bookkeeping entries and represent only an unfunded and 
unsecured obligation of the Company to issue or deliver Shares on a future date.  As a holder of Restricted Stock Units, the Participant has no 
rights other than the rights of a general creditor of the Company.  The Restricted Stock Units carry neither voting rights nor rights to cash or 
other dividends.  The Participant has no rights as a shareholder of the Company by virtue of the Restricted Stock Units unless and until the 
Restricted Stock Units are settled by issuing or delivering Shares.  
   
5.              Leave of Absence .  Unless otherwise determined by the Administrator, the following provisions shall apply in the case of an 
authorized leave of absence by the Participant:  
   

(a)            Subject to Applicable Laws and the terms of a written employment agreement, if any, between the Participant and the 
Company or a Subsidiary, no Restricted Stock Units subject to this Award shall vest after the 120  day of the leave of absence.  If Applicable 
Laws or the terms of a written employment agreement, if any, between the Participant and the Company or a Subsidiary provide for a later date 
upon which vesting may cease, then no Restricted Stock Units subject to this Award shall vest upon the earliest date possible under Applicable 
Laws or the employment agreement.  

   
(b)            If vesting has ceased under Section 5(a) and Participant subsequently returns to active Service, vesting of the Restricted Stock 

Units subject to this Award shall resume on the 15  day of the month following the date on which Participant returns to active Service (for the 
avoidance of any doubt, the Participant shall not accrue vesting credit during the period between the date that the Participant ceased vesting and 
the date that vesting resumes after the Participant’s return to active Service as set forth in this Section 5(b)).  

   
6.              Termination of Service .  If the Participant’s Service terminates for any reason (including by reason of death or Disability and whether 
or not such termination is later found to be invalid or in breach of employment laws in the jurisdiction where the Participant is employed or the 
terms of the Participant’s employment agreement, if any), all unvested Restricted Stock Units shall be forfeited effective on the date the 
Participant’s Service terminates.  The Participant’s date of termination of Service shall mean the date upon which the Participant’s active Service 
terminates, regardless of any notice period or period in lieu of notice of termination of employment or similar period mandated under 
employment laws in the jurisdiction where the Participant is employed or the terms of a written employment agreement, if any. The 
Administrator shall have the exclusive discretion to determine when the Participant’s active Service terminates for purposes of this Award ( i.e. , 
when the Participant has ceased active performance of services for purposes of vesting in this Award), including whether a leave of absence 
constitutes a termination of Service for purposes of this Award.  
   
7.              Recovery of Erroneously Awarded Compensation .  If the Participant is now or is hereafter subject to the Executive Clawback Policy 
adopted by the Company’s Board of Directors, or any committee thereof, or any similar policy providing for the recovery of Awards, Shares, 
proceeds, or payments to Participant in the event of fraud or other circumstances, then this Award, and any Shares or other payments resulting 
from settlement of the Restricted Stock Units or proceeds therefrom, are subject to potential recovery by the Company or the Participant’s 
employer (the “ Employer ”) under the circumstances set out in the Executive Clawback Policy or such other similar policy as in effect from 
time to time.  
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8.              Suspension or Cancellation for Misconduct .  If at any time (including after vesting but before settlement) the Administrator reasonably 
believes that the Participant has committed an act of misconduct as described in this Section 8, the Administrator may suspend the vesting or 
settlement of Restricted Stock Units, pending a determination of whether an act of misconduct has been committed.  If the Administrator 
determines that the Participant has committed an act of embezzlement, fraud or breach of fiduciary duty, or if the Participant makes an 
unauthorized disclosure of any trade secret or confidential information of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries or Affiliates, or induces any 
customer to breach a contract with the Company or any of its Subsidiaries or Affiliates, then this Agreement shall terminate immediately and 
cease to be outstanding.  Any determination by the Administrator with respect to the foregoing shall be final, conclusive and binding on all 
interested parties.  If the Participant holds the title of Vice President or above, the determination of the Administrator shall be subject to the 
approval of the Company’s Board of Directors.  
   
9.              Responsibility for Taxes .  
   

(a)            Regardless of any action the Company or the Employer takes with respect to any or all income tax, social insurance, payroll 
tax, fringe benefits tax, payment on account or other tax-related items related to the Participant’s participation in the Plan and legally applicable 
to the Participant (“ Tax-Related Items ”), the Participant acknowledges that the ultimate liability for all Tax-Related Items is and remains the 
Participant’s responsibility and may exceed the amount actually withheld by the Company or the Employer.  The Participant further 
acknowledges that the Company and/or the Employer (i) make no representations or undertakings regarding the treatment of any Tax-Related 
Items in connection with any aspect of the Restricted Stock Units, including, but not limited to, the grant, vesting or settlement of the Restricted 
Stock Units, the issuance of Shares upon settlement of the Restricted Stock Units, the subsequent sale of Shares acquired pursuant to such 
issuance and the receipt of any dividends and/or any dividend equivalents; and (ii) do not commit to and are under no obligation to structure the 
terms of the Award or any aspect of the Restricted Stock Units to reduce or eliminate the Participant’s liability for Tax-Related Items or achieve 
any particular tax result.  Further, if the Participant has become subject to Tax-Related Items in more than one jurisdiction between the date of 
grant and the date of any relevant taxable or tax withholding event, as applicable, the Participant acknowledges that the Company and/or the 
Employer (or former employer, as applicable) may be required to withhold or account for Tax-Related Items in more than one jurisdiction.  

   
(b)            Prior to any relevant taxable or tax withholding event, as applicable, the Participant will pay or make adequate arrangements 

satisfactory to the Company and/or the Employer to satisfy all Tax-Related Items.  In this regard, the Participant authorizes the Company and/or 
the Employer, or their respective agents, at their discretion, to satisfy the obligations with regard to all Tax-Related Items by one or a 
combination of the following:  (i) withholding from the Participant’s wages or other cash compensation paid to the Participant by the Company 
and/or the Employer; or (ii) withholding from proceeds of the sale of Shares acquired upon settlement of the Restricted Stock Units either 
through a voluntary sale or through a mandatory sale arranged by the Company (on the Participant’s behalf pursuant to this authorization); or 
(iii) withholding in Shares to be issued upon vesting of the Restricted Stock Units, provided, however, that if the Participant is a Section 16 
officer of the Company under the Exchange Act, then the Company will withhold in Shares upon the relevant taxable or tax withholding event, 
as applicable, unless the use of such withholding method is problematic under applicable tax or securities law or has materially adverse 
accounting consequences, in which case, the obligation for Tax-Related Items may be satisfied by one or a combination of methods (i) and 
(ii) hereof.  Depending on the withholding method, the Company may withhold or account for Tax-Related Items by considering applicable 
minimum statutory withholding rates or other applicable withholding rates, including maximum applicable rates, in which case the Participant 
will receive a refund of any over-withheld amount in cash and will have no entitlement to the equivalent in Shares.  If the obligation for Tax-
Related  
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Items is satisfied by withholding in Shares, for tax purposes, the Participant is deemed to have been issued the full number of Shares subject to 
the vested Restricted Stock Units, notwithstanding that a number of the Shares are held back solely for the purpose of paying the Tax-Related 
Items due as a result of any aspect of the Participant’s participation in the Plan.  

   
(c)            Finally, the Participant shall pay to the Company or the Employer any amount of Tax-Related Items that the Company or the 

Employer may be required to withhold or account for as a result of the Participant’s participation in the Plan that cannot be satisfied by the 
means previously described.  The Company may refuse to issue or deliver the Shares or the proceeds of the sale of Shares, if the Participant fails 
to comply with the Participant’s obligations in connection with the Tax-Related Items.  

   
10.           Compliance with Applicable Laws; No Company Liability .  No Shares shall be issued or delivered pursuant to the settlement of the 
Restricted Stock Units unless such issuance or delivery complies with Applicable Laws.  The Company shall not be liable to the Participant or 
other persons as to (a) the non-issuance or delivery of Shares as to which the Company has been unable to obtain from any regulatory body 
having jurisdiction the authority deemed by the Company’s counsel to be necessary to the lawful issuance or delivery of any Shares hereunder 
and (b) any tax consequence expected, but not realized, by the Participant or other person due to the receipt, vesting or settlement of the 
Restricted Stock Units.  
   
11.           Non-Transferability of Restricted Stock Units .  The Restricted Stock Units and this Agreement may not be transferred in any manner 
otherwise than by will, by the laws of descent or distribution or, if the Company permits, by a written beneficiary designation.  The terms of the 
Plan and this Agreement shall be binding upon the executors, administrators, heirs, beneficiaries, successors and assigns of the Participant.  
   
12.           No Advice Regarding Grant .  The Company is not providing any tax, legal or financial advice, nor is the Company making any 
recommendations regarding the Participant’s participation in the Plan, or the Participant’s acquisition or sale of the underlying Shares.  The 
Participant is hereby advised to consult with his or her own personal tax, legal and financial advisors regarding his or her participation in the 
Plan before taking any action related to the Plan.  
   
13.           Nature of Grant .  In accepting the grant, the Participant acknowledges, understands and agrees that:  
   

(a)          the Plan is established voluntarily by the Company, it is discretionary in nature and it may be modified, amended, suspended 
or terminated by the Company at any time;  

   
(b)          the grant of the Restricted Stock Units is voluntary and occasional and does not create any contractual or other right to receive 

future grants of Restricted Stock Units, or benefits in lieu of Restricted Stock Units, even if Restricted Stock Units have been granted in the past; 
   
(c)          all decisions with respect to future Restricted Stock Units grants, if any, will be at the sole discretion of the Company;  
   
(d)          the Participant’s participation in the Plan shall not create a right to further Service with the Employer and shall not interfere 

with the ability of the Employer to terminate the Participant’s Service at any time;  
   
(e)          the Participant is voluntarily participating in the Plan;  
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(f)           the Restricted Stock Units and the Shares subject to the Restricted Stock Units are extraordinary items that do not constitute 

compensation of any kind for services of any kind rendered to the Company or the Employer, and which are outside the scope of the 
Participant’s employment contract, if any;  

   
(g)          the Restricted Stock Units and the Shares subject to the Restricted Stock Units are not intended to replace any pension rights 

or compensation;  
   
(h)          the Restricted Stock Units and the Shares subject to the Restricted Stock Units are not part of normal or expected 

compensation or salary for any purpose, including, but not limited to, calculating any severance, resignation, termination, redundancy, dismissal, 
end of service payments, bonuses, long-service awards, pension or retirement or welfare benefits or similar payments;  

   
(i)           the grant of the Restricted Stock Units and the Participant’s participation in the Plan will not be interpreted to form an 

employment contract or relationship with the Company or any Subsidiary or Affiliate;  
   
(j)           the future value of the underlying Shares is unknown and cannot be predicted with certainty;  
   
(k)          no claim or entitlement to compensation or damages shall arise from forfeiture of the Restricted Stock Units resulting from 

termination of the Participant’s Service by the Company or the Employer (for any reason whatsoever and whether or not later found to be invalid 
or in breach of employment laws in the jurisdiction where the Participant is employed or the terms of the Participant’s employment agreement, if 
any) and, in consideration of the grant of the Restricted Stock Units to which the Participant is otherwise not entitled, the Participant irrevocably 
agrees never to institute any claim against the Company or the Employer, waives the ability, if any, to bring any such claim and releases the 
Company and the Employer from any such claim; if, notwithstanding the foregoing, any such claim is allowed by a court of competent 
jurisdiction, then, by participating in the Plan, the Participant will be deemed irrevocably to have agreed not to pursue such claim and agrees to 
execute any and all documents necessary to request dismissal or withdrawal of such claims;  

   
(l)           unless otherwise provided in the Plan or by the Company in its discretion, the Restricted Stock Units and the benefits 

evidenced by this Agreement do not create any entitlement to have the Restricted Stock Units or any such benefits transferred to, or assumed by, 
another company nor to be exchanged, cashed out or substituted for, in connection with any corporate transaction affecting the shares of the 
Company; and  

   
(m)         neither the Company, the Employer nor any Subsidiary or Affiliate shall be liable for any foreign exchange rate fluctuation 

between the Participant’s local currency and the United States Dollar or the Swiss Franc, as applicable, that may affect the value of the 
Restricted Stock Units or of any amounts due to the Participant pursuant to the settlement of the Restricted Stock Units or the subsequent sale of 
any Shares acquired upon settlement.  

   
14.           Data Privacy .  
   

(a)            The Participant hereby consents to the collection, processing, use and transfer, in electronic or other form, of the 
Participant’s personal information (the “ Data ”) regarding the Participant’s employment, the nature and amount of the Participant’s 
compensation and the fact and conditions of the Participant’s participation in the Plan (including the Participant’s name, home address, 
telephone number, date of birth, social insurance number or other identification number,  
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compensation, nationality and job title, details of all options, shares or other entitlement to securities awarded, canceled, exercised, vested, 
unvested or outstanding under the Plan or predecessor plans), by and among the Company and one or more its Subsidiaries and Affiliates, 
for the exclusive purpose of implementing, administering and managing the Participant’s participation in the Plan and in calculating the 
cost of the Plan.  

   
(b)            The Participant further consents to the transfer of the Data to UBS AG and/or its affiliates (“ UBS ”), or to any other third 

parties assisting in the implementation, administration and management of the Plan, or in calculating the costs of the Plan, including any 
other third party assisting with the settlement of Restricted Stock Units under the Plan or with whom Shares acquired upon settlement of the 
Restricted Stock Units or cash from the sale of such Shares may be deposited.  The Participant further consents to the processing, possession, 
use and transfer of the Data by UBS and such other third parties for the exclusive purpose of implementing, administering and managing 
the Participant’s participation in the Plan and in calculating the cost of the Plan.  

   
(c)            The Participant understands and agrees that the recipients of the Data may be located in the United States or elsewhere, 

and that the recipients’ countries may have different data privacy laws and protections than the Participant’s country, and the Participant 
consents to the transfer of the Data to such countries.  Furthermore, the Participant acknowledges and understands that the transfer of the 
Data to the Company or any of its Subsidiaries or Affiliates, or to UBS or any such third parties, is necessary for the Participant’s 
participation in the Plan.  The Participant understands that he or she may, at any time, view Data, request additional information about the 
storage and processing of Data or require any necessary amendments to Data or withdraw the consents herein, in any case without cost, by 
contacting the Participant’s local human resources representative in writing.  

   
(d)            Further, the Participant understands that he or she is providing the consents herein on a purely voluntary basis.  If the 

Participant does not consent, or later seeks to revoke his or her consent, the Participant’s employment status or service and career with the 
Employer will not be adversely affected; the only adverse consequence of refusing or withdrawing consent is that the Company would not be 
able to grant Restricted Stock Units or other equity awards to the Participant or administer or maintain such awards. Therefore, t he 
Participant acknowledges that withdrawal of consent may affect the Participant’s ability to realize benefits from the Restricted Stock Units, 
and the Participant’s ability to participate in the Plan.  

   
15.           Exchange Control Acknowledgement .  Local foreign exchange laws may affect the grant of the Restricted Stock Units, the receipt of 
Shares upon settlement of the Restricted Stock Units, the sale of Shares received upon settlement of the Restricted Stock Units and/or the receipt 
of dividends or dividend equivalents (if any).  Such laws may affect the Participant’s ability to hold funds outside of the Participant’s country 
and may require the repatriation of any cash, dividends or dividend equivalents received in connection with the Restricted Stock Units.  The 
Participant is responsible for being aware of  and satisfying any exchange control requirements that may be necessary in connection with the 
Restricted Stock Units.  Neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiaries or Affiliates will be responsible for such requirements or liable for the 
failure on the Participant’s part to know and abide by the requirements that are the Participant’s responsibility.  The Participant should consult 
with his or her own personal legal advisers to ensure compliance with local laws.  
   
16.           Adjustments Upon Changes in Capitalization .  In the event of a declaration of a stock dividend, a stock split, combination or 
reclassification of shares, extraordinary dividend of cash and/or assets, recapitalization, reorganization or any similar event affecting the Shares 
or other securities of the Company, the Administrator shall equitably adjust the number and kind of Restricted Stock Units or other  
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securities which are subject to this Agreement, in order to reflect such change and thereby preclude a dilution or enlargement of benefits under 
this Agreement.  
   
17.           Entire Agreement; Governing Law .  The Plan, this Agreement (including Addendum A), the Offer Letter and any COC Severance 
Agreement constitute the entire agreement of the parties with respect to the subject matter of this Agreement and supersede in their entirety all 
prior undertakings and agreements of the Company and the Participant with respect to the subject matter of this Agreement.  This Agreement is 
governed by the internal substantive laws, but not the choice of law rules of Switzerland (the Company’s jurisdiction of organization).  
   
18.           Language .  If the Participant has received this Agreement or any other document related to the Plan translated into a language other 
than English and if the meaning of the translated version is different than the English version, the English version will control.  
   
19.           Electronic Delivery .  The Company may, in its sole discretion, decide to deliver any documents related to current or future 
participation in the Plan by electronic means.  The Participant hereby consents to receive such documents by electronic delivery and agrees to 
participate in the Plan through an on-line or electronic system established and maintained by the Company or a third party designated by the 
Company.  
   
20.           Severability .  The provisions of this Agreement are severable and if any one or more provisions are determined to be illegal or 
otherwise unenforceable, in whole or in part, the remaining provisions shall nevertheless be binding and enforceable.  
   
21.           Appendix .  The Restricted Stock Units and any Shares subject to the Restricted Stock Units shall be subject to any special terms and 
conditions set forth in the Appendix to this Agreement for the Participant’s country.  Moreover, if the Participant relocates to one of the countries 
included in the Appendix, the special terms and conditions for such country will apply to the Participant, to the extent the Company determines 
that the application of such terms and conditions is necessary or advisable for legal or administrative reasons.  The Appendix constitutes part of 
this Agreement.  
   
22.           Imposition of Other Requirements .  The Company reserves the right to impose other requirements on the Participant’s participation in 
the Plan, on the Restricted Stock Units and on any Shares acquired under the Plan, to the extent the Company determines it is necessary or 
advisable for legal or administrative reasons, and to require the Participant to sign any additional agreements or undertakings that may be 
necessary to accomplish the foregoing.  
   
23.           Permitted Modifications to Comply with Laws .  The Company reserves the right to unilaterally amend this Agreement, prior to a 
Change of Control, solely if an amendment is determined to be reasonably necessary by the Company’s or Logitech Inc.’s legal counsel for the 
Company and Logitech Inc. to comply with existing or adopted applicable ordinances, laws, rules or regulations (“Laws”) (even if such Laws 
have not yet taken effect), including but not limited to any Laws related to the Minder initiative in Switzerland, and such counsel determines that 
the amendment reasonably addresses such need.  
   

*   *   *  
   
By the Participant’s agreement to this Agreement, the Participant agrees that the Restricted Stock Units are granted under and governed by the 
terms and conditions of the Plan and this Agreement.  The Participant has reviewed the Plan and this Agreement in their entirety, has had an 
opportunity to obtain the advice of counsel prior to executing this Agreement and fully understands all provisions of the Plan  
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and Agreement.  The Participant hereby agrees to accept as binding, conclusive and final all decisions or interpretations of the Administrator 
upon any questions relating to the Plan and Agreement.  

   
In order to agree to this Agreement, please click “I Agree” below.  
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LOGITECH INTERNATIONAL S.A. 2006 STOCK INCENTIVE PL AN  

   
ADDENDUM A  

   
Change in Control Severance Provisions  

   
The following provisions shall be incorporated into the Restricted Stock Unit Agreement to which this Addendum A is attached.  To the extent 
any capitalized terms used in this Addendum A are not defined, they shall have the meanings given to them in the Agreement or the Plan, as 
applicable.  
   

(a)            Acceleration of Vesting .  All Restricted Stock Units shall immediately vest if the Company is subject to a Change in Control 
before the Participant experiences a Separation from Service and either of the following events occurs:  

   
(i)             An Involuntary Termination within 12 months after such Change in Control.  
   
(ii)            a Demotion within 12 months after such Change in Control followed by a Separation from Service by the Participant 

due to a resignation of employment with the Company or Employer by the Participant within 60 days after the Participant has satisfied 
the Service Period Requirement.  

   
(b)            Settlement .  All unvested Restricted Stock Units that vest pursuant to Section (a) above shall be settled in accordance with 

Section 3 of the Agreement, provided that “Vesting Date” for purposes of Section 3 of the Agreement shall mean the earlier of (a)(i) or (a)(ii) of 
this Addendum A.  

   
(c)            Definitions .  The following definitions shall apply for purposes of this Addendum A:  
   

(i)             Base Salary .  The term “Base Salary” shall mean the greater of (i) the Participant’s annual base salary, as in effect 
immediately prior to the Participant’s termination of employment with the Company or Employer, or (ii) the Participant’s annual base 
salary as in effect on the effective date of the COC Severance Agreement.  

   
(ii)            Cause .  The term “Cause” shall mean (A) any act of personal dishonesty taken by the Participant in connection with 

his or her responsibilities as a Participant that is intended to result in substantial personal enrichment of the Participant, (B) the 
Participant’s conviction of a felony that the Board reasonably believes has had or will have a material detrimental effect on the 
Company’s reputation or business, (C) a willful act by the Participant that constitutes misconduct and is injurious to the Company or 
(D) continued willful violations by the Participant of the Participant’s obligations to the Company after there has been delivered to the 
Participant a written demand for performance from the Company that describes the basis for the Company’s belief that the Participant 
has not substantially performed his or her duties.  

   
(iii)           Change in Control .  The term “Change in Control” shall mean the occurrence of any of the following events:  
   

(A)           A merger or consolidation of the Company with any other entity, other than a merger or consolidation that 
would result in the voting securities of the Company outstanding immediately prior thereto continuing to represent (either by 
remaining outstanding or by being  
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converted into voting securities of the surviving entity) more than 50% of the total voting power represented by the voting 
securities of the Company or such surviving entity outstanding immediately after such merger or consolidation;  

   
(B)           The complete liquidation of the Company;  
   
(C)           The sale or other disposition by the Company of all or substantially all of the Company’s assets; or  
   
(D)           Any “person” (as such term is used in Sections 13(d) and 14(d) of the Exchange Act) becoming the 

“beneficial owner” (as defined in Rule 13d-3 under the Exchange Act), directly or indirectly, of securities of the Company 
representing 50% or more of the total voting power represented by the Company’s then outstanding voting securities.  

   
(iv)           Demotion .  “Demotion” shall mean a material reduction of the Participant’s duties, position or responsibilities 

relative to the Participant’s duties, position or responsibilities in effect immediately prior to such reduction, without the Participant’s 
express written consent.  Such reduction shall not be considered a “Demotion” unless (i) the Participant gives the Company written 
notice of such reduction within 90 days after such reduction occurs and (ii) the Company fails to remedy such reduction within 30 days 
after receiving the Participant’s written notice.  

   
(v)            Good Reason .  The term “Good Reason” shall mean (A) a substantial reduction of the facilities and perquisites 

(including office space and location) available to the Participant immediately prior to such reduction, without the Participant’s express 
written consent and without good business reasons, (B) a material reduction of the Participant’s Base Salary, (C) a material reduction in 
the kind or level of Participant benefits to which the Participant is entitled immediately prior to such reduction, with the result that the 
Participant’s overall benefits package is significantly reduced, (D) the relocation of the Participant to a facility or location more than 30 
miles from his or her current location, without the Participant’s express written consent, or (E) the Company’s failure to obtain the 
assumption by any successor of the Company of any COC Severance Agreement (to the extent contemplated under such COC 
Severance Agreement).  Clause (C) above shall not apply in the event of any reduction of the amount of the bonus actually paid but 
shall apply in the event of a material reduction of the target bonus or bonus opportunity.  A condition shall not be considered “Good 
Reason” unless the Participant gives the Company (or a successor of the Company, if applicable) written notice of such condition 
within 90 days after such condition comes into existence and the Company (or a successor of the Company, if applicable) fails to 
remedy such condition within 30 days after receiving the Participant’s written notice.  

   
(vi)           Involuntary Termination .  The term “Involuntary Termination” shall mean that a Participant experiences a 

Separation from Service caused by (i) a termination by the Company or Employer of the Participant’s employment with the Company 
or Employer that is not effected for Cause or (ii) a resignation by the Participant of his or her employment with the Company or 
Employer for Good Reason.  

   
(vii)          Service Period Requirement .  The term “Service Period Requirement” means that the Participant has remained 

employed by the Company or Employer until the  
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earlier to occur of (A) the date twelve (12) months after the Demotion or (B) the date when the Participant is subject to an Involuntary 
Termination.  

   
(viii)         Separation from Service .  The term “Separation from Service” shall mean a “separation from service,” as defined in 

the regulations under Section 409A of the Code.  
   

(d)            Effect of Change of Control Severance Agreement .  Notwithstanding any provisions in this Addendum A, the applicable 
provisions contained in any COC Severance Agreement shall supersede the provisions contained in this Addendum A.  

   
(e)            Effect of Merger .  In the event that the Company is a party to a merger, consolidation or reorganization, the Restricted Stock 

Units subject to this Award shall be subject to Section 16 of the Plan; provided that any action taken pursuant to Section 16 of the Plan shall 
either (i) preserve the exemption of this Award from Section 409A of the Code or (ii) comply with Section 409A of the Code.  
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APPENDIX  
ADDITIONAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF  

RESTRICTED STOCK UNIT AGREEMENT  
   

This Appendix includes additional terms and conditions that govern the Restricted Stock Units granted to the Participant under the Plan if the 
Participant resides in one of the countries listed below.  Capitalized terms used but not defined in this Appendix shall have the meanings set forth 
in the Plan and/or the Agreement.  
   
This Appendix also includes information regarding securities law and other issues of which the Participant should be aware with respect to 
participation in the Plan.  The information is based on the securities law and other laws in effect in the respective countries as of 
November 2012.  Such laws are often complex and change frequently.  As a result, the Company strongly recommends that the Participant not 
rely on the information in this Appendix as the only source of information relating to the consequences of the Participant’s participation in the 
Plan because the information may be out of date at the time that the Restricted Stock Units vest or the Participant sells Shares acquired under the 
Plan.  
   
In addition, the information contained herein is general in nature and may not apply to the Participant’s particular situation and the Company is 
not in a position to assure the Participant of a particular result.  Accordingly, the Participant is advised to seek appropriate professional advice as 
to how the relevant laws in the Participant’s country may apply to the Participant’s situation.  
   
Finally, if the Participant is a citizen or resident of a country other than the one in which the Participant currently working or transfers 
employment between countries after the Grant Date, the Participant may be subject to the special terms and conditions for more than one country 
and/or the information for more than one country may be applicable to the Participant. It is also possible that the special terms and conditions 
and the information may not be applicable to the Participant in such a case.  
   
[COUNTRY SPECIFIC PROVISIONS]  
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PERFORMANCE SHARE UNIT AGREEMENT  
   

This Performance Share Unit Agreement, including any country-specific terms and conditions set forth in the attached Appendix 
(collectively, the “ Agreement ”), is between Logitech International S.A., a Swiss company (the “ Company ”), and the Participant named below 
and is made pursuant to the Logitech International S.A. 2006 Stock Incentive Plan (the “ Plan ”).  To the extent any capitalized terms used in this 
Agreement are not defined, they shall have the meaning given to them in the Plan.         In the event of a conflict between the terms and 
conditions of the Plan and the terms and conditions of this Agreement, the terms of the Plan shall prevail.  

   
In consideration of the mutual agreements herein contained and intending to be legally bound hereby, the parties agree as follows:  
   

1.              Grant of Restricted Stock Units .  The Company hereby grants to the Participant named below the number of Restricted Stock Units 
corresponding to Shares specified below, subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement and of the Plan, which is incorporated in this 
Agreement by reference:  
   

   
2.              Vesting and Performance Conditions .  The Restricted Stock Units subject to this Award shall vest in full in one installment on the first 
trading day after the end of the first period, if any, in which the ninety (90)-day average closing price of the Company’s shares on the NASDAQ 
Stock Market meets or exceeds the Performance Vesting Price set forth in Section 1 above (as adjusted pursuant to Section 16 below) (the “
Vesting Date ”), subject to the Participant’s continuous Service through the Vesting Date.  In no event shall any Restricted Stock Units vest after 
the Participant’s termination of Service.  
   
3.              Settlement of Vested Restricted Stock Units .  The Participant’s vested Restricted Stock Units shall be settled promptly after the 
Vesting Date pursuant to Section 2, provided that the Company shall have no obligation to issue Shares pursuant to this Agreement unless and 
until the Participant has satisfied any applicable tax and/or other obligations pursuant to Section 9 below and such issuance otherwise complies 
with Applicable Laws.  The foregoing notwithstanding, Restricted Stock Units shall in no event be settled later than the later of (i) the March 15 
of the calendar year after the Vesting Date or (ii) the June 15 of the Company’s fiscal year after the Vesting Date.  At the time of settlement, the 
Participant shall receive one Share for each vested Restricted Stock Unit, net of applicable withholdings.  The Company in its discretion may 
designate a brokerage firm to assist with settlement of Restricted Stock Units, or as the sole means for settlement of Restricted Stock Units.  
   
4.              Nature of Restricted Stock Units .  The Restricted Stock Units are mere bookkeeping entries and represent only an unfunded and 
unsecured obligation of the Company to issue or deliver Shares on a future date.  As a holder of Restricted Stock Units, the Participant has no 
rights other than the rights of a  
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general creditor of the Company.  The Restricted Stock Units carry neither voting rights nor rights to cash or other dividends.  The Participant 
has no rights as a shareholder of the Company by virtue of the Restricted Stock Units unless and until the Restricted Stock Units are settled by 
issuing or delivering Shares.  
   
5.              Leave of Absence .  Unless otherwise determined by the Administrator, the following provisions shall apply in the case of an 
authorized leave of absence by the Participant:  
   

(a)            Subject to Applicable Laws and the terms of a written employment agreement, if any, between the Participant and the 
Company or a Subsidiary, no Restricted Stock Units subject to this Award shall vest after the 120  day of the leave of absence.  If Applicable 
Laws or the terms of a written employment agreement, if any, between the Participant and the Company or a Subsidiary provide for a later date 
upon which vesting may cease, then no Restricted Stock Units subject to this Award shall vest upon the earliest date possible under Applicable 
Laws or the employment agreement.  

   
(b)            If vesting has ceased under Section 5(a) and Participant subsequently returns to active Service, vesting of the Restricted Stock 

Units subject to this Award shall resume upon Participant’s return to active Service as set forth in this Section 5(b).  
   

6.              Termination of Service .  If the Participant’s Service terminates for any reason (including by reason of death or Disability and whether 
or not such termination is later found to be invalid or in breach of employment laws in the jurisdiction where the Participant is employed or the 
terms of the Participant’s employment agreement, if any), all unvested Restricted Stock Units shall be forfeited effective on the date the 
Participant’s Service terminates.  The Participant’s date of termination of Service shall mean the date upon which the Participant’s active Service 
terminates, regardless of any notice period or period in lieu of notice of termination of employment or similar period mandated under 
employment laws in the jurisdiction where the Participant is employed or the terms of a written employment agreement, if any. The 
Administrator shall have the exclusive discretion to determine when the Participant’s active Service terminates for purposes of this Award ( i.e. , 
when the Participant has ceased active performance of services for purposes of vesting in this Award), including whether a leave of absence 
constitutes a termination of Service for purposes of this Award.  
   
7.              Recovery of Erroneously Awarded Compensation .  If the Participant is now or is hereafter subject to the Executive Clawback Policy 
adopted by the Company’s Board of Directors, or any committee thereof, or any similar policy providing for the recovery of Awards, Shares, 
proceeds, or payments to Participant in the event of fraud or other circumstances, then this Award, and any Shares or other payments resulting 
from settlement of the Restricted Stock Units or proceeds therefrom, are subject to potential recovery by the Company or the Participant’s 
employer (the “ Employer ”) under the circumstances set out in the Executive Clawback Policy or such other similar policy as in effect from 
time to time.  
   
8.              Suspension or Cancellation for Misconduct .  If at any time (including after vesting but before settlement) the Administrator reasonably 
believes that the Participant has committed an act of misconduct as described in this Section 8, the Administrator may suspend the vesting or 
settlement of Restricted Stock Units, pending a determination of whether an act of misconduct has been committed.  If the Administrator 
determines that the Participant has committed an act of embezzlement, fraud or breach of fiduciary duty, or if the Participant makes an 
unauthorized disclosure of any trade secret or confidential information of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries or Affiliates, or induces any 
customer to breach a contract with the Company or any of its Subsidiaries or Affiliates, then this Agreement shall terminate immediately and 
cease to be outstanding.  Any determination by the Administrator with respect to the foregoing shall be final, conclusive and binding on all 
interested parties.  If the Participant holds the title  
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of Vice President or above, the determination of the Administrator shall be subject to the approval of the Company’s Board of Directors.  
   
9.              Responsibility for Taxes .  
   

(a)            Regardless of any action the Company or the Employer takes with respect to any or all income tax, social insurance, payroll 
tax, fringe benefits tax, payment on account or other tax-related items related to the Participant’s participation in the Plan and legally applicable 
to the Participant (“ Tax-Related Items ”), the Participant acknowledges that the ultimate liability for all Tax-Related Items is and remains the 
Participant’s responsibility and may exceed the amount actually withheld by the Company or the Employer.  The Participant further 
acknowledges that the Company and/or the Employer (i) make no representations or undertakings regarding the treatment of any Tax-Related 
Items in connection with any aspect of the Restricted Stock Units, including, but not limited to, the grant, vesting or settlement of the Restricted 
Stock Units, the issuance of Shares upon settlement of the Restricted Stock Units, the subsequent sale of Shares acquired pursuant to such 
issuance and the receipt of any dividends and/or any dividend equivalents; and (ii) do not commit to and are under no obligation to structure the 
terms of the Award or any aspect of the Restricted Stock Units to reduce or eliminate the Participant’s liability for Tax-Related Items or achieve 
any particular tax result.  Further, if the Participant has become subject to Tax-Related Items in more than one jurisdiction between the date of 
grant and the date of any relevant taxable or tax withholding event, as applicable, the Participant acknowledges that the Company and/or the 
Employer (or former employer, as applicable) may be required to withhold or account for Tax-Related Items in more than one jurisdiction.  

   
(b)            Prior to any relevant taxable or tax withholding event, as applicable, the Participant will pay or make adequate arrangements 

satisfactory to the Company and/or the Employer to satisfy all Tax-Related Items.  In this regard, the Participant authorizes the Company and/or 
the Employer, or their respective agents, at their discretion, to satisfy the obligations with regard to all Tax-Related Items by one or a 
combination of the following:  (i) withholding from the Participant’s wages or other cash compensation paid to the Participant by the Company 
and/or the Employer; or (ii) withholding from proceeds of the sale of Shares acquired upon settlement of the Restricted Stock Units either 
through a voluntary sale or through a mandatory sale arranged by the Company (on the Participant’s behalf pursuant to this authorization); or 
(iii) withholding in Shares to be issued upon vesting of the Restricted Stock Units, provided, however, that if the Participant is a Section 16 
officer of the Company under the Exchange Act, then the Company will withhold in Shares upon the relevant taxable or tax withholding event, 
as applicable, unless the use of such withholding method is problematic under applicable tax or securities law or has materially adverse 
accounting consequences, in which case, the obligation for Tax-Related Items may be satisfied by one or a combination of methods (i) and 
(ii) hereof.  Depending on the withholding method, the Company may withhold or account for Tax-Related Items by considering applicable 
minimum statutory withholding rates or other applicable withholding rates, including maximum applicable rates, in which case the Participant 
will receive a refund of any over-withheld amount in cash and will have no entitlement to the equivalent in Shares.  If the obligation for Tax-
Related Items is satisfied by withholding in Shares, for tax purposes, the Participant is deemed to have been issued the full number of Shares 
subject to the vested Restricted Stock Units, notwithstanding that a number of the Shares are held back solely for the purpose of paying the Tax-
Related Items due as a result of any aspect of the Participant’s participation in the Plan.  

   
(c)            Finally, the Participant shall pay to the Company or the Employer any amount of Tax-Related Items that the Company or the 

Employer may be required to withhold or account for as a result of the Participant’s participation in the Plan that cannot be satisfied by the 
means previously described.  The Company may refuse to issue or deliver the Shares or the proceeds of the sale of Shares, if the Participant fails 
to comply with the Participant’s obligations in connection with the Tax-Related Items.  
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10.           Compliance with Applicable Laws; No Company Liability .  No Shares shall be issued or delivered pursuant to the settlement of the 
Restricted Stock Units unless such issuance or delivery complies with Applicable Laws.  The Company shall not be liable to the Participant or 
other persons as to (a) the non-issuance or delivery of Shares as to which the Company has been unable to obtain from any regulatory body 
having jurisdiction the authority deemed by the Company’s counsel to be necessary to the lawful issuance or delivery of any Shares hereunder 
and (b) any tax consequence expected, but not realized, by the Participant or other person due to the receipt, vesting or settlement of the 
Restricted Stock Units.  
   
11.           Non-Transferability of Restricted Stock Units .  The Restricted Stock Units and this Agreement may not be transferred in any manner 
otherwise than by will, by the laws of descent or distribution or, if the Company permits, by a written beneficiary designation.  The terms of the 
Plan and this Agreement shall be binding upon the executors, administrators, heirs, beneficiaries, successors and assigns of the Participant.  
   
12.           No Advice Regarding Grant .  The Company is not providing any tax, legal or financial advice, nor is the Company making any 
recommendations regarding the Participant’s participation in the Plan, or the Participant’s acquisition or sale of the underlying Shares.  The 
Participant is hereby advised to consult with his or her own personal tax, legal and financial advisors regarding his or her participation in the 
Plan before taking any action related to the Plan.  
   
13.           Nature of Grant .  In accepting the grant, the Participant acknowledges, understands and agrees that:  
   

(a)            the Plan is established voluntarily by the Company, it is discretionary in nature and it may be modified, amended, suspended 
or terminated by the Company at any time;  

   
(b)            the grant of the Restricted Stock Units is voluntary and occasional and does not create any contractual or other right to receive 

future grants of Restricted Stock Units, or benefits in lieu of Restricted Stock Units, even if Restricted Stock Units have been granted in the past; 
   
(c)            all decisions with respect to future Restricted Stock Units grants, if any, will be at the sole discretion of the Company;  
   
(d)            the Participant’s participation in the Plan shall not create a right to further Service with the Employer and shall not interfere 

with the ability of the Employer to terminate the Participant’s Service at any time;  
   
(e)            the Participant is voluntarily participating in the Plan;  
   
(f)             the Restricted Stock Units and the Shares subject to the Restricted Stock Units are extraordinary items that do not constitute 

compensation of any kind for services of any kind rendered to the Company or the Employer, and which are outside the scope of the 
Participant’s employment contract, if any;  

   
(g)            the Restricted Stock Units and the Shares subject to the Restricted Stock Units are not intended to replace any pension rights 

or compensation;  
   
(h)            the Restricted Stock Units and the Shares subject to the Restricted Stock Units are not part of normal or expected 

compensation or salary for any purpose, including, but not limited to,  
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calculating any severance, resignation, termination, redundancy, dismissal, end of service payments, bonuses, long-service awards, pension or 
retirement or welfare benefits or similar payments;  

   
(i)           the grant of the Restricted Stock Units and the Participant’s participation in the Plan will not be interpreted to form an 

employment contract or relationship with the Company or any Subsidiary or Affiliate;  
   
(j)           the future value of the underlying Shares is unknown and cannot be predicted with certainty;  
   
(k)          no claim or entitlement to compensation or damages shall arise from forfeiture of the Restricted Stock Units resulting from 

termination of the Participant’s Service by the Company or the Employer (for any reason whatsoever and whether or not later found to be invalid 
or in breach of employment laws in the jurisdiction where the Participant is employed or the terms of the Participant’s employment agreement, if 
any) and, in consideration of the grant of the Restricted Stock Units to which the Participant is otherwise not entitled, the Participant irrevocably 
agrees never to institute any claim against the Company or the Employer, waives the ability, if any, to bring any such claim and releases the 
Company and the Employer from any such claim; if, notwithstanding the foregoing, any such claim is allowed by a court of competent 
jurisdiction, then, by participating in the Plan, the Participant will be deemed irrevocably to have agreed not to pursue such claim and agrees to 
execute any and all documents necessary to request dismissal or withdrawal of such claims;  

   
(l)           unless otherwise provided in the Plan or by the Company in its discretion, the Restricted Stock Units and the benefits 

evidenced by this Agreement do not create any entitlement to have the Restricted Stock Units or any such benefits transferred to, or assumed by, 
another company nor to be exchanged, cashed out or substituted for, in connection with any corporate transaction affecting the shares of the 
Company; and  

   
(m)         neither the Company, the Employer nor any Subsidiary or Affiliate shall be liable for any foreign exchange rate fluctuation 

between the Participant’s local currency and the United States Dollar or the Swiss Franc, as applicable, that may affect the value of the 
Restricted Stock Units or of any amounts due to the Participant pursuant to the settlement of the Restricted Stock Units or the subsequent sale of 
any Shares acquired upon settlement.  

   
14.           Data Privacy .  
   

(a)            The Participant hereby consents to the collection, processing, use and transfer, in electronic or other form, of the 
Participant’s personal information (the “ Data ”) regarding the Participant’s employment, the nature and amount of the Participant’s 
compensation and the fact and conditions of the Participant’s participation in the Plan (including the Participant’s name, home address, 
telephone number, date of birth, social insurance number or other identification number, compensation, nationality and job title, details of 
all options, shares or other entitlement to securities awarded, canceled, exercised, vested, unvested or outstanding under the Plan or 
predecessor plans), by and among the Company and one or more its Subsidiaries and Affiliates, for the exclusive purpose of implementing, 
administering and managing the Participant’s participation in the Plan and in calculating the cost of the Plan.  

   
(b)            The Participant further consents to the transfer of the Data to UBS AG and/or its affiliates (“ UBS ”), or to any other third 

parties assisting in the implementation, administration and management of the Plan, or in calculating the costs of the Plan, including any 
other third party assisting with the settlement of Restricted Stock Units under the Plan or with whom Shares acquired  
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upon settlement of the Restricted Stock Units or cash from the sale of such Shares may be deposited.  The Participant further consents to the 
processing, possession, use and transfer of the Data by UBS and such other third parties for the exclusive purpose of implementing, 
administering and managing the Participant’s participation in the Plan and in calculating the cost of the Plan.  
   

(c)            The Participant understands and agrees that the recipients of the Data may be located in the United States or elsewhere, 
and that the recipients’ countries may have different data privacy laws and protections than the Participant’s country, and the Participant 
consents to the transfer of the Data to such countries.  Furthermore, the Participant acknowledges and understands that the transfer of the 
Data to the Company or any of its Subsidiaries or Affiliates, or to UBS or any such third parties, is necessary for the Participant’s 
participation in the Plan.  The Participant understands that he or she may, at any time, view Data, request additional information about the 
storage and processing of Data or require any necessary amendments to Data or withdraw the consents herein, in any case without cost, by 
contacting the Participant’s local human resources representative in writing.  

   
(d)            Further, the Participant understands that he or she is providing the consents herein on a purely voluntary basis.  If the 

Participant does not consent, or later seeks to revoke his or her consent, the Participant’s employment status or service and career with the 
Employer will not be adversely affected; the only adverse consequence of refusing or withdrawing consent is that the Company would not be 
able to grant Restricted Stock Units or other equity awards to the Participant or administer or maintain such awards. Therefore, t he 
Participant acknowledges that withdrawal of consent may affect the Participant’s ability to realize benefits from the Restricted Stock Units, 
and the Participant’s ability to participate in the Plan.  

   
15.           Exchange Control Acknowledgement .  Local foreign exchange laws may affect the grant of the Restricted Stock Units, the receipt of 
Shares upon settlement of the Restricted Stock Units, the sale of Shares received upon settlement of the Restricted Stock Units and/or the receipt 
of dividends or dividend equivalents (if any).  Such laws may affect the Participant’s ability to hold funds outside of the Participant’s country 
and may require the repatriation of any cash, dividends or dividend equivalents received in connection with the Restricted Stock Units.  The 
Participant is responsible for being aware of  and satisfying any exchange control requirements that may be necessary in connection with the 
Restricted Stock Units.  Neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiaries or Affiliates will be responsible for such requirements or liable for the 
failure on the Participant’s part to know and abide by the requirements that are the Participant’s responsibility.  The Participant should consult 
with his or her own personal legal advisers to ensure compliance with local laws.  
   
16.           Adjustments Upon Changes in Capitalization .  In the event of a declaration of a stock dividend, a stock split, combination or 
reclassification of shares, extraordinary dividend of cash and/or assets, recapitalization, reorganization or any similar event affecting the Shares 
or other securities of the Company, the Administrator shall equitably adjust the Performance Vesting Price and/or the number and kind of 
Restricted Stock Units or other securities which are subject to this Agreement, in order to reflect such change and thereby preclude a dilution or 
enlargement of benefits under this Agreement.  
   
17.           Entire Agreement; Governing Law .  The Plan and this Agreement constitute the entire agreement of the parties with respect to the 
subject matter of this Agreement and supersede in their entirety all prior undertakings and agreements of the Company and the Participant with 
respect to the subject matter of this Agreement.  This Agreement is governed by the internal substantive laws, but not the choice of law rules of 
Switzerland (the Company’s jurisdiction of organization).  

   
6  

 



   
18.           Language .  If the Participant has received this Agreement or any other document related to the Plan translated into a language other 
than English and if the meaning of the translated version is different than the English version, the English version will control.  
   
19.           Electronic Delivery .  The Company may, in its sole discretion, decide to deliver any documents related to current or future 
participation in the Plan by electronic means.  The Participant hereby consents to receive such documents by electronic delivery and agrees to 
participate in the Plan through an on-line or electronic system established and maintained by the Company or a third party designated by the 
Company.  
   
20.           Severability .  The provisions of this Agreement are severable and if any one or more provisions are determined to be illegal or 
otherwise unenforceable, in whole or in part, the remaining provisions shall nevertheless be binding and enforceable.  
   
21.           Appendix .  The Restricted Stock Units and any Shares subject to the Restricted Stock Units shall be subject to any special terms and 
conditions set forth in the Appendix to this Agreement for the Participant’s country.  Moreover, if the Participant relocates to one of the countries 
included in the Appendix, the special terms and conditions for such country will apply to the Participant, to the extent the Company determines 
that the application of such terms and conditions is necessary or advisable for legal or administrative reasons.  The Appendix constitutes part of 
this Agreement.  
   
22.           Imposition of Other Requirements .  The Company reserves the right to impose other requirements on the Participant’s participation in 
the Plan, on the Restricted Stock Units and on any Shares acquired under the Plan, to the extent the Company determines it is necessary or 
advisable for legal or administrative reasons, and to require the Participant to sign any additional agreements or undertakings that may be 
necessary to accomplish the foregoing.  
   
23.           Permitted Modifications to Comply with Laws .  The Company reserves the right to unilaterally amend this Agreement solely if an 
amendment is determined to be reasonably necessary by the Company’s or Logitech Inc.’s legal counsel for the Company and Logitech Inc. to 
comply with existing or adopted applicable ordinances, laws, rules or regulations (“Laws”) (even if such Laws have not yet taken effect), 
including but not limited to any Laws related to the Minder initiative in Switzerland, and such counsel determines that the amendment 
reasonably addresses such need.  
   

*   *   *  
   
By the Participant’s agreement to this Agreement, the Participant agrees that the Restricted Stock Units are granted under and governed by the 
terms and conditions of the Plan and this Agreement.  The Participant has reviewed the Plan and this Agreement in their entirety, has had an 
opportunity to obtain the advice of counsel prior to executing this Agreement and fully understands all provisions of the Plan and Agreement.  
The Participant hereby agrees to accept as binding, conclusive and final all decisions or interpretations of the Administrator upon any questions 
relating to the Plan and Agreement.  
   
In order to agree to this Agreement, please click “I Agree” below.  
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LOGITECH INTERNATIONAL S.A. 2006 STOCK INCENTIVE PL AN  

APPENDIX  
ADDITIONAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF  
PERFORMANCE SHARE UNIT AGREEMENT  

   
This Appendix includes additional terms and conditions that govern the Restricted Stock Units granted to the Participant under the Plan if the 
Participant resides in one of the countries listed below.  Capitalized terms used but not defined in this Appendix shall have the meanings set forth 
in the Plan and/or the Agreement.  
   
This Appendix also includes information regarding securities law and other issues of which the Participant should be aware with respect to 
participation in the Plan.  The information is based on the securities law and other laws in effect in the respective countries as of 
November 2012.  Such laws are often complex and change frequently.  As a result, the Company strongly recommends that the Participant not 
rely on the information in this Appendix as the only source of information relating to the consequences of the Participant’s participation in the 
Plan because the information may be out of date at the time that the Restricted Stock Units vest or the Participant sells Shares acquired under the 
Plan.  
   
In addition, the information contained herein is general in nature and may not apply to the Participant’s particular situation and the Company is 
not in a position to assure the Participant of a particular result.  Accordingly, the Participant is advised to seek appropriate professional advice as 
to how the relevant laws in the Participant’s country may apply to the Participant’s situation.  
   
Finally, if the Participant is a citizen or resident of a country other than the one in which the Participant currently working or transfers 
employment between countries after the Grant Date, the Participant may be subject to the special terms and conditions for more than one country 
and/or the information for more than one country may be applicable to the Participant. It is also possible that the special terms and conditions 
and the information may not be applicable to the Participant in such a case.  
   
[COUNTRY SPECIFIC PROVISIONS]  
   



Exhibit 10.4 
   

LOGITECH INTERNATIONAL S.A. 2006 STOCK INCENTIVE PL AN  
   

RESTRICTED STOCK UNIT AGREEMENT  
   

This Restricted Stock Unit Agreement, including any country-specific terms and conditions set forth in the attached Appendix 
(collectively, the “ Agreement ”), is between Logitech International S.A., a Swiss company (the “ Company ”), and the Participant named below 
and is made pursuant to the Logitech International S.A. 2006 Stock Incentive Plan (the “ Plan ”).  To the extent any capitalized terms used in this 
Agreement are not defined, they shall have the meaning given to them in the Plan. In the event of a conflict between the terms and conditions of 
the Plan and the terms and conditions of this Agreement, the terms of the Plan shall prevail.  

   
In consideration of the mutual agreements herein contained and intending to be legally bound hereby, the parties agree as follows:  
   

1.              Grant of Restricted Stock Units .  The Company hereby grants to the Participant named below the number of Restricted Stock Units 
corresponding to Shares specified below, subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement and of the Plan, which is incorporated in this 
Agreement by reference:  
   

   
2.              Vesting .  Except as provided in Section 6 below, the Restricted Stock Units subject to this Award shall vest in two (2) equal annual 
installments on the first two anniversaries of the Grant Date (each such anniversary date being a “ Vesting Date ”), subject to the Participant’s 
continuous Service through the applicable Vesting Date, until all Restricted Stock Units subject to this Award are vested in full.  In no event 
shall any Restricted Stock Units vest after the Participant’s termination of Service.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Restricted Stock Units 
shall be subject to the provisions contained in Addendum A , which is attached to this Agreement, and to the terms and conditions of any change 
of control severance agreement between the Company or Employer (as defined in Section 7) and the Participant (a “ COC Severance Agreement 
”).  
   
3.              Settlement of Vested Restricted Stock Units .  The Participant’s vested Restricted Stock Units shall be settled within thirty (30) days 
after (i) the applicable Vesting Date pursuant to Section 2 or (ii) if earlier, the accelerated vesting date pursuant to Section 6, provided that the 
Company shall have no obligation to issue Shares pursuant to this Agreement unless and until the Participant has satisfied any applicable tax 
and/or other obligations pursuant to Section 9 below and such issuance otherwise complies with Applicable Laws.  If the Restricted Stock Units 
are (1) considered an item of non-qualified deferred compensation subject to Section 409A of the Code, (2) are settled upon the Participant’s 
Separation from Service and (3) the Participant is a “specified employee” (within the meaning of Section 409A of the Code) at the time of the 
Separation from Service, the Restricted Stock Units shall be settled within thirty (30) days following the earlier of (A) the expiration of the six-
month period following the Participant’s Separation from Service, and (B) the Participant’s death, to the extent such delayed payment is 
otherwise required to avoid a prohibited distribution under Section 409A of the Code.  “Separation from Service” shall have the meaning 
ascribed to it in and shall be construed in accordance with the provisions of Section 409A of the Code and the US Treasury Regulations 
thereunder (without giving effect to any  
   

 

Participant’s Name:  
   [NAME]  

         
Grant Date:  

   [GRANT DATE]  
         
Total Number of Restricted Stock  

   [UNITS]  
Units granted  

   
   



   
elective provisions that may be available under such definition).  At the time of settlement, the Participant shall receive one Share for each vested 
Restricted Stock Unit, net of applicable withholdings.  The Company in its discretion may designate a brokerage firm to assist with settlement of 
Restricted Stock Units, or as the sole means for settlement of Restricted Stock Units.  
   
4.              Nature of Restricted Stock Units .  The Restricted Stock Units are mere bookkeeping entries and represent only an unfunded and 
unsecured obligation of the Company to issue or deliver Shares on a future date.  As a holder of Restricted Stock Units, the Participant has no 
rights other than the rights of a general creditor of the Company.  The Restricted Stock Units carry neither voting rights nor rights to cash or 
other dividends.  The Participant has no rights as a shareholder of the Company by virtue of the Restricted Stock Units unless and until the 
Restricted Stock Units are settled by issuing or delivering Shares.  
   
5.              Leave of Absence .  Unless otherwise determined by the Administrator, the following provisions shall apply in the case of an 
authorized leave of absence by the Participant:  
   

(a)            Subject to Applicable Laws and the terms of a written employment agreement, if any, between the Participant and the 
Company or a Subsidiary, no Restricted Stock Units subject to this Award shall vest after the 120  day of the leave of absence.  If Applicable 
Laws or the terms of a written employment agreement, if any, between the Participant and the Company or a Subsidiary provide for a later date 
upon which vesting may cease, then no Restricted Stock Units subject to this Award shall vest upon the earliest date possible under Applicable 
Laws or the employment agreement.  

   
(b)            If vesting has ceased under Section 5(a) and Participant subsequently returns to active Service, vesting of the Restricted Stock 

Units subject to this Award shall resume on the 15  day of the month following the date on which Participant returns to active Service (for the 
avoidance of any doubt, the Participant shall not accrue vesting credit during the period between the date that the Participant ceased vesting and 
the date that vesting resumes after the Participant’s return to active Service as set forth in this Section 5(b)).  

   
6.              Termination of Service .  If the Participant’s Service terminates by reason of the Participant’s death or Disability or if the Participant 
ceases to be Chairman of the Board at the request or upon action of the Board or by action of the Company’s shareholders or is not re-elected to 
the Board, all unvested Restricted Stock Units shall vest immediately.  If the Participant’s Service in any capacity terminates for any reason other 
than as set forth in the foregoing sentence (whether or not such termination is later found to be invalid or in breach of employment laws in the 
jurisdiction where the Participant is employed or the terms of the Participant’s employment agreement, if any), all unvested Restricted Stock 
Units shall be forfeited effective on the date the Participant’s Service terminates.  The Participant’s date of termination of Service shall mean the 
date upon which the Participant’s active Service terminates, regardless of any notice period or period in lieu of notice of termination of 
employment or similar period mandated under employment laws in the jurisdiction where the Participant is employed or the terms of a written 
employment agreement, if any. The Administrator shall have the exclusive discretion to determine when the Participant’s active Service 
terminates for purposes of this Award ( i.e. , when the Participant has ceased active performance of services for purposes of vesting in this 
Award), including whether a leave of absence constitutes a termination of Service for purposes of this Award.  
   
7.              Recovery of Erroneously Awarded Compensation .  If the Participant is now or is hereafter subject to the Executive Clawback Policy 
adopted by the Company’s Board of Directors, or any committee thereof, or any similar policy providing for the recovery of Awards, Shares, 
proceeds, or payments to Participant in the event of fraud or other circumstances, then this Award, and any Shares or other payments resulting 
from settlement of the Restricted Stock Units or proceeds therefrom, are subject to  
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potential recovery by the Company or the Participant’s employer (the “ Employer ”) under the circumstances set out in the Executive Clawback 
Policy or such other similar policy as in effect from time to time.  
   
8.              Suspension or Cancellation for Misconduct .  If at any time (including after vesting but before settlement) the Administrator reasonably 
believes that the Participant has committed an act of misconduct as described in this Section 8, the Administrator may suspend the vesting or 
settlement of Restricted Stock Units, pending a determination of whether an act of misconduct has been committed.  If the Administrator 
determines that the Participant has committed an act of embezzlement, fraud or breach of fiduciary duty, or if the Participant makes an 
unauthorized disclosure of any trade secret or confidential information of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries or Affiliates, or induces any 
customer to breach a contract with the Company or any of its Subsidiaries or Affiliates, then this Agreement shall terminate immediately and 
cease to be outstanding.  Any determination by the Administrator with respect to the foregoing shall be final, conclusive and binding on all 
interested parties.  If the Participant holds the title of Vice President or above, the determination of the Administrator shall be subject to the 
approval of the Company’s Board of Directors.  
   
9.              Responsibility for Taxes .  
   

(a)            Regardless of any action the Company or the Employer takes with respect to any or all income tax, social insurance, payroll 
tax, fringe benefits tax, payment on account or other tax-related items related to the Participant’s participation in the Plan and legally applicable 
to the Participant (“ Tax-Related Items ”), the Participant acknowledges that the ultimate liability for all Tax-Related Items is and remains the 
Participant’s responsibility and may exceed the amount actually withheld by the Company or the Employer.  The Participant further 
acknowledges that the Company and/or the Employer (i) make no representations or undertakings regarding the treatment of any Tax-Related 
Items in connection with any aspect of the Restricted Stock Units, including, but not limited to, the grant, vesting or settlement of the Restricted 
Stock Units, the issuance of Shares upon settlement of the Restricted Stock Units, the subsequent sale of Shares acquired pursuant to such 
issuance and the receipt of any dividends and/or any dividend equivalents; and (ii) do not commit to and are under no obligation to structure the 
terms of the Award or any aspect of the Restricted Stock Units to reduce or eliminate the Participant’s liability for Tax-Related Items or achieve 
any particular tax result.  Further, if the Participant has become subject to Tax-Related Items in more than one jurisdiction between the date of 
grant and the date of any relevant taxable or tax withholding event, as applicable, the Participant acknowledges that the Company and/or the 
Employer (or former employer, as applicable) may be required to withhold or account for Tax-Related Items in more than one jurisdiction.  

   
(b)            Prior to any relevant taxable or tax withholding event, as applicable, the Participant will pay or make adequate arrangements 

satisfactory to the Company and/or the Employer to satisfy all Tax-Related Items.  In this regard, the Participant authorizes the Company and/or 
the Employer, or their respective agents, at their discretion, to satisfy the obligations with regard to all Tax-Related Items by one or a 
combination of the following:  (i) withholding from the Participant’s wages or other cash compensation paid to the Participant by the Company 
and/or the Employer; or (ii) withholding from proceeds of the sale of Shares acquired upon settlement of the Restricted Stock Units either 
through a voluntary sale or through a mandatory sale arranged by the Company (on the Participant’s behalf pursuant to this authorization); or 
(iii) withholding in Shares to be issued upon vesting of the Restricted Stock Units, provided, however, that if the Participant is a Section 16 
officer of the Company under the Exchange Act, then the Company will withhold in Shares upon the relevant taxable or tax withholding event, 
as applicable, unless the use of such withholding method is problematic under applicable tax or securities law or has materially adverse 
accounting consequences, in which case, the obligation for Tax-Related Items may be satisfied by one or a combination of methods (i) and 
(ii) hereof.  Depending on the  
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withholding method, the Company may withhold or account for Tax-Related Items by considering applicable minimum statutory withholding 
rates or other applicable withholding rates, including maximum applicable rates, in which case the Participant will receive a refund of any over-
withheld amount in cash and will have no entitlement to the equivalent in Shares.  If the obligation for Tax-Related Items is satisfied by 
withholding in Shares, for tax purposes, the Participant is deemed to have been issued the full number of Shares subject to the vested Restricted 
Stock Units, notwithstanding that a number of the Shares are held back solely for the purpose of paying the Tax-Related Items due as a result of 
any aspect of the Participant’s participation in the Plan.  
   

(c)            Finally, the Participant shall pay to the Company or the Employer any amount of Tax-Related Items that the Company or the 
Employer may be required to withhold or account for as a result of the Participant’s participation in the Plan that cannot be satisfied by the 
means previously described.  The Company may refuse to issue or deliver the Shares or the proceeds of the sale of Shares, if the Participant fails 
to comply with the Participant’s obligations in connection with the Tax-Related Items.  

   
10.           Compliance with Applicable Laws; No Company Liability .  No Shares shall be issued or delivered pursuant to the settlement of the 
Restricted Stock Units unless such issuance or delivery complies with Applicable Laws.  The Company shall not be liable to the Participant or 
other persons as to (a) the non-issuance or delivery of Shares as to which the Company has been unable to obtain from any regulatory body 
having jurisdiction the authority deemed by the Company’s counsel to be necessary to the lawful issuance or delivery of any Shares hereunder 
and (b) any tax consequence expected, but not realized, by the Participant or other person due to the receipt, vesting or settlement of the 
Restricted Stock Units.  
   
11.           Non-Transferability of Restricted Stock Units .  The Restricted Stock Units and this Agreement may not be transferred in any manner 
otherwise than by will, by the laws of descent or distribution or, if the Company permits, by a written beneficiary designation.  The terms of the 
Plan and this Agreement shall be binding upon the executors, administrators, heirs, beneficiaries, successors and assigns of the Participant.  
   
12.           No Advice Regarding Grant .  The Company is not providing any tax, legal or financial advice, nor is the Company making any 
recommendations regarding the Participant’s participation in the Plan, or the Participant’s acquisition or sale of the underlying Shares.  The 
Participant is hereby advised to consult with his or her own personal tax, legal and financial advisors regarding his or her participation in the 
Plan before taking any action related to the Plan.  
   
13.           Nature of Grant .  In accepting the grant, the Participant acknowledges, understands and agrees that:  
   

(a)          the Plan is established voluntarily by the Company, it is discretionary in nature and it may be modified, amended, suspended 
or terminated by the Company at any time;  

   
(b)          the grant of the Restricted Stock Units is voluntary and occasional and does not create any contractual or other right to receive 

future grants of Restricted Stock Units, or benefits in lieu of Restricted Stock Units, even if Restricted Stock Units have been granted in the past; 
   
(c)          all decisions with respect to future Restricted Stock Units grants, if any, will be at the sole discretion of the Company;  
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(d)          the Participant’s participation in the Plan shall not create a right to further Service with the Employer and shall not interfere 

with the ability of the Employer to terminate the Participant’s Service at any time;  
   
(e)          the Participant is voluntarily participating in the Plan;  
   
(f)           the Restricted Stock Units and the Shares subject to the Restricted Stock Units are extraordinary items that do not constitute 

compensation of any kind for services of any kind rendered to the Company or the Employer, and which are outside the scope of the 
Participant’s employment contract, if any;  

   
(g)          the Restricted Stock Units and the Shares subject to the Restricted Stock Units are not intended to replace any pension rights 

or compensation;  
   
(h)          the Restricted Stock Units and the Shares subject to the Restricted Stock Units are not part of normal or expected 

compensation or salary for any purpose, including, but not limited to, calculating any severance, resignation, termination, redundancy, dismissal, 
end of service payments, bonuses, long-service awards, pension or retirement or welfare benefits or similar payments;  

   
(i)           the grant of the Restricted Stock Units and the Participant’s participation in the Plan will not be interpreted to form an 

employment contract or relationship with the Company or any Subsidiary or Affiliate;  
   
(j)           the future value of the underlying Shares is unknown and cannot be predicted with certainty;  
   
(k)          no claim or entitlement to compensation or damages shall arise from forfeiture of the Restricted Stock Units resulting from 

termination of the Participant’s Service by the Company or the Employer (for any reason whatsoever and whether or not later found to be invalid 
or in breach of employment laws in the jurisdiction where the Participant is employed or the terms of the Participant’s employment agreement, if 
any) and, in consideration of the grant of the Restricted Stock Units to which the Participant is otherwise not entitled, the Participant irrevocably 
agrees never to institute any claim against the Company or the Employer, waives the ability, if any, to bring any such claim and releases the 
Company and the Employer from any such claim; if, notwithstanding the foregoing, any such claim is allowed by a court of competent 
jurisdiction, then, by participating in the Plan, the Participant will be deemed irrevocably to have agreed not to pursue such claim and agrees to 
execute any and all documents necessary to request dismissal or withdrawal of such claims;  

   
(l)           unless otherwise provided in the Plan or by the Company in its discretion, the Restricted Stock Units and the benefits 

evidenced by this Agreement do not create any entitlement to have the Restricted Stock Units or any such benefits transferred to, or assumed by, 
another company nor to be exchanged, cashed out or substituted for, in connection with any corporate transaction affecting the shares of the 
Company; and  

   
(m)         neither the Company, the Employer nor any Subsidiary or Affiliate shall be liable for any foreign exchange rate fluctuation 

between the Participant’s local currency and the United States Dollar or the Swiss Franc, as applicable, that may affect the value of the 
Restricted Stock Units or of any amounts due to the Participant pursuant to the settlement of the Restricted Stock Units or the subsequent sale of 
any Shares acquired upon settlement.  
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14.           Data Privacy .  
   

(a)            The Participant hereby consents to the collection, processing, use and transfer, in electronic or other form, of the 
Participant’s personal information (the “ Data ”) regarding the Participant’s employment, the nature and amount of the Participant’s 
compensation and the fact and conditions of the Participant’s participation in the Plan (including the Participant’s name, home address, 
telephone number, date of birth, social insurance number or other identification number, compensation, nationality and job title, details of 
all options, shares or other entitlement to securities awarded, canceled, exercised, vested, unvested or outstanding under the Plan or 
predecessor plans), by and among the Company and one or more its Subsidiaries and Affiliates, for the exclusive purpose of implementing, 
administering and managing the Participant’s participation in the Plan and in calculating the cost of the Plan.  

   
(b)            The Participant further consents to the transfer of the Data to UBS AG and/or its affiliates (“ UBS ”), or to any other third 

parties assisting in the implementation, administration and management of the Plan, or in calculating the costs of the Plan, including any 
other third party assisting with the settlement of Restricted Stock Units under the Plan or with whom Shares acquired upon settlement of the 
Restricted Stock Units or cash from the sale of such Shares may be deposited.  The Participant further consents to the processing, possession, 
use and transfer of the Data by UBS and such other third parties for the exclusive purpose of implementing, administering and managing 
the Participant’s participation in the Plan and in calculating the cost of the Plan.  

   
(c)            The Participant understands and agrees that the recipients of the Data may be located in the United States or elsewhere, 

and that the recipients’ countries may have different data privacy laws and protections than the Participant’s country, and the Participant 
consents to the transfer of the Data to such countries.  Furthermore, the Participant acknowledges and understands that the transfer of the 
Data to the Company or any of its Subsidiaries or Affiliates, or to UBS or any such third parties, is necessary for the Participant’s 
participation in the Plan.  The Participant understands that he or she may, at any time, view Data, request additional information about the 
storage and processing of Data or require any necessary amendments to Data or withdraw the consents herein, in any case without cost, by 
contacting the Participant’s local human resources representative in writing.  

   
(d)            Further, the Participant understands that he or she is providing the consents herein on a purely voluntary basis.  If the 

Participant does not consent, or later seeks to revoke his or her consent, the Participant’s employment status or service and career with the 
Employer will not be adversely affected; the only adverse consequence of refusing or withdrawing consent is that the Company would not be 
able to grant Restricted Stock Units or other equity awards to the Participant or administer or maintain such awards. Therefore, t he 
Participant acknowledges that withdrawal of consent may affect the Participant’s ability to realize benefits from the Restricted Stock Units, 
and the Participant’s ability to participate in the Plan.  

   
15.           Exchange Control Acknowledgement .  Local foreign exchange laws may affect the grant of the Restricted Stock Units, the receipt of 
Shares upon settlement of the Restricted Stock Units, the sale of Shares received upon settlement of the Restricted Stock Units and/or the receipt 
of dividends or dividend equivalents (if any).  Such laws may affect the Participant’s ability to hold funds outside of the Participant’s country 
and may require the repatriation of any cash, dividends or dividend equivalents received in connection with the Restricted Stock Units.  The 
Participant is responsible for being aware of  and satisfying any exchange control requirements that may be necessary in connection with the 
Restricted Stock Units.  Neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiaries or Affiliates will be responsible for such requirements or liable for the 
failure on the Participant’s part to know and abide by the requirements that  
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are the Participant’s responsibility.  The Participant should consult with his or her own personal legal advisers to ensure compliance with local 
laws.  
   
16.           Adjustments Upon Changes in Capitalization .  In the event of a declaration of a stock dividend, a stock split, combination or 
reclassification of shares, extraordinary dividend of cash and/or assets, recapitalization, reorganization or any similar event affecting the Shares 
or other securities of the Company, the Administrator shall equitably adjust the number and kind of Restricted Stock Units or other securities 
which are subject to this Agreement, in order to reflect such change and thereby preclude a dilution or enlargement of benefits under this 
Agreement.  
   
17.           Entire Agreement; Governing Law .  The Plan, this Agreement (including Addendum A) and any COC Severance Agreement constitute 
the entire agreement of the parties with respect to the subject matter of this Agreement and supersede in their entirety all prior undertakings and 
agreements of the Company and the Participant with respect to the subject matter of this Agreement.  This Agreement is governed by the internal 
substantive laws, but not the choice of law rules of Switzerland (the Company’s jurisdiction of organization).  
   
18.           Language .  If the Participant has received this Agreement or any other document related to the Plan translated into a language other 
than English and if the meaning of the translated version is different than the English version, the English version will control.  
   
19.           Electronic Delivery .  The Company may, in its sole discretion, decide to deliver any documents related to current or future 
participation in the Plan by electronic means.  The Participant hereby consents to receive such documents by electronic delivery and agrees to 
participate in the Plan through an on-line or electronic system established and maintained by the Company or a third party designated by the 
Company.  
   
20.           Severability .  The provisions of this Agreement are severable and if any one or more provisions are determined to be illegal or 
otherwise unenforceable, in whole or in part, the remaining provisions shall nevertheless be binding and enforceable.  
   
21.           Appendix .  The Restricted Stock Units and any Shares subject to the Restricted Stock Units shall be subject to any special terms and 
conditions set forth in the Appendix to this Agreement for the Participant’s country.  Moreover, if the Participant relocates to one of the countries 
included in the Appendix, the special terms and conditions for such country will apply to the Participant, to the extent the Company determines 
that the application of such terms and conditions is necessary or advisable for legal or administrative reasons.  The Appendix constitutes part of 
this Agreement.  
   
22.           Imposition of Other Requirements .  The Company reserves the right to impose other requirements on the Participant’s participation in 
the Plan, on the Restricted Stock Units and on any Shares acquired under the Plan, to the extent the Company determines it is necessary or 
advisable for legal or administrative reasons, and to require the Participant to sign any additional agreements or undertakings that may be 
necessary to accomplish the foregoing.  
   
23.           Permitted Modifications to Comply with Laws .  The Company reserves the right to unilaterally amend this Agreement, prior to a 
Change of Control, solely if an amendment is determined to be reasonably necessary by the Company’s or Logitech Inc.’s legal counsel for the 
Company and Logitech Inc. to comply with existing or adopted applicable ordinances, laws, rules or regulations (“Laws”) (even if such Laws 
have not yet taken effect), including but not limited to any Laws related to the Minder initiative in Switzerland, and such counsel determines that 
the amendment reasonably addresses such need.  
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*   *   *  

   
By the Participant’s agreement to this Agreement, the Participant agrees that the Restricted Stock Units are granted under and governed by the 
terms and conditions of the Plan and this Agreement.  The Participant has reviewed the Plan and this Agreement in their entirety, has had an 
opportunity to obtain the advice of counsel prior to executing this Agreement and fully understands all provisions of the Plan and Agreement.  
The Participant hereby agrees to accept as binding, conclusive and final all decisions or interpretations of the Administrator upon any questions 
relating to the Plan and Agreement.  
   
In order to agree to this Agreement, please click “I Agree” below.  
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LOGITECH INTERNATIONAL S.A. 2006 STOCK INCENTIVE PL AN  

   
ADDENDUM A  

   
Change in Control Severance Provisions  

   
The following provisions shall be incorporated into the Restricted Stock Unit Agreement to which this Addendum A is attached.  To the extent 
any capitalized terms used in this Addendum A are not defined, they shall have the meanings given to them in the Agreement or the Plan, as 
applicable.  
   

(a)            Acceleration of Vesting .  All Restricted Stock Units shall immediately vest if the Company is subject to a Change in Control 
before the Participant experiences a Separation from Service and either of the following events occurs:  

   
(i)             An Involuntary Termination within 12 months after such Change in Control.  
   
(ii)            a Demotion within 12 months after such Change in Control followed by a Separation from Service by the Participant 

due to a resignation of employment with the Company or Employer by the Participant within 60 days after the Participant has satisfied 
the Service Period Requirement.  

   
(b)            Settlement .  All unvested Restricted Stock Units that vest pursuant to Section (a) above shall be settled in accordance with 

Section 3 of the Agreement, provided that “Vesting Date” for purposes of Section 3 of the Agreement shall mean the earlier of (a)(i) or (a)(ii) of 
this Addendum A.  

   
(c)            Definitions .  The following definitions shall apply for purposes of this Addendum A:  
   

(i)             Base Salary .  The term “Base Salary” shall mean the greater of (i) the Participant’s annual base salary, as in effect 
immediately prior to the Participant’s termination of employment with the Company or Employer, or (ii) the Participant’s annual base 
salary as in effect on the effective date of the COC Severance Agreement.  

   
(ii)            Cause .  The term “Cause” shall mean (A) any act of personal dishonesty taken by the Participant in connection with 

his or her responsibilities as a Participant that is intended to result in substantial personal enrichment of the Participant, (B) the 
Participant’s conviction of a felony that the Board reasonably believes has had or will have a material detrimental effect on the 
Company’s reputation or business, (C) a willful act by the Participant that constitutes misconduct and is injurious to the Company or 
(D) continued willful violations by the Participant of the Participant’s obligations to the Company after there has been delivered to the 
Participant a written demand for performance from the Company that describes the basis for the Company’s belief that the Participant 
has not substantially performed his or her duties.  

   
(iii)           Change in Control .  The term “Change in Control” shall mean the occurrence of any of the following events:  
   

(A)           A merger or consolidation of the Company with any other entity, other than a merger or consolidation that 
would result in the voting securities of the Company outstanding immediately prior thereto continuing to represent (either by 
remaining outstanding or by being  
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converted into voting securities of the surviving entity) more than 50% of the total voting power represented by the voting 
securities of the Company or such surviving entity outstanding immediately after such merger or consolidation;  

   
(B)           The complete liquidation of the Company;  
   
(C)           The sale or other disposition by the Company of all or substantially all of the Company’s assets; or  
   
(D)           Any “person” (as such term is used in Sections 13(d) and 14(d) of the Exchange Act) becoming the 

“beneficial owner” (as defined in Rule 13d-3 under the Exchange Act), directly or indirectly, of securities of the Company 
representing 50% or more of the total voting power represented by the Company’s then outstanding voting securities.  

   
(iv)           Demotion .  “Demotion” shall mean a material reduction of the Participant’s duties, position or responsibilities 

relative to the Participant’s duties, position or responsibilities in effect immediately prior to such reduction, without the Participant’s 
express written consent.  Such reduction shall not be considered a “Demotion” unless (i) the Participant gives the Company written 
notice of such reduction within 90 days after such reduction occurs and (ii) the Company fails to remedy such reduction within 30 days 
after receiving the Participant’s written notice.  

   
(v)            Good Reason .  The term “Good Reason” shall mean (A) a substantial reduction of the facilities and perquisites 

(including office space and location) available to the Participant immediately prior to such reduction, without the Participant’s express 
written consent and without good business reasons, (B) a material reduction of the Participant’s Base Salary, (C) a material reduction in 
the kind or level of Participant benefits to which the Participant is entitled immediately prior to such reduction, with the result that the 
Participant’s overall benefits package is significantly reduced, (D) the relocation of the Participant to a facility or location more than 30 
miles from his or her current location, without the Participant’s express written consent, or (E) the Company’s failure to obtain the 
assumption by any successor of the Company of any COC Severance Agreement (to the extent contemplated under such COC 
Severance Agreement).  Clause (C) above shall not apply in the event of any reduction of the amount of the bonus actually paid but 
shall apply in the event of a material reduction of the target bonus or bonus opportunity.  A condition shall not be considered “Good 
Reason” unless the Participant gives the Company (or a successor of the Company, if applicable) written notice of such condition 
within 90 days after such condition comes into existence and the Company (or a successor of the Company, if applicable) fails to 
remedy such condition within 30 days after receiving the Participant’s written notice.  

   
(vi)           Involuntary Termination .  The term “Involuntary Termination” shall mean that a Participant experiences a 

Separation from Service caused by (i) a termination by the Company or Employer of the Participant’s employment with the Company 
or Employer that is not effected for Cause or (ii) a resignation by the Participant of his or her employment with the Company or 
Employer for Good Reason.  

   
(vii)          Service Period Requirement .  The term “Service Period Requirement” means that the Participant has remained 

employed by the Company or Employer until the  
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earlier to occur of (A) the date twelve (12) months after the Demotion or (B) the date when the Participant is subject to an Involuntary 
Termination.  

   
(d)            Effect of Change of Control Severance Agreement .  Notwithstanding any provisions in this Addendum A, the applicable 

provisions contained in any COC Severance Agreement shall supersede the provisions contained in this Addendum A.  
   
(e)            Effect of Merger .  In the event that the Company is a party to a merger, consolidation or reorganization, the Restricted Stock 

Units subject to this Award shall be subject to Section 16 of the Plan; provided that any action taken pursuant to Section 16 of the Plan shall 
either (i) preserve the exemption of this Award from Section 409A of the Code or (ii) comply with Section 409A of the Code.  
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APPENDIX  
ADDITIONAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF  

RESTRICTED STOCK UNIT AGREEMENT  
   

This Appendix includes additional terms and conditions that govern the Restricted Stock Units granted to the Participant under the Plan if the 
Participant resides in one of the countries listed below.  Capitalized terms used but not defined in this Appendix shall have the meanings set forth 
in the Plan and/or the Agreement.  
   
This Appendix also includes information regarding securities law and other issues of which the Participant should be aware with respect to 
participation in the Plan.  The information is based on the securities law and other laws in effect in the respective countries as of 
November 2012.  Such laws are often complex and change frequently.  As a result, the Company strongly recommends that the Participant not 
rely on the information in this Appendix as the only source of information relating to the consequences of the Participant’s participation in the 
Plan because the information may be out of date at the time that the Restricted Stock Units vest or the Participant sells Shares acquired under the 
Plan.  
   
In addition, the information contained herein is general in nature and may not apply to the Participant’s particular situation and the Company is 
not in a position to assure the Participant of a particular result.  Accordingly, the Participant is advised to seek appropriate professional advice as 
to how the relevant laws in the Participant’s country may apply to the Participant’s situation.  
   
Finally, if the Participant is a citizen or resident of a country other than the one in which the Participant currently working or transfers 
employment between countries after the Grant Date, the Participant may be subject to the special terms and conditions for more than one country 
and/or the information for more than one country may be applicable to the Participant. It is also possible that the special terms and conditions 
and the information may not be applicable to the Participant in such a case.  
   
[COUNTRY SPECIFIC PROVISIONS]  

   



Exhibit 31.1 
  

CERTIFICATIONS  
   

I, Bracken P. Darrell, certify that:  
   

   

   

1.  I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Logitech International S.A.;  
      
2.  Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to 

make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period 
covered by this report;  

      
3.  Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this quarterly report, fairly present in all 

material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this 
report;  

      
4.  The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined 

in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15
(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:  

      
   

a.  Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our 
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to 
us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;  

         
   

b.  Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed 
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of 
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;  

         
   

c.  Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about 
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such 
evaluation; and  

         
   

d.  Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s 
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is 
reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and  

         
5.  The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, 

to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):  
         
   

a.  All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are 
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and  

         
   

b.  Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s 
internal control over financial reporting.  

November 5, 2013  
   

      
      
/s/ Bracken P. Darrell  

   

Bracken P. Darrell  
   

President and  
Chief Executive Officer  

   



Exhibit 31.2 
  

CERTIFICATIONS  
   

I, Vincent Pilette, certify that:  
   

   

   

1.  I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Logitech International S.A.;  
      
2.  Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to 

make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period 
covered by this report;  

      
3.  Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this quarterly report, fairly present in all 

material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this 
report;  

      
4.  The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as 

defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act 
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:  

      
   

a.  Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our 
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to 
us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;  

         
   

b.  Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed 
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of 
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;  

         
   

c.  Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions 
about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such 
evaluation; and  

         
   

d.  Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s 
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is 
reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and  

      
5.  The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial 

reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent 
functions):  

      
   

a.  All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which 
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and 

         
   

b.  Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s 
internal control over financial reporting.  

November 5, 2013  
   

      
      
/s/ Vincent Pilette  

   

Vincent Pilette  
   

Chief Financial Officer  
   



Exhibit 32.1 
   

CERTIFICATION OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER  
PURSUANT TO RULE 13A-14(B) OR RULE 15D-14(B) AND SECTION 1350 OF CHAPTER 63 OF TITLE 18 OF  

THE UNITED STATES CODE  
   

The certification set forth below is being submitted in connection with this quarterly report on Form 10-Q (the “Report”) of Logitech 
International S.A. (“the Company”) for the purpose of complying with Rule 13a-14(b) or Rule 15d-14(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 
(the “Exchange Act”) and Section 1350 of Chapter 63 of Title 18 of the United States Code.  

   
Bracken P. Darrell, Chief Executive Officer of the Company, and Vincent Pilette, Chief Financial Officer of the Company, each certify that, 

to the best of his knowledge:  
   

   
   

November 5, 2013  
   
   

   

(1)  the Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Exchange Act; and  
      
(2)  the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of 

the Company.  

/s/ Bracken P. Darrell  
   

Bracken P. Darrell  
   

President and  
   

Chief Executive Officer  
   

      
      
/s/ Vincent Pilette  

   

Vincent Pilette  
   

Chief Financial Officer  
   


